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Senate Judiciary Committee

Q Conference Committee

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2296

2003 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Hearing Date 02/05/03
Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
4 X 0.0 - End
2 X 0.0-25.1

Committee Clerk Signature 777474 o’ Mf/’]

Minutes: Senator John T. Traynor, Chairman, called the meeting to order. Roll call was taken

/> and all committee members present. Sen. Traynor requested meeting starts with testimony on the

bill:

Testimony Support of SB 2296

Sen, Tim Mathern - Introduced Bill (meter .4) Read Testimony - Attachment #1, Handed out

Amendment Attachment # 1b,
Senator John T, Traynor, Chairman asked if loss of control over ones thoughts defined in this

bill? No.

Sheree Spear - Mother of a 22 year old delusional, paranoid and suicidal son. (meter 2.8) Read
Testimony Attachment #2a, Evaluation and treatment process flow chart, Attachment #2b.

Randy Petermann - Paranoid disorder patient, (meter 13.9) Read Testimony Attachment #3,

Deb Mathern Read Judy Knutson's Testimony (meter 17.6) Attachment #4,
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Watched Video (meter 23) - Attached Testimony #5, Mary T. Zdanowicz, JD Executive Director

and Rosanna M. Esposito, JD Arlington VA,
Janet Sabol - Minot, ND - Nation’s Voice on Mental Iliness (NAMI) (ineter 26.1) Read

Testimony - Attachment #6.

Testimony in opposition of SB 2296

Sharon Gallegher - Mental Health association in ND - MHAND, Non profit volunteer citizens
organization affiliated with the National Mental Health Association, (meter 32) Read Testimony
Attachment # 7,

Mental and Physical Illness stature - Attachment 7b

Proposed amendment prepared by Mental Health Association in ND - Attachment 7¢
Senator Thomas L. Trenbeath stated it unusual that the Supreme Court could tell someone to
make a decision in comparison to “a driver who is to sleepy” to pull over. (meter 48)

Discussion in the manor if accepting both sets of amendments what of the bill is left?

Gregory Runge - Attorney of two citizens who had been accused of being mentally ill. (Tape 2,
side 2, meter 1.9) Read Testimony - Attachment #8

Corinne Hofmann - Director of Policy and Operations for the Protection and Advocacy Project (P
& A) (meter 14.7) Read Testimony Attachment #9a. and Study of chapter 25-03.1 Attachment
9b.

Discussion on study (meter 24.9)

Testimony Neutral to SB 2296

None

Senator John T, Traynor, Chairman closed the hearing.
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Senate Judiciary Committee
Q Conference Committee

Hearing Date 02/12/03

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2296

Tape Number

Side A

Side B

Meter #

3

8.0 -14.0

Committee Clerk Signature  22t1es oL od. @/Ws

| Minutes: Senator Stanley W, Lyson, Vice Chairman , called the meeting to order, Roll call

committee on the bill:

with this bill,

~  was taken and not all committee members present, Sen. Lyson requested meeting starts with

Senator Stanley W, Lyson, Vice Chairman discussed amendment. Senator Carolyn Nelson
reviewed amendments with committee (meter 8.5) Attached #1. Senator Carolyn Nelson stated

that this was an example of two people who had different opinions and being able to work it out

Sheree Spear submitted a letter from Ronald S. Honberg J.D. M.Ed - National Director for Policy

and Legal Affairs, The Nation’s Voice on Mental Iliness - Attachment #2. Karen Romig Larsen

E after stating her neutral stance sited her concerns on the bill. Several bills are making minor

changes on our commitment law and we are concerned that all these small changes may

contradict each other or be problematic. It is critical to have all the different groups around the
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Senate Judiciary Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2296
Hearing Date 02/12/03

table. in the decision making process, and it is being done with this one. Discussed making the
bill a study (meter 12.9) Senator Carolvn Nelson reviewed the simple changes.

Motion Made to DO PASS Amendments 304270103 on SB 2296 by Senator Carolyn
Nelson and seconded by Senator Thomas L. Trenbeath

Roll Call Vote: 1 Yes, 0 No. 1 Absent

Motion Passed

Motion Made to DO PASS SB 2296 with Amendments by Senator Carolyn Nelson and
seconded by Senstor Dennis Bercier.

Roll Call Vote: 5§ Yes. 0 No. 1 Absent

Motion Passed

Floor Assignment: Senator Carolyn Nelson

Senstor Stanley W, Lyson, Vice Chairman closed the hearing
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30427,0103 Prepared by the Legislative Councll staff for
Title.0200 Senator Mathern
February 11, 2003 2,93

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2296

Page 1, line 1, replace the comma with “and"

'Page 1, line 2, remove *, and subsection 1 of section 25-03.1-25"
Page 1, line 9, replace "includes” with "may includa"

Page 1, line 10, remove "pirsuant to section 25-03.1-18.1"

Peage 3, line 15, remove the overstrike over "a-sereus-Hel-of-harm-to-that-pereon;-othereror
properly—-Serioue-riek"

Page 3, line 16, remove the overstrike over "ef-harm™meane”
Page 3, line 20, remove ", Direct”

Page 3, remove line 21

Page 3, line 22, remove “required”

Page 3, line 27, remove "risk of logs”

Page 3, line 28, remove " 's abill I n inth ni
m!i

Page 4, line 1, replace " 's inabllity to makea with “effect of the person's mental
candition on the person's ablllty to consent”

Page 4, line 2, remove "ration i rir y

Page 5, remove lines 22 through 31

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 8

Renumber accordingly |
Page No. 1 30427.0103 &
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2003 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2296
| Senate JUDICIARY Committee
D Check here for Conference Committee
Legislative Council Amendment Number
Action Taken Amendment 0103
Motion Made By  Senator Carolyn Nelson  Seconded By _Sen. Trenbeath
Senators ‘ Senators
Sen. John T, Traynor - Chairman Sen. Dennis Bercier
Sen, Stanley. Lyson - Vice Chair Sen. Carolyn Nelson
Sen. Dick Dever
Sen. Thomas L. Trenbeath
Total (Yes) FIVE (5) No ZERO (0)
Absent ONE
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' / \ Roll Call Vote #: 2

2003 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2296

Senate JUDICIARY

| Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Committee

30427.0103

Action Taken DO PASS as Amended

Motion Made By  Senator Carolyn Nelson  Seconded By _Sen. Bercier

Senators No Senators

No

Sen. John T. Traynor - Chairman A | Sen. Dennis Bercier

w
xxa

Sen. Stanley. Lyson - Vice Chair Sen. Carolyn Nelson

Sen, Dick Dever

Sen. Thomas L. Trenbeath

>[>¢|¢|> 5

Total  (Yes) FIVE(§) No ZERO (0)

Absent ONE

Floor Assignment  Senator Carolyn Nelson
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-20-2618
February 13, 2008 8:26 a.m. Carrier: Nelson
insert LC: 30427.0103 Title: .0200

RIPORTOFSTANDING COMMITTEE
8B 2200: Jud% , Chatrman) recommends AMENDMENTS
andwhensoa rooommondsDOPAss 5 YEAS, 0 NAYS,

1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2206 was placed on the Sixth order on the
catendar.

Page 1, line 1, replace the comma with “and*

Page 1, line 2, remove *, and subsection 1 of section 25-03.1-25"

Page 1, line 9, replace “includes" with *may include*

Page 1, line 10, remove “pursuant to section 25-03.1-18.1"

Page 3, line 15, remove the oyorstrike over "a-oeneus-rei-ol-harm-le-thal-pereon;-othere-or

Page 3, line 16, remove the overstrike over "el-harm™meane”

Page 3, line 20, remove ", Direct*

Page 3, remove line 21

Page 3, line 22, remove *required"

Page 3, line 27, remove "rigk of logs*

Page 3, line 28, remove "of the person's ability
the*

Page 4, line 1, replaoe pamnﬂmum_m_maku with "gffect of the person's menial

Page 4, line 2, remove "rg
Page 5, remove lines 22 through 31
Page 6, remove lines 1 through 8
Renumber accordingly
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2003 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO., SB 2296

House Judiciary Committee

O Conference Committee

Hearing Date 3-5-03

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
1 xx 0-end
1 xx 0-end
2 xx 0-12.1
Committee Clﬂﬁmﬁ%/é%/w

Minutes: 12 members present, 1 member absent (Rep. Wrangham

f\) Chairman DeKrey: We will open the hearing on SB 2296.
N
Sen. Lyson: Introduced SB 2296 (see attached e-mail messages from two sheriffs who couldn’t

make it). This is a proactive approach and I recommend a do pass.

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you.
Sen. Mathern: Introduced SB 2296 (see attached testimony) (see attached testimony of Sen.

Carolyn Nelson who couldn’t attend).

Sheree Spear: Support (see attached testimony, showed a video clip).

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you.

Randy Peterman: Support (see attached testitony),

Vice Chalr Maragos: Thank you.

Deb Mathern: Support (read attached testimony of Judy Knutson and testimony of Janet Sabol). }
.MM I ask the committee to Do Pass SB 2296,
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House Judiciary Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2296

m Hearing Date 3-5-03
- Chalrman DeKrey: Thank you.

Dr. Albert Samuelson, Psvchiatrist, practice in Bismarck for 40+ vears: I have served as a
contract physician for mental health centers and for the prison, [ wanted to talk briefly about the

T e e
LN

e e o P T

| bill, focus on the bill, and give you some idea of my perspective as a professional who has to
make some decisions about someone’s mental health. Commitment is a chaotic and very
difficult time for families. I can’t tell you how difficult it might be, It usually occurs in the midst
of a family crisis. It is not an easy procedure to go into, Ihave had a difficult time encouraging

families to take the initiative and go to the courts and initiate commitment proceedings. Families
are very reluctant to do this, even though they might be suffering very much, The problem I've
experienced in commitment proceedings, relates to 12D. When you're being cross-examined in
l,/‘.) the court, which is only appropriate by the counsel of the individual who is being committed, that
is sometimes a very difficult issue, it is imprisonment. It is a difficult decision to address. We're
talking about substantial deterioration of mental health which would predictably result in danger
to that person, others 61- property. That is a difficult call to make. The psychiatric literature, of

course, has not been very helpful in identifying accurately people who are indeed dangerous.
Usually it is a judgment call. It seems to me, from my own perspective, and the perspective of

my colleagues in the psychiatric association, that the language adds some depth, some broadness
to this. A lot of people are going to say, well there are going to ke more people committed,
infringe upon civil rights, I frankly am concerned about civil rights, too. Though I often have
differences with attorneys and such who cross-examine me in court on these issues. I feel good

about that and I am happy to experience the fact that the people are being represented. It seems,
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J that as it is written, it is very, very difficult, when a family is trying to have an alcohol/drug
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House Judiciary Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2296
Hearing Date 3-5-03

addicted individual committed, or an individual is seriously mentally ill, but has not attempted
suicide, and has not exhibited dangerousness to other people. The language as I see it, broadens
that and it helps us define better the type of individual who may need treatment. The language
addition says it is based up.n the loss of cognitive or volitional control over the person’s
thoughts or actions, based on.... We are talking about the individual’s ability to make decisions,
a serious compromise, or when there cognitive abilities are compromised. When we are talking
about cognitive, we are talking about an individual’s allity to make decisions, resources of the
brain and whether working intact, can he make decisions. That helps me as a physician address
this need a little better. I would support SB 2296, There has been an excellent case made for
this, and it was initiated in the grass roots, and I looked at this not knowing if 1 should go along
~~  withitor not, but as I looked at it and thought about it and talked about it with my colleagues, we
felt that is something we should go for, I would be happy to answer any questions.
Rep. Klemin; 12D, the focus I think is on the word dangerousness. When you examine a
person to determine whether the standard is met or not, is there a methodology that you use that’s
recognized as valid in the psychiatric community for doing this?
Dr. Samuelson: There is no nice, simple test that you can do. I wish we had one. You usually
depend on your examination of the patient, the history of the patient, the appearance of the
patient, and the mental status examination. This is akin to a physical examination that we do
with psychiatric patients, and part of that is the cognitive. The cognitive aspects of the thinking
are those impaired or not, you look at an issue called “insight”. Insight into an illness problem,
with many individuals who are seriously mentally ill, have manic depressive illness, chronic

) schizophrenia or whatever and people who are severely addicted to meth or alcohol, they have no
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insight into the fact that they are dysfunctional. So they aren’t going to acknowledge very often
that anything is wrong with them, even though they might be voicing some very bizarre
delusional beliefs, That'’s an easy call. The kinds of calls that you are talking about here, more
uncertain ones, I usually see at the back end of the situation. I see them in prison and these are
individuals who have been committed of assault, they have been tetrorizing individuals, these are
very common things. They, of course, have no insight or appreciation of what they are doing,
As ] observe these individuals, I have a better perspective of how dangerous they might be, and
put that together with the observations that have been made by the prison staff. That’s the
difficulty. We don't have that information when §ve’re here in a treatment hearing, These are
facts, these are observations that develop as we get to know the family and the individual. There
are other bills that would like to shorten the time between the treatment hearing and the
preliminary hearing, There’s a two week period (14 days) there, which is very good. I wouldn't
recommend you ever shortening that time period, because it does give us an opportunity in the
hospital to wotk with severely mentally ill patients, probably get them on medications, and after a
period of & couple of weeks, they are looking a lot better and we don’t really have to go through
the treatment hearing, or if the treatment hearing is held, the individual waives, says they are
feeling better, I am ready to go on with the treatment, and the judge can then place them in an
alternative treatment program, etc.
Rep. Klemin: This bill is trying to make a determination that there is a person requiring
treatment before you get to the situation where you are reviewing them in the prison, because at
that point, it’s past the point in time that this bill is intending to address. The new definition of

alternative treatment in this bill, when you’re looking this up, the term is not actually used in this
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Bili/Resolution Number SB 2296
Hearing Date 3-5-03

bill, it’s actually in another section that’s not being amended. I think what we’re focusing on
here is an effort to arrive at a point where you would be able to interview this person, determine
that they meet the requirements of 12D and hopefully is able to be treated with an alternative
treatment order rather than commitment to an institution.
Dr. Samuelson; That is an alternative that is used more and more, as our mental health
resources develop. Many judges will admit someone to an alternative treatment program, with
the idea that if they do not adhere to the treatment, not taking their medications, they’re not
following the prescribed treatment patterns, they will return to court and sometimes the court will
place them in an institution,
Rep. Klemin: When you are trying to make a determination of dangerous, are you also able to
interview other people, like others in the family and so on.
Dr. Samuelson: It is not possible to make a decision like that without the ancillary information,
from family members and in many cases employers and in some cases law enforcement is
involved too, to establish their behavior as being different than normal behavior.
Rep. Kretschmar; Are you aware of the statistics as to people who have mental illness and then
aren’t cured, goes into remission, is there recidivism.
Dr. Samuelson: I think the statistics have already been made, 1% of the people tight across the
world would have schizophrenia, Isuspect around 2 million people in United States have it.
These individuals are chronically ill. This isn’t something you can cure, It's like heart disease.
If you have coronary heart disease, the doctor helps the individual with medication, exercise,
with other programs that diminish the risk. That is what you do with the chronic schizophrenic.

They function well in situations where there is a supportive network of services including
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medications, regular counseling with a psychiatrist; more importantly, involvement with the case

manager, who actually walks them through some of the cognitive decisiors that have to be made
in their life. Individuals with schizophrenia have difficuity making decisions about common,
ordinary things that you and have don’t have difficulty with. They have trouble managing their
money, they are very, very vulnerable to just minor stressors, It is just unreal. I can’t say how
many people are in North Dakota. I’ve worked in this city now for the past 40 years, and I've
worked with the mental health center here, I would suspect that we have anywhere from 300-500
people with schizophrenia or are actively being treated in our human service center. This does
not include many individuals who have a severe bipolar illness, who have alcohol or drug
problems, and so on. Services are in place, and I think they are working by and large. It is very
important that the legislature fund those, make sure they are working well. It’s an illness that is
very formidable, and it detracts greatly from our economic health dollars.

Rep. Klemin: A couple of the letters that were submitted by Sen. Lyson, were from sheriffs who
were concerned that this bill might result in people being confined in county jails, because there
is no room for them in the state hospital and other facilities. As I understand the goal of this bill,
is to try and get treatment for people early on so they doun’t end up in the county jail.

Dr. Samuelson; That’s right.

Rep. Klemin: 1 think I understood you to say that, and for these letters that we received from the
sheriffs who are concerned about that, you think that’s a valid concern,

Dr. Samuelson: I would disagree with what those letters say, Because the commitment
procedures requires that within 24 hours after a petitioner enters the court, this individual has to
be examined by a mental health professional, For rural areas, that is a problem. I think these
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individuals might have to be transported to State Hospital for their evaluation. In larger cities |

like our own, we have psychiatric units in our general hospitals that serve this purpose. I would
hope that these individuals aren’t in jail for extended periods of time, because if they are, that

would be breaking the spirit of the commitment proceedings.

attached testimony).

Rep. Delmore: As I looked over the decision that you passed around, one of the questions
addressed something about the “substantial probability”. You feel that is covered in this bill?

Ms. Zdanowics: Yes, the ...
‘i ) Rep. Delmore: On page 3, under 12, it looks like it is probably where you are going, but I'm not

sure,

Ms. Zdanowics: Actually the bill does say “substantial deterioration” which would predictably
resultin .... There is one last thing that I will close with, a quote from somebody that sums up
my testimony than I could, he was a man who defended civil liberties as a member of the board

of directors of the British Columbia Civil Liberties Union, but he also has a child with

schizophrenia, “How can so much degradation and death, so much inhumanity be justified in the
name of civil liberties. It cannot. The opposition to involuntary committal and treatment betrays
a profound misunderstanding of the principles of civil liberties. Medication can free victims

from their illness, free them the bad feel of psychosis and restore their dignity, their freedom and
the meaningful of their liberties,”

. J Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in support of SB 2296,
N
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Sheree Spear: We had a videotape of a testimony from Ron Honberg, who is Legal Counsel, for

the National Alliance on Mental Illness, we can either see the video or I can hand out a letter
from him (see attached letter).

Chairman DeKrey: Submit the letter, that will be fine.

Sheree Spear: 1 would also like to hand out a letter from Police Chiof Chris Magnus in Fargo

(see attached letter).
Chalrman DeKrev: Thank you. Further testimony in support. Opposition to SB 2296.

Project: Opposed (see attached testimony).

Rep. Delmore: I guess | had many reservations about this bill when I read it over last night, so I
am pot totally surprised that you come before us speaking on the other side. However, I think
people have made a very powerful case today that this is a problem in our state. There are many
people falling through the cracks. As a legislature which meets only every other year, we're
under time constraints. If we take time to study this bill for an entire interim, it means another
two years before we can enact legislation. What I would like to know is if you have some idea of
some possible amendments that we could do to this bill, that would put us more in compliance
with what you are looking at. I would like to see something done, because I think the need is
there.

Ms. Hofmann: I would be happy to work with the committee on drafting an amendment. Ido
think there is at least one change that would improve the language, and that is a very simple
change, to change “or” in the new language to “and”, so that if you are going to look at “the loss
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of cognitive and volitional control over the person’s thoughts or actions “and” based upon acts,
threats, or patterns in the person’s treatment history.....

Rep. Delmore: I have a comment I would like to make in light of what we have seen and heard
this morning, I certainly agree that many of them have not been treated, but I don’t think that’s a
valid reason for us not to pass legislation like this to help people with mental iliness who are out
thero and are in need of help. We make policy, and if say it will be that way, it will; and I hope
that we can make sure that we can improve the plight of the mentally ill.

Ms. Hofmann: 1 appreciate that thought, and I guess my concern is the concem of our agencies,
J if you are going to do something like this, that you ensure that you are able to provide the
services that will be necessary, With the cuts that are being done within the Dept. of Human

O Services, we are very concerned about what the effect will be on the people that are currently

" receiving services, if additional people come into the system and the services aren’t there, I think |
there will be a cost to this bill, I don’t think that’s been looked at, I think it should be looked at, |
and I think that should be taken into account in the appropriations process.
Rep. Klemin: Looking at the points you addressed of the five points starting on page 2 and

continuing on page 3 of your testimony, I am trying to look at this statute as you proposed to be
amended to see if it contains the things or not. Other than in line 17 of page 3, there are a

f' number of interrelated definitions, a person requiring treatment who is mentally ill, which is also
a defined term, that there must be a serious risk of harm, which then serious of harm is defined
within subsection 12 as meaning a substantial likelihood of the four factors. You have focused
on the Wisconsin law, and the decision of the Wisconsin Supreme Coutt on the words
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“substantial probability”. Do you contend there is a difference between the terms “substantial

probebility” used in Wisconsin and the term “substantial likelihood” that’s used in North Dakota.
Mz, Hofimann; No, I don’t see a substantial difference in definitions. I think how they are
incorporated into the statute is slightly different, if you look at the Wisconsin statute, it says
dangerousness is and lists the five standards; whereas, ours talks about it in a slightly different
way, | think,

Ren. Klemin: The next question I have is on page 3, line 24, the word “or”, if we did change
that to “and” then in order for a court to find that there is a person requiring treatment, you'd

" have to meet all four of these requirements; in other words, a mental health professional or a

psychiatrist, or expert examiner, would not be able to say well there is dangerousness because of
124, but I don’t see any substantial likelihood of this person killing somebody else, if we change
that word “or” to “and”, then the psychiatrist would have to find that there is a substantial
likelihood of somebody who might meet all of the other three standards, but because they don’t
meet “b” for example of killing or inflicting serious bodily harm on another person, then they’re
not a person requiring treatment and that’s the way I would interpret that if you put the word
“and” in there, do you disagree with that,

Ma. Hofmann: Yes, I do. IfIunderstand correctly, to determine whether a person poses a
substantial risk of harm and is dangerous, there are four sections within our current law that
should be looked at. Subsection d is only one of those. You don’t need to meet all four of them,
What I am proposing is that within subsection d, the language that’s been added “based upon the
loss of cognitive or volitional control over the person’s thoughts or actions and based upon acts,
threats, or patterns, etc.....s0 you are looking at the full range of factors to determine whether the
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a2 | eriteria within that subsection is met and that you do not solely look at the loss of cognitive or

-
e et i AT e LT

D

volitional control. ! think that's a dangerous road to go on, it's overly broad, it’s vague, it’s
going to bring too many,vpeople into a very intrusive process that don’t need to be there.

Rep. Klemin: So you are suggesting then that the “or” on line 27, “or based upon acts,...” that
should be caanged to “and”.

Ms. Hofmann: Yes. I think that would improve the language considerably.

Rep. Klemin: Then if we did that, what other amendment do you suggest. That's a fairly simple

one to do.

) " Ms. Hofuann: I am very concerned about the language regarding a person’s ability to consent,
because it does conflict with another statute within the code, and because this is a process that

O will be used for emergency commitments, as well as involuntary commitments, you're giving the

. decision making authority about whether someone has the capacity to consent to people who may
not be able to make that decision properly. I'm not saying that there couldn’t be a better way to
include some language like that, but I am uncomfortable with the language as it is. I would be

willing to give that some thought. I think we should put some protection in there, by requiring

that someone sat down with the person and explained to them the disadvantages and advantages,
| | and they were then determined unable to make an informed choice. At least there is someone

) | | sitting down with the person, you know that’s occurring and that they are being given the

- information to make the decision. As it stands now, with the current wording, I would have real

serious concemns about it.

Rep. Klemin: Section 33 deals with legal incompetence, which is not necessarily the same as
D inability to consent based on the person’s mental condition.
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7 ~ Ms Hofmann: I agree, but I think that by putting that language in subsection d that you are |

incorporating the issue of the ability to consent into that definition and I think that’s improper.

e R

Rep. Klemin: This is the second time this bill has been heard. It was heard over in the Senate.
Now you are suggesting that there should be some amendments. Did you propose those
amendments over in the Seaate.
Mas. Hofmann: We did not propose amendments, because we were opposed in general, We are
opposed to this bill. I can’t state that strongly enough. If you are intending to pass this, I guess I
am willing to make concessions that these changes would improve it, I think our current statute
can address adequately the needs of the people in our communities if there is adequate training
and implementation of the law. If there are changes that need to be made, I strongly believe that
O we do need to study this and the effect on the system. I know there have been some concemns

expressed about the meth, problem, whether this statute can adequately address that, they are

downsizing the hospital, the system is changing, and we probably need to do that anyway, Will
this change, address the problems that have been expressed. I don’t think so. Idon’t think this is
going to solve the problems that are out there. l

Rep. Klemin: What will solve these problems. _ _ ;
Ms. Hofinann: I think a very good look at the commitment statute and probably some :
significant changes in the whole scene that we put together. I cant say without having that study
and having input from all the parties and what that would mean. Because there are people out
there that have additional information that know how things are operating, how they need to
operate them, things that I don’t have; but I know there are concerns from a wide variety of

| J persons that it’s not working the way it should and there are changes needed. I agree with the
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proponents of this bill in terms of outcome. I want the same things they do, but I don’t think this
will achieve that.

Chairman DeKrey: If we don’t do anything, there will be no outcome.

Rep. Klemin: An observation, if we do pass this bill, whether it gets further amendments or not,
and do the study, wouldn’t both acts be something that we could try to work on resolving this.
Ms Hofmann: Yes, I suggest that we would be willing to live with this bill if there are to be the
amendments made that I suggested. We do support the study in addition, if you pass this with the
amendments.

Rep. Delmore: 1 guess that's where its at. I still come back to my point. Can we afford for
people to fall through the cracks for the next two years, Maybe this isn’t perfect, but I think it
addresses some of the issues of mental health and the people who need help.

Mas. Hofmann: That’s obviously a decision you need to make. I'm here to give you information
and another point of view, and I hope that is going to be helpful in your decision-making process.
Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in opposition to SB 2269,

Ed Dyer, Attorney: Opposed (see attached testimony).

Rep. Delmore: 1 think the constitutionality, whether it passes, will be decided by a higher
authority than either you or I will. My question to you is can we always successfully define
based on serious risk to yourself or others.

Mur. Dyer; 1haven’t studied this thoroughly constitutionally, but I am familiar with the
Wisconsin case that has been discussed, but I haven't studied it. I think the problem isit’s a
balancing between the needs of the individual in society vs. the individual’s liberty being
deprived. What I have a problem with more, is that it’s just a matter of a psychiatrist saying this
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person could become dangerous, The psychiatrist could say, this person if not treated is

dangerous, incites specific actions in the individual, My experience is that the court’s generally
rely on the opinion of the expert examiner in mental iliness case, generally the psychiatrist. It
still has to be something facts based opinion.

Rep. Klamin: As I understood your testimony, you’re primarily raising the concern that this is
possibly unconstitutional, but yet I hear you say in response to Rep, Delmore that you have not
actually studied the issue of the constitutionality of this; however, you can’t point out anything to
us that’s definitive as to why is might actually be unconstitutional, is that right.

Mur. Dyer; Well, I haven’t had the time to do study, but the basic principle at the Supreme Court
has pointed out, there has to be a serious risk of harm before you can deprive the liberty of these
people and put them in a hospital situation. Whether you can do that without facts, I think that is
problematic.

Rep. Klemin: The issue about the requirement that there must be some facts to support the
expert examiner’s opinion. You have, I'm sure, cross-examined many psychiatrists in civil
commitment proceedings on their opinion. Do the courts not require as part of that opinion,
when it is given by the expert examiner in court, that it be based on some relevant facts,

My. Dyer: 1 think the distinction is if you look at the example of the individual who is substance
committed, schizophrenic and psychotic. Under current law, assuming they are not suicidal, or
going to harm somebody, if they are delusional, my experience would be the psychiatrist would
say it fits under subsection 12¢ of the definition, to carry it further and say, these are the things
that this individual is capable of, that harm is likely to occur. Because a person has delusions
about certain people out to get them, etc. The proposed amendment shott circuits the process,
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you just have to show the person, in the mental process, is that you loss some volition control
without showing because of that they pose a harm to themsclves or others.

Rep. Kivmin: That’s a kind of different jump than what you were just saying sbout facts.
Certainly isn't loss of cognidve and volitional control over the person’s thoughts have to be
shown by some facts.

Mr. Dyer;: Yes, it still does, but the facts that someone showing that there is a serious potential
seriousness of harm, not just that the individual will, but because of their iliness they pose a
threat to themselves or others.

Rep, Klemin: The statute says that it still requires a substantial detetioration in mental health
which would predictably result in dangerousness to that person, others or property. That's still

O required. Is that what you just said, you’ve got to have that?
"™ MrDyen: Yes

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you. Further testimony in opposition to SB 2296.

testimony).

Rep. Klemin: It seems to me that the thrust of your testimony here is that we don’t want to
hospitalize people who don’t really need it, or against their wishes or that type of thing and that
we need to look at a}temaﬁves to hospitalization, But I guess I don’t see that this bill really

changes anything on that aspect because we still have section 25-03.1-21, which deals with the
involuntary treatment order which specifically requires the State Hospital or treatment facility, to
provide a report to the court assessing the availability and appropriateness of treatment programs
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~ other than hospitalization, and the courts have to consider that before requiring hospitalization,

How does this bill change any of that.

Dr, Belanger; It changes it by sliding the standard to a more mentalistic point. What it does is it
sets up the psychologist and the psychiatrist to be able to really know what is really going on
inside the mind of another person and allows this with less behaviora! evidence. For example, I
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do about 100 night call a year at the State Hospital and we get meth. people coming in quite
regularly becanse of the widespread nature of its usage and its extremely deleterious effects. I
have never had difficulty in establishing behaviorally based evidence that warrants the
commitment. That’s my concern, is that the risk from behaviorally based evidence to a more

mentalistic approach, particularly when we have an explosion of information based on more
(q competing power to create better databases and find out what are the actual risk factors to a finer

" degree of specificity.
Rep. Klemin: You're the psychologist, and you're examining these people to see, to make a

| determination as an expert examiner, whether a person does require treatment under the statutes,
‘ I don’t see anything in this amendment that requires you to weigh one factor more than another
| o factor. Aren’t you still able to make your determination the way that you would regardless of

what the statute says, it doesn’t say that if they find this or don’t find that, that you can’t reach the

same conclusions you do now, based on the same evidence you use now. How does this change

that?

Dr. Belanger: What you waut me to be able to do here is to know whether that person over

there, no longer has volitional control over their thoughts, Now, if you ask me to do that, I will
“D adhere to the standard that says that I must see some evidence of this, Example of this, a patient
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tore up the room, tearing up the room because they were looking for the electronic listening

devices. That's good behavioral evidence that something is going on there, but if someone says
| to me, for example, so and so, my brother is really out to lunch, he believes in ET's. The brother
| is brought in and is managing his affairs in lfe, he's running his business and all the rest of it, 50
what if he believes in ET’s. So what if he has some very deeply irrational beliefs.
Rep. Klemin; Looking at this bill and the language that we’re using, you’re saying that this bill
requires you to determine loss of cognitive or volitional control based on evidence, but I think if

we made the amendment proposed by Ms. Hofimann, that bill would then require that you must
see evidence of loss of volitional control; whereas the bill right now as it presently reads, uses the
word “or” which then wouldn’t make that requirement. I think if we put the word “and” in, as is

‘/"\ suggested here, then that’s the precise problem you've got. Whereas if we continue with the
word “or”, it does allow you the latitude to look at other things.

Drx. Belanger: But it also allows other people the latitude to look just at the thoughts; this is
what JCHL, the Joint Committeo for Declaratation of Health Care organizations would suggest
that we should be doing. The loss of cognitive or volitional control over the person’s thoughts as

evidenced by, and then you have to be able to show where is the evidence, is it in the vegetative
signs of the patient, is it in the loss of sleep, is it in the disturbance of thought, is it in the social
functioning, are they no longer able to hold a job, were they ever able to hold a job, etc.
Bm-.intldi Isn’t that the reason to have a hearing processes, if the claims aren’t substantiated,
they are let go.

Drx. Belanger: Yes, what I am hoping to be able to persuade you to do, is to consider that we can

\ ﬂ\) improve the accuracy with which we do the whole thing if we still down and study it. We've
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~ been asked, for example, to accept numbers in New York and other states, Those numbers are

very valid, maybe they are very good; on the other hand what would the numbers be in a rural

state like North Dakota.

Rep, Onstad: Those numbers that happen in other states, it doesn’t involve a hearing process,
Dr. Belanger: Absolutely true.

Rep. Onstad: So if you just throw all that out, that’s why the hearing process is in the bill to

establish that, and if you can’t establish the fucts, I don’t think they would be there,

Dr. Belanger: It is a lot harder to do to the professional ot scientific certainty if people are

| allowed to say, well the patient lacks insight. How do you know a patient lacks insight. Because
I examined him and therefore he lacks insight. He lacks insight as evidenced by what? The only

m thing that should really pass is that he lacks insight, as evidenced by the fact it was January 14, it

\
] B
LN

was 5 degrees below zero, he walked outside without his shoes on, because he thought that he
had magical power. That will work. But that’s what I'm still arguing for, is that the language
from my point of view doesn’t provide enough protection against somebody winging it on the
basis of the argument of authority. I know the petson’s mental state because [ am a professional.
Rep, Onstad: It just seems like you are cutting down the credibility of your professional.

Dr. Belanger: No I am not. What I am attacking is the sense of being able to do this on the
basis of guesstamation about another person’s mental state. I assure you, the profession and
myself, are more than adequate to come up with a behavioral test and other evidence that justifies
this, and to swing that to a place where people can introduce standard on the basis of what they
think the other person thinks, gets to be a bit too vague.
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Rep. Klemin: Just to follow up on this point again, based upon the loss of cognitive or

volitional control over the person’s thoughts or actions. That’s the new language that’s being
proposed, and what you’re saying is, as ] understand you, that should be evidenced by some
objective facts.

Dr. Belanger: Exactly.

Rep. Klemin; If you don't have objective facts, then all you have...

Dr. Belanger: All you have is opinion, if you don’t have facts, you don’t have an expert opinion

anymore.
Rep. Kleraln: What kind of objective facts then would we be looking at, say if we were to put
some additional language into this, to require evidence of objective factors, what kind of

objective factors are we talking about.
Dr. Belanger; Disturbance in vegetative signs is a clear objective fact that's highly predicted.

That's disturbance in sleep, disturbance in appetite, change in level of functioning. For ¢xample,
you start out in school, you're doing fairly well, all of a sudden you throw out all the furniture of

your room, one presumes you’re no longer attending class, your grades have plummeted, you

have adopted a most unusual diet that’s not established to be good for your health, All of these

things are out there as behaviors to be observed.

Rep. Delmore; I think they did talk about it when they talk about being based on facts or
actions, threats, history, etc. Idon’t think you have to construe it in the least possible manner. As
a trained professional, obviously, you make these calls all the time.

Dr. Belauger; Going the other way around, can some other professional construe it on the basis
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Rep, Delmore: You think there are that many in your profession that would take it in the least
restrictive way in order to take someone’s rights away and incarcerate them.

Dr. Belanger: I took no position on the relative incidence within the profession. The position
that I took was that it is entirely possible.

Chairman DeKrey: Thank you for appearing. Further testimony in opposition to SB 2296.

s [am

not amanberofanyorganization, I am advocating for these principles against the course of
psychiatry. I have a lot of ideas for reform and for health care in a holistic way, The bad news is
thattheproblemthatwemhereto»talk about are not that we can't get people into the system,
but the system itself is the problem. I, too, care very deeply about people with problems and who
are troubled. The trouble is with the mental health care system, most people are not really
mentally ill; they are spiritually and emotionally ill, They are called mentally ifl and treated with
drugs. Now I know that everybody here cares, and that you are frustrated as I am frustrated,
because we have a lot of people who are not getting help. Right now, the only help really
available is the mental heaith care. If we have somebody who we are worried about, we’re not
given alternatives to mental health care. For myself, a critic of the system, helped get a friend
just a year ago, into a psychiatric unit because I was afraid for his life. Right now that is all that
is available. But there are growing concerns with the system, this may be the first time that many
of you may hear this, but it won't be the last, I am a supporter of all the other people that
testified before me. 1 came alone. I didn’t know that they would be here. I am in support of
psychology and psychologists. It is in the area of psychiatry where the problems are occurring, I
know you want to do something to help people. We want to prevent suicide, and you don't like
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" 0 see people troubled. I feel very much for Sheree, here, and her son. So to talk sbout what else

could be done. The trouble is that somebody is in trouble, and all we can do is try to get them
into the hospital. What would be better to have support groups available for parents to call, such
as Tough Love, etc. That is not being done right now, but that is something that could be

e e e ama N

strengthened. So many problems in mental health care, for instance, misdiagnosis. As the
psychiatrist testified, 1% of the population is schizophrenic usually. Most people in mental
health care are not schizophrenic, and even for them recovery is limited, restricted, because it is

not holistic, meatal health care is not holistic. I would just compare it to a baseball diamond.
You start out here at the plate getting help, we may either ask for help or we may be committed
to get help by family members, another problum is that a lot of families are dysfunctional. You

{/j have a person who is vulnerable because of their family situation, perhaps they are goingto
" exaggerate the trouble in the family to stand out as the worst one, and the families are not
typically treated in mental health care. So what mental health care does is combines intervention
| with drugs and hospitalization. But usually the help stops there at first base. I've been in
treatment myself, addiction treatment, abuse therapy and mental health. If you keep going,

second base would be education and reeducation therapy, third base would be support groups,
and reentry into the community would be a home run. I haven’t made a home run yet because
I'm not acceptable, with a label of major mental illness. We have a lot of good things going on
in human services, but we just need to keep going and the answers are not in mental health.
They're not there, we have to look elsewhere, we have to build other services and community

help and support. There is a great stigma with the label, because as the psychiatrist testified, as

| "MJ the lady from the East testified about the label; people with mental illness are seen as not able to
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7 take care of themselves, not able to make decisions, their minds don’t work, dependent forever,

we are considered static, not able to grow and change. Addiction treatment is for certain process,

abusothmpyisaoeminpmem,youmgiventoolutousc,youmaynotchoosctouu’man,

it’s not a guarantee, people have their own will, but you are given tools. In mental health care, o
you are not even given the tools you need to recover to become independent. They do not

believe that is possible, and there is too much dependence on drugs. They think drugs are the
answer to everything. I don’t really expect very much here today. I wanted to speak my peace, |
speak my truth and appreciate the opportunity to do that. It is still a partially free country for me, | ’
I’m here. I’mabletoaqu._lébn’texpectyoutomdmmdwhatlfminngtotellyou,
bmneitmaybemeﬁ:ﬁﬁme_you‘vehmdsuchthings.

O Chairman DeKrey: 'I‘himky:’m. M«tesﬁmonyinoppodtion. We will close the hearing.
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2003 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2296
House Judiciary Committee
Q Conference Committee
Hearing Date 3-18-03
Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
1 XX 2.9-9.6

A -

Committee Clerk Sim@%&”%

Migutes: 10 members present, 3 members absent (Rep. Grande, Wrangham, Eckre).

Rep. Kiemin: Bxplaiﬂed the amendments. I move the amendments.

Rep. Marsgos: Seconded.
Voice Vote: Carried.

Rep. Klemin: I move a Do Pass as Amended.

Rep. Delmore: Seconded.

Chairman DeKrey: What are the committee’s wishes in regard to SB 2295,

10 YES 0 NO 3 ABSENT DO PASS AS AMENDED CARRIER: Rep. Klemin
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2003 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. 724

House Judiciary Committee

D Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number 5 O ‘/97 590 / « 8340

Action Taken Do Paoo 4, W

Motion Made By EM /(k Miw Seconded By ,24{ o“&ﬂ'ww

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman DeKrey ¥ | Rep. Delmore <
Vice Chairman Maragos v Rep. Eckre }!ﬁ
Rep. Bemnstein v Rep. Onstad
Rep. Bochning 4
Rep. Galvin i
Rep. Grande 0.7
Rep. Kingsbury v
Rep. Klemin £
Rep. Kretschmar N
Rep. Wrangham b

Total (Yes) - /O No o
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Senate Judiéiary Committee Testimony
Senator Tim Mathern
Senate Bill 2296

Chairman Traynor and members of the Senate Judiciary Committee, My name is
Tim Mathern, Senator from District 11 in Fargo. I sponsored Senate Bill 2296
because I believe there are persons who suffer from mental illness who do not
receive treatment early enough.

Amendments are being offered to make this bill as narrow as possible to meet the
objectives but not violate people’s rights to refuse treatment when they are not in
need of treatment.

Members of the Committee I believe this bill is urgent. From my experience
working in a large parish in Fargo I know people wander the streets needing
treatment but not getting it. Some individuals get better using medication and then
go off the medication when they feel better but then need to be hospitalized to
reestablish the medication pattern and its benefit. Far better that the medication
use continue without interruption. Also from my experience in the Appropriations
Committee I have learned that there are far too many people in prison who have
committed crimes when they were in need of mental health services. With this bill
we're just trying to make it possible to get people who are clearly in desperate
need of help (delusions, psychotic) and the care they need before they become
dangerous to themselves or others. This bill adds language to the Centuty Code to
allow courts to use the loss of control over ones thoughts as a basis for predicting
dangerousness to self or others. Otherwise, with no expanded definition, the
assumption by some courts has been that a violent or suicidal act is required to
prove or predict dangerousness. Again, I believe this bill is urgent. We must stop
needless incarcerations, suicidal deaths, and personal suffering as soon as possible

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee there are others who wish to testify
and I ask that you permit Ms. Sheree Spear to testify next so that you get a full
description of the need for this bill and orderly introduction of proponents to
respect the time constraints you are under.

I ask for your support of SB 2296 with amendments. Thank you for your
consideration,
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| 30427.0102 Prepared by the Legislative Councll staff for
| Title, Senator Mathern
0 February 5, 2003
“ PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO, 2296

Page 1, line 9, replace "|ncludeg” with "may Include®

Page 1, line 10, remove * i -03,1-18.1"

Page 3, line 27, remove "risk of logg"

Page 3, line 28, remove " 's ablll { ntly §
m.

Page 4, line 1, replace "petson's inability 1o make g" with "gtfect of the person's mental
’ mndnlqn_znmnmm&amm.&mm' |

arson's abil

Page 4, line 2, remove "rational decision about the need for ir:.:tment”

Page 5, line 1, after "medication” insert “on an inpatient or outpatient basis”

Renumber accordingly
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Senate Judiciary Committee Testimony
Sheree Spear
Senate Bill 2296

My name is Sheree Spear. It is not easy to commit someone. And it shouldn’t be.

But it shouldn’t be impossible when everyone can see that a person is delusional,
paranoid, or psychotic and clearly in need of help. But that is exactly the situation that I
and many family members in ND have found themselves in when trying to get help for a
severly ill loved one,

Our objective with this bill is not to make it less difficult to get people across the board
into the hospital for an evaluation. Instead this bill has been honed to focus very
specifically on getting treatment for those who are too sick to help themselves.

O 18 months ago my 22 yr old son became delusional and paranoid and seemed suicidal,
I wanted to get him into the hospital involuntarily because he wasn’t willing to go on his

own. His paranoia was too strong for him to overcome and he believed the nurses would

try to poison him. So a few months later he busted the glass on a gun cabinet, loaded a

gun to kill himself. Only by a miracle did a family member come in at exactly the right

moment and interrupted his suicide plan.

My son almost died because this law requires family to not only PREDICT but
| PROVE what an unpredictable, unstable person will do. Once they have a history of
violent acts and so on it becomes much easier. But when it's a first time psychotic break
you have no prior act or event to point to substantiate a claim of potential dangerousness,

That's where there’s a little gap in the law. Getting first time help for people before they

O become dangerous,
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I've heard it said that we shouldn’t piece meal changes to this law, But this law
dgesn’t need wholesale revision. It is one of the most well-crafted laws in the country, !
Legislators did their job well when they passed this law. The 5 attorneys who drafted or
reviewed this bill, two of which are in ND, believe this is good legislation — and needed.
How any other aspect of the law may be affected by the proposed changes has been
thoroughly considered.
In the course of discussion, I explained to an individual, “Look all I'm trying to do is
prevent tragedies, prevent some deaths,” This person replied, “I don’t kniow of anyone
who's DIED!” (meaning of mental illness) Thig coming from someone who lives in ND
which has the highest suicide rate in the nation — not just for children ages 10-14, but also
ﬁ for adolescents ages 15-19! In the nation! Could there be a correlation between those
s’ statistics and the fact that there hasn’t been a movement in this state toward assisted
treatment for those too sick to realize they need help? A movement toward getting
people help before they become dangerous — or toward keeping them stable?

I wish I lived in a world where people didn’t die or hurt someone because of untreated
mental illness. If that was the world I lived in mentally I would probably be proposing
we just “study” this for a couple years. Two years, three, 5 years — no rush, But I live in
this world. And I know that if this bill isn’t passed this session It will be a death sentence
for someone, |

In this state people die. Like jerome Emo from Jamestown who hung himself last

October after his wife spent the summer trying to get him help to no avail. She was

’ willing to come here and speak but I'm speaking on her behalf today.

} ‘\l ]
- ._) In this state PREVENTABLE tragedies occur. Jeffrey Scott of Fargo was just !
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sentenced this past Dec. to 20 years in the Bismarck prison. He shot his mom's fiancée
in the neck, leaving him a quadriplegic and on a vent for life. His mom told me he had
paranoid schizophrenia and they tried for years to get him help but he’s gone all this time
with no medicine. People say you have to wait until they do something.

The people of ND will pay about $500,000 or more over the next 20 years to house
Jeffrey Scott, We will all pay for the medical care and disability payments for the person
he shot. There is a HUGE cost to society for untreated mental illness. Elaine Little, Dir,
Of Corrections for ND said that she, personally, believes this bill will make a difference
(as do most in law enforcement, and other areas as well). She said, “With all the people

we see coming through our doors every year with untreated mental illness, we can’t help

h but wonder if maybe they wouldn’t have committed that crime had they gotten help.”
The final point I'd like to make before quickly running through a couple changes, and
touching on the process map attached is this, What about the issue of Civil Rights?
Some say you are taking away people’s right if you require them to take medicine when
they say they don't want to.
First, we have to distinguish between those who are able to act out of their own feel

will and those who cannot. A delusional person is not acting out of their own will,

Secondly, I think some people have been waving the Civil Rights flag for so long
they've forgotten what it means. Life, Liberty and the Pursuit of Happiness. Jeffrey
Scott lost his liberty for 20 years because he didn’t get proper care for his medical

problem. The man he shot almost lost his life. And someone lingering in a state of

R e

v | delusion is unable to exercise his/her civils rights and certainly is being denied the right
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to pursue happiness, like they would be able to with the better meds available today. No,

the civil rights of these people are being denied when they are denied care for their

disability.

Comments on language.

Amendment adds “on an in-patient or out-patient basis” to the end of sentence in first

line of section on Court ordered treatment with prescribed medication.,

‘Ihis section became effective in 1993, after the shift from hospitalization to community

based care, Itis the legislative intent that this apply to in-patient or out-patient, The

legislative intent of this Chapter is that the least resuictivc treatment plan be used.

Clearly out-patient, independent living is much less restrictive than hospitalization. In
ﬁ fact, these out-patient court orders are what make it possible for people to live outside the

hospital and have a shot at some of the good stuff you and I enjoy in life.

Under “Person Requiring Treatment” we are providing clarity. We are saying if a
person has clearly lost control of his or her thoughts or actions, that can be used as a
basis for determining potential dangerousness. While some jurisdictions may already do
this, out of tradition, this is not interpreted consistently through-out the State. The best
way to ensure that it is done is by providing clarification, because judges can only work
with what ig in front of them, .

MAP:
J Safeguards are in place to protect against “railroading”.
- HMOs pressure to hospitals to not keep people for treatment.

In the 4 versus 7 day situalion, the petition wasn't filed by the hospital, so the
current process wasn't followed.

3 ’
=

St S USRS

s

A 'M‘r# ’W

The micrographic images on this fiim nro accurate reproductions of records delivered to Modern !
nformatfon Syst
'. ml:ig?d i:h t’hoirn’um course of business. The photographic process meets standards of the Awer!osn u?t‘l::l ':&'3553: ':‘R.'?fm"e‘f ' '
r archival microffim. NOYICE: 1f the filmed im sbove is less legible than this Notice, it fs due to the quality of the

documint being {1
m%mm inlailgs




RIS N MR iV
g (2

o'

e T T T

| Attachment to Testimony for Sheree Spear
| Senate Bill 2296

CONTACTS MADE

Nuinerous Consumers and Family Members
Legislators
Karen Larson, Dir, Mental Health & Substance Abuse
Jeff Stenseth, SE Human Service Center
P Jerry Kemmet, Dir. Bureau of Criminal Investigation
Sheriff Busching, Pres, Sheriff’s Assoc., Williston
Sheriff Rudnick, Fargo
Sheriff Thomas, Grafton
Police Chief Bruce Kemmet, Devils Lake
Police Chief Chris Magnus, Fargo
Sheriff Kim Murphy, Wahpeton
m Burch Burdick, St. Attorney, Cass Cnty
| ’ Fritz Fremgen, St. Attorney, Jamestown
Thomas Mayer, Asst. Atty. Gen.
Elaine Little, Dir, Dept. of Corrections
Dr. Samuelson, Psychiatry
Dr. Glenn Johnson, Jamestown
Dick Weber, MHA
Mike Kaspari, First Step Recovery, MHA |
Allen Stenehjem, MHA
Susan Helgeland, MHA |
Barb Berghart, Pres. Bismarck National Alliance for Mental Illness (NAMI) |
Janet Sabol, NW ND NAMI
Theresa Larson, Dir. Protection & Advocacy (P&A)
Corrine Hoffman, P&A
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o Senate Judiciary Committee¢ Testimony
' Randy Petermann
& Senate Bill 2296

'/-\ . Without medication I also couldn’t keep other people out of my head. Their ideas and

,,,,,

\ - medicine and got professional guidance and support. I just wish I'd gotten help sooner

" (ANSL) for m;h!v-l microfiim. NOYICE:
document

Chairman Traynor and Senators,

My name is Randy Petermann. I've had paranoid disorder for over 25 years. I support

this bill because it will save lives, I know this because of my own experience.

Wheﬁ I was younger, I knew my thoughts were messed up. I was beating myself up
inside all the time and 1 didn’t want to live. When you’re suicidal you are so cm.otional
that you want to go on, yet it's so painful to go on. Killing yourself is the only ticket out.

| You want it over. And when you're like that you’re not figuring things out. You're just
going on impulse, Things are happening so fast when you're suicidal. I was doing things

like endangering people by driving wrecklessly. I was in terrible shape inside.

thoughts became mine. ‘I nezded people to help me rationalize things out. They helped ;
me with this in the hospital. 3ut, if no one had taken the first step to get me help I'd be |
dead now, because I didn’t know how to help myself,

Some people fight going to the hospital because they think they’re right. They think

they should die. Most people are too afraid to admit they need help. Once they get that

sick — anything is hard. When you get that sick you think the doctors are against you,
too. And there is the stigma. It’s still hard for me to admit I was in the hospital because
of the stigma,

I fought medication at first, like a lot of people do. But I realize now that my life

started to take positive steps, to get better, when I had to start taking antipsychotic
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because after my second break I lost some of my raemory abilities,

When you have an gpisode it is like an electrical storm occurs in your brain, It Idoes
cause damage to the nerves and can cause lesions, or scars to form on the brain tissue.
The longer a person goes without the medicine they need the more cognitive skills they
lose and the harder it is for them to recover.

Mental illness is a problem with the connections in the brain. It’s a medical problem,
It is not kind to let someone with a problem like this go without help.

My son inherited this neurological problem. When he got sick we could all see it. But
we couldn’t get him in the hospital because people didn’t think he was dangerous. But he

was a danger to himself and he almost committed suicide. Why does someone have to

become dangerous before they can get help? It isn’t asking a lot to be able to get
m someone help when they are that sick.

This bill will save lives. People that are against it think it is wrong to put someone in
the hospital if they &on’t want to go. But when someone is that sick they aren’t thinking
clearly. They can’t help themselves. At that time they might not think they want to go to
the hospital. But no one wants to kill themselves ¢ither.

Thank you.
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Senate Judiclary Committee Testimony
r Judy Knutson
b Senate Bill 2296
My name is Judy Knutson, My brother was diagnosed with a schizophrenic break-

down over 20 years ago. I can’t even begin to describe the nightmare we’ve been

through over the past 20 some years trying to get him help. There are many things that
need to change in the system so our family members can get decent treatment. This
includes access to information about medical care, supportive and structured living
arrangements, and more inclusion of family in team planning for after care.

But this bill is so important because it all starts right here. It starts with getting and
keeping them on their medicine. People who are opposed to that concept should ask:
“Why would a doctor prescribe medication if it wasn’t needed?” They need to look at

0 what does the medicine do and to care deeply about what happens to the person if they
aren’t getting proper medicine and care.

My brother has lived as a homeless person for years. He’s been beaten and left for
dead on more than one occasion. He’s scared to live on the street. He doesn’t want to
live on the street because he said, “It’s worse now — a lot of them are on drugs out there.”
He has frozen his feet. He was suspended from the homeless shelter for violent behavior
so he was freezing out on the streets, trying to warm up by going into businesses.

Without medication people with paranoia think people are against them, people with
schizophrenia hear voices telling them scarey, terrible things about themselves and

others. The voices can be very loud and many at the same time, Because of all this they

may become violent at times just in an effort to try to defend themselves. But they are

very vulnerable and easily preyed upon out on the streets.

~

L SN N SR MR TR G U bt Ly SO . . . . N . o Lo TS PPTIE P IRRS SPTITER B R BRS) U

o . ¥ A O W AETT I N IR T TN T aRane] “l . R iy Wt e by R T R T L v S RTINS A1) SO PR K el L) sy 5

_“1“5}“_ T ) I T S T R P I P e e S S S RV O S T A T b aghaarde

/ !‘. : ' ; AP
A

LT

\

' ‘ tion Systems for microfiiming end
11w are sccurate reproductions of records delivered “rdn mnio'r‘nt hl:\f;m‘n‘ or mle or wlerel lmwtuto

aphic fmages on this 0ss meets stands the
' mﬁ%mmw?. x'mmﬁf“uo?':c?? ’m'ho‘mm t‘o:.rrwlc pro'c. Less Lagible than this Notlce, it s due to the quatity of
va .

* (ANSL) for ar
t betng f{imed. N
documn Q% \D\QQ&Q%___

R « Operator’s ¥lgnature

. v
AP

!
Lo
L
o
v

I
g
1
A

;




- The truth is that the Humane Society does a better job of protecting animals than our

society does of protecting people with mental illness! If a pet was out getting cold and
unfed, the owners could be brought up on charges. More value is placed on animals than
on our family members! All these organizations that say they protect people with mental
illness — why aren’t they protecting them? They sit behind their desks with no intimate
knowledge of the reality that people are actually living every day, Do any of them have a

family member who is suffering like this with mental illness?

Some groups claim to be protecting people by saying you can’t make someone take
medicine if they don’t want to. Is it more important to leave people alone than to get .
them help and keep them alive?
This lack of compassion and negligence has gone on far too long. My brother himself
Q said, “At least YOU know people like me need help and we shouldn’t be treated like
animals.” People who do not act responsibly in helping those with severe mental illness

get proper medical care may start seeing themselves facing wrongful death lawsuits from

family members. This sort of thing hasn’t been done historically. But I think you’ll find
that as family members have become more educated about the true medical basis for their
family member’s illness, the more outraged we’ve become when our loved ones are
denied treatment,

And treatment goes beyond a hospital evaluation. It means continuing care because
serious mental illness is chronic and on-going. A major problem currently is how

difficult it is to get a long-term court order for medication. This means they are required

to take their medication as an out-patient so they can stay stable. Even if you manage by

some miracle to get a 1 year court-order requiring them to take medication, then after a
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m year — then what? Wait until something bad happens again? This bill is good because it
allows loss of control of one’s thought or actions to be considered when determining if
the person qualifies for treatment.

If people can’t get medication for their illness they just get worse and worse. My

brother cycled in and out of treatment so many times that is has taken it’s toll on him.

H i His case worker said, “He just doesn’t get as well as he used to.”
- Please pass bill 2296. It will help some people who are too sick to help themselves,
' | get decent care and maybe even a decent life. A person shouldn’t be subjected to a life

unfit for an animal just becuause they were unlucky enough to inherit a mental illness.

Anyone who opposes this because they think it’s wrong to make someone take medicine

doesn’t truly understand paranoia, they don’t understand that delusional people don’t
O make the same choices that they would if they were on medication. Please vote ‘do pass’

on bill 2296, Thank you.

AR L i e it L 8 R s e st s e st e TR e
mw»um;x‘xmN%Smmﬂm;@ﬂ_m,gw(,‘}wW@g?gawﬁwﬁwﬁmﬁww 3 ‘M‘a’ﬁéﬁw%&’%}mﬁm TR N (o
QU MCERE KR _"H\" blusichin b d, WA e e,

The nicrographic imeges on this f{im are sccurate reproductions of records delivered to Nodern Informaticn Systems for nlcromum;\d;

. wore fiimsd n the lar course of business, The photograghic
T ) ‘ Brocess meats standerds of the American Nat{
(ANS1) for archival microfflm. NOTICE: 1f thy #!(med image sbove s Lless legible than this Notfce, it {8 d:‘:o.:m&s‘:;tﬁ:

t being 1{imed,
% \nlale3

*hanhaan

o ‘ * Dparator’s Signature

!
N
b




' ! L bel A0 B G

m the nature and treatment of severe mental illnesses.

The
. re
' (ANS!

¢

M s

ALV e Ay

C bt N1 e

Senate Judiciary Committee
Chairman: Senator John T. Traynor ‘
February 5, 2003 i ‘

Testimony by Mary T. Zdanowicz, JD, Executive Director
and
Rosanna M. Esposito, JD
Treatment Advocacy Center

Senate Bill 2296

Position: Support
The Treatment Advocacy Center is a national non-profit organization, located in
Arlington, Virginia. We provide technical support to states nationwide that are updating their

mental health treatment laws to reflect the advances that have been made in our understanding of

North Dakota’s current mental health law is one of the most well-crafted in the nation.
Senate Bill 2296 makes relatively minor but functionally important changes to the current law. 1
There are three changes that merely clarify the existing current law, and one substantive change.

I will briefly describe the three points of clarification and then Rosanna Esposito will
address the one substantive change. First, SB 2296 amends the definition of “person requiring
treatment,” by removing the additional defined term “serious harm to self, others or property.” |
The statute’s definition within a definition is confusing. The superfluous language can be

removed without changing the meaning of the defined term “person requiring treatment” while

simultaneously making it clear that four specific criteria are operative in determining whether a

person requires treatment. Removing this unnecessary language will remove the confusion that !

) now exists in determining when treatment intervention is allowed.
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Second, the term “alternative treatment order” which is in the existing statute is defined.

It is clear from the context in the statute that an “alternative treatment order” is court ordered

PR

outpatient treatment and that the medication procedure applies. The definition makes this clear,
Finally, the North Dakota Supreme Court has held that direct evidence of overt violence
or an expressed intent to commit violgnce is not required in determining the likelihood of serious
bodily harm. The Court’s ruling is incorporated in the statute for clarity.
The one substantive change incorporated in SB 2296 updates the “substantial
deterioration in mental health” standard to make it consistent with the most progressive standards

in the country. The language for this substantive amendment is drawn from Wisconsin’s

progressive “Fifth Standard,” which was unanimously upheld as constitutional by the Wisconsin

SOL

State Supreme Court in July, 2002. Specifically, the amendment incorporates what medical :
research in the last decade has revealed — that is, nearly half of people with schizophrenia and
manic-depression have impaired awareness of the illness. This affects a person’s ability to
recognize that they are ill and appreciate the need for treatment. Research shows that the
majority of people with mental illness are not being treated because they don’t think they need it.
These individuals cannot make an informed decision about treatment. SB 2296 rccognizes this

by allowing treatment before a person deteriorates to the point where they lose control or the

ability to function because they cannot make a reasoned decision about treatment. In upholding a i

similar standard, the Wisconsin Supreme Court recognized that it was necessary to break the

cycle of hospitalization, incarceration and .homelessness. SB 2296 maintains the current

procedural and substantive due process safeguards contained in the Century Code, while
ensuring that the revised standards reach only those individuals who are unable to make a
rational decision concerning their need for treatment.

( For these and other reasons, we recommend a favorable report on Senate Bill 2296.
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Thank you for your consideration of this important measute.
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| Senate Bill 2296 Testimony
*‘ February §, 2003

| Mr. Chairman and members of the Judiciary Committee, my name is Janet Sabol from
Minot, I’'m in favor Senate Bill 2296 because it will allow people with mental illnesses

or brain disorders to get treatment before they do something dangerous to themselves

or to others.

The most substantial change in the law is under the definition #12. “Person requiring
treatment.” Letter d. identifies that if there is substantial deterioration in mental health
“based upon the loss of cognitive or volitional control over the person’s thoughts or

actions” and other relevant factors “including the person’s inability to consent to care”,

that person would fit the definition. These wr#ds are crucial in determining if a person
(/\\ needs to be committed involuntarily, A number of people with schizophrenia, bipolar |

disorder and other mental illnesses have a neurological syndrome that is part of their

illness and caused by brain damage. Basically a person does not believe he or she is ill
and will explain any contradictions that would indicate that they are ill. Having poor
insight into your own illness makes it difficult to seek out treatment and also to remain

on a treatment course.

In my volunteer capacity of a state coordinator for NAMI: The Nation’s Voice on

Mental Illness, I have talked to many families who have had to suffer along with their

ety

loved one as they see their physical and mental condition deteriorate before they are

able to be committed to inpatient or outpatient treatment. One mother watched her

( - daughter resort to going only a few feet from her apartment to get vending machine

P N

FUE L i bt e T A PRI TR VRN .
A AR Sy B e L L R e e S L e e e R S T i
X

The micrographic imeges on this f{im are acourste reproductions of records delfvered to Nodern Informatfon Systems for microfiining and

- were filmed In the regular course of business. Yhe phot. :
31l : . opraphic process meets standards of the Ameriocan Netlonal 8 ‘
archival n.lcromm NOYICE: 1f the filmed image sbove is less Legiblo then this Notice, it {s due to :mtw.::“t‘ﬁ:

t being flimed
. el 2o ales

Date

i



C

n the regular course of business, The phetograghic pr
m::’;’m‘.hbwu mromm. NOTICES 1f the f{lmed image above {s less

items to eat because her schizophrenia and social phobia was so bad that she couldn’t
go into a grocery store, pick up items and go to the checkout. Yet when she was seen at
the Human Service Center, she appeaied fine. Another parent was called when his son
had resorted to moving all the furniture and other items out of his college room, was
eating raw meat and making sounds before his illness received treatment through
involuntary commitment. Another parent feared for her life as her son was yelling and
threatening her. He talked of ‘getting rid of® someone. She had to testify in court that
the verbal remarks were evidence of schizophrenia even as her son’s lawyer
questioned her knowledge of the illness. Her son had already lived with the effects of
the illness for 20 years. Seeking treatment for someone with a serious mental illness,
even though it is court-ordered, is the most humane thing to do so that they can again
exercise their civil rights without hallucinations, voices and delusions guiding their
thoughts.

As a consumer myself, there were a couple of times where a pastor drove me to the
hospital or to the doctor’s office and then to the hospital because I could not stop the
thoughts of wanting to end the pain of mental illness. I was angry for a number of days
even when I knew it was the only way I could get help in stopping the overdoses. 1
have depression and know when the illness is getting worse; and also at what point I
have to intervene by reaching out to a professional before I can no longer make good
decisions about coping with the depression. Considering those whose illnesses prevent

them from seeing they’re ill, this change in the law is absolutely essential.
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- Testimony of Mental Health Associativi in North Dakota
( Re: Senate Bill No. 2286

Senate Judiciary Committes ;
February 8, 2003 i

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, my name is Sharon Gallagher. | am a
volunteer representing the Mental Health Association in North Dakota. The MHAND is a ;
non-profit volunteer citizens organization affiliated with the National Mental Health i
Association. We recently celebrated our 50" Anniversary as advocates for persons ?

suffering from mental illnesses and their families. |

| appear today to oppose any efforts to weaken the standard for commitment of
persons suffering from mental llinesses and to offer some amendments to the bill, which
we hope will protect the law from constitutional challenge and still allow for some additional

clarity.

| have spent over 20 years as a volunteer with the MHAND and a large part of my
work has been focused on the commitment law. As you may remember, in the mid ‘70’s ;
the United States Supreme Court ruled that the state could not deprive a mentally ill person : |
of his or her liberty unless that person was a danger to himself or others. | was the staff | |
person assigned by the Legislative Council to draft an entirely new chapter relating to :
. commitment procedures in 1977. Most If not all of the states went a little further than the
C ‘: restrictions set out by the US Supreme Court and adopted language allowing an order for
g treatment when there was evidence of a “substantial deterloration in physical health, or :
substantial injury, disease, or death, based upon poor self-control or judgment in providing
one's shelter, nutrition, or personal care.” To date this standard for commitment has not

been successfully challenged.

Since 1977, | have chaired numerous multl-disciplinary committees in fulfilling our
promise to the legislature that the MHAND would continue to monitor the implementation
of the law. In all those years, the most difficult task for us as well as for the legislature has
been to responsibly balance the rights of the Individual and the compassionate concerns
of the family members. Under our constitution, all of us enjoy the right of freedom of
choice and liberty. The courts have recognized that a person suffering from a mental
illness, may as a result of that lliness, pose a danger to himself or others, and that in those
instances, the state may intervene to force treatment. However, the courts have also held,
that while a person suffering from mental {liness may be hospitalized, that person stil
retains the right to refuse medication, when the side effécts of the medication may pose

greater health risks than suffering through the iliness.

e S U

et A A e, At .

It Is our concern that SB 2296 as drafted would create numerous opportunities for
constitutional attack. To protect the integrity of the current process we ask that you not
delete the standard which Is represented the phrase “serious risk of harm to that person,
others or property”. This language was actually proposed by a district court judge who not

b Page 1 of 2

The micrographic images on this f{lin arv aceurate reproductions of records delivered to Modern Information 8
u:;;!ﬂl‘nd {n the regular course of business, The photographic procass meets stendards of the Mnrien%nmvt.lto:mul f:trmm 'lt:r'.mm
¢ ) f6r archival mierofilm. NOTICE: 1f the fiimed image above is less legible than this Notice, it fe due to the quality of the

document beiny f{(med. Q
. ~‘ ("'ﬁ ‘ -
e v O \ P i
* Gparator's STGRature SR \D\A\l?&:

n»‘“;waﬁﬁ%



o Temgee T W T e

| Ff

A W\#

4 only had served on our committees by who presided over commitment proceedings. This §
( ~  language represents a more objective standard to guide the judges and is one that with ’
which they are very familiar. To remove the standard in an attempt to make it easier to

commit someone could have system wide unintended consequences. | am concerned

about the potential for constitutional challenges that may resutt in hot having a law we can

:
f
]
enforce, jf
;

We did take a bold step in the 80's by adding as a criteria for whether a person is !
one requiring treatment the language of subsection 12 d to allow the system to respond
with court ordered treatment when: in the opinion of the mental health professional the
substantial deterioration in mental was reasonably predictable. This provision Is not used

often but was intended to allow the system to intervene when the mental health 2
professional has historical knowledge of the persons illness and can reasonably predict its
course. The new language being proposed is appropriate and certainly does clarify our ‘
original intent.

| am deeply troubled by the new language on page 3 which amends subsection 12
b of 25-03.1-02. The United States Supreme Couit in its landmark decision in the '70's
and in subsequent cases was very clear that the state's desire to deprive someone of their
liberty albeit for an humanitarian purpose of *providing treatment® must be based on real,
not illusory or anticipatory conduct. In other words, there must be direct evidence of violent
acts or threats of violence before the state can order the person detained for treatment.
ItIs notenough to present evidence that someone Is scarred, or concerned for the welfare

( Y of the respondent.

] It is my understanding that this bill Is before you at the urging of a family member
who was unsuccessful ih an attempt to seek a treatment order for a loved one. | am
sympathetic to these concerns, but am fearful of attempts to change the law, based on one
anecdotal instance. It Is my opinion that many of the concerns could be more appropriately
addressed through the provision of training for our judges, states’ attorneys, law
enforcement personnel and mental health professionals. | would urge you to ensure that
adequate funding for such training Is appropriated by the legislature.

B S T e,

~ e

Thank you for your consideration of our concerns. ! would be willing to answer any
i and all of your questions.
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25-08,1-18,1 MENTAL AND PHYSICAL ILLNESS OR DISABILITY

25-03.1-18.1. Court-authorized involuntary treatment with

prescribed medication.

1. a, Upon notice and hearing, a treating psychiatrist may request
authorization from the court to treat a person under a mental ¥
health treatment order with prescribed medication, The request
may be considered by the court in an involuntary treatment
hearing, As a part of the request, the treating psychiatrist and
another licensed physician or psychiatrist not involved in the
current diagnosis or treatment of the patient shall certify:

(1) That the proposed prescribed medication is clinically appro-
priate and necessary to effectively treat the patient and there
is a reasonable expectation that if the person is not treated as
proposed there exists a serious risk of harm to that person,
other persons, or property;

(2) That the patient was offered that treatment and refused it or
that the patient lacks the capacity to make or communicate a
responsible decision about that treatment;

(3) That prescribed medication is the least restrictive form of
intervention necessary to meet the treatment needs of the
patient; and

(4) That the benefits of the treatment outweigh the known risks
to the patient,

b. The court shall inquire whether the patient has had a sufficient
opportunity to adequately prepare to meet the issue of involun-
tary treatment with prescribed medication and, at the request of
the patient, the ¢court may continue the involuntary treatment
hearing for a period not exceeding seven days or may appoint an
independent expert examiner as provided in subsection 4.

2. a. Evidence of the factors certified under subsection 1 may be
presented to the court at an involuntary treatment hearing held
pursuant to sections 26-08,1-19 and 25-03.1-22, or at a separate
hearing after motion and notice, The court in ruling on the
requested authorization for involuntary treatment with pre-
scribed medication shall consider all relevant evidence presented
at the hearing, including: .

(1) The danger the patient presents to self or others;

(2) The patient’s current condition;

(3) The patient'’s treatment history;

(4) The results of previous medication trials;

(8) The efficacy of current or past treatment modalities concern-
ing the patient;

(8) The patient's prognosis; and ‘

(7) The effect of the patient’s mental condition on the patient's
capacity to consent.

b. Involuntary treatment with prescribed medication may not be
authorized by the court solely for the convenience of facility staff
or for the purpose of punishment,
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COMMITMENT PROCEDURES

25-03.1-18.1

8. If the factors certified under subsection 1 have been demonstrated by
clear and convincing evidence, the court may include in its involun-
tary treatment order a provision, or it may issue a separate order
after notice and hearing, authorizing the treating psychiatrist to
involuntarily treat the patient with prescribed medication on such
terms and conditions as are appropriate, The order for involuntary
treatment with prescribed medication, however, may not be in effect

for more than ninety days.

4. If a patient has requested an examination by an independent expert
examiner under this chapter, and if the treating psychiatrist has
requested authorization for involuntary treatment with prescribed
medication, only a psychiatrist may independently examine the
patient as to the issue of involuntary treatment with prescribed

medication.

Source: S.L. 1991, ch, 292, § 8; 1993, ch.
2791‘ 10‘

Applicability to Criminal and Civil Com-
mitments,

The very specific protections afforded by
this section are applicable to all persons com-
mitted for treatment, There is no language
under N.D,C.C, ch. 12.1-04.1 that manifests a
Jegislative intent to avoid application of this
section to persons who have been committed
fOf m.tmwt undel’ NIDlCnCA Chl 1211'0‘;1-
State v, Nording, 486 N.W.24d 781 (N.D, 1892).

This section applies to insanity detainees
who are commitied to treutment facllities
under N.D.C.C. ch. 12.1.04.1, The court has
authority to commit and order treatment un-
der N.D.C.C. ch. 12.3-04,1 but, when the
treatment is to include forced medication, the
E:ocedurd requirements of this section must

met. State v, Nording, 488 N.W.2d 781

(N.D. 1992),

Authorization,
Involuntary treatment may not be autho-

rized wolely for the convenience of facility staff
or for punishment, Arevalo v. J.8,, 628 N.W.2d
367 (N.D. 1995), ‘

Benefits of Medication,
The county court did not err in determining

that the evidence was clear and convincing
that the benefits of forced medication out-
weighed its risks to the patient where, except
for evidence of stiffness, there was no evi
dence that the patient had suffered side of-
fects when taking the medication in the past.
In re B.D,, 810 N, W.2d 620 (N.D, 1884),

Testimony.
ot court’s scceptance of uncontro-

veried expert testimony was not clearly erro-
neous where counsel for patient presented no

203

testimony in opposition to expert’s conclusion;
if counsel wished to attack the expert opinion
of the state's psychiatrist, he should have
requested an independent expert examiner
for his client. Arevalo v. J.S., 528 N.W.24 367
(N.D. 1995),

Least Restrictive Form of Treatment.

When the choice is between involuntarily
treating a patient with drugs which eould
stabilize the patient and allow an early re
lease from hospitalization, and pot medicat-
ing the patient at all which could cause &
deterioration in condition and lead to indefi
nite hospitalization, forced medication is the
least restrictive form of treatment, Waters v,
C.W., 552 N.W.2d 382 (N.D. 1996).

Multiple Combinations of Medicinea
The potential differences in the length of
hospitalizing patient for treatment, the rela-
tive brevity of 90-days forced medication, and
the need for judicial economy, made it sensis
ble to authorize more than one combination of
medicines, depending on later refusals, Shan.
non J. v, RAJ, 664 N, W.2d 809 (N.D, 1896).

Proof Required,

To support involuntary treatment, each of
the factors listed in this section must be
proven by clear and convincing évidence
Arevalo v. J.S,, 528 N.W.2d 367 (N.D. 19885).

Purpose,

By enacting this section, the Jegislature has
recognized the complexity of the question of
administering psychotic drugs forcefully. This
new legislation is designed to safeguard a
patient’s right to be free of forced medication
unless the prescribed medication is necessary
to effectively treat the patient, unless the
medication is the Jeast restrictive form of
{ntervention available for the patient's treat.
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Proposed Amendments to Senate Bill No, 2296
Prepared by Mental Health Assoclation in ND
February 6, 2003

Page 1, line 9, replace “[ncludes” with “may include”

Page 3, line 15, remove the overstrike over “a-serious-risk-of-harmrto-that person—others;
or-property- “Serious-risk”

Page 3, line 16, remove the overstrike over “of-harm*means”
Page 3, line 20, remove “Diregt”

Page 3, line 21, remove “evidence of overt viclence or an expressed intent to commit
viglence is not” |

Page 3, line 22, remove “required.”

Page §, line 26, remove the overstrike over “and-there-exists-a-seriotsrisk-of-harm-to-that
persom-other”

Page 5, line 26, remove the overstrike over “persons;-orproperty” and remove “and”

Page 1 of 1
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Senate Judiciary Comniittee:

g T i o T s e
Al hmrwizily

My name is Gregory Runge. Iam one of two attorneys who represent those individuals who

have been alleged to be mentally ill and/or chemically dependant and requiring treatment here in

Burleigh and Morton Counties. I have been representing respondents since 1989, After reviewing =

this bill, in great detail, 1 come before this committee to ask that you vote a DO NOT PASS on these

amendments.

ki ez

Let me start on page 1 lines 8-10, “Alternative Treatment Order (ATO).” Under the new
definition of Alternative Treatment Order inclusion of a medication order under section 25-03.1-18.1

(/“'\ NDCC is nonsensical. Under this amendment, an order for forced inedication must be made by the

T e e i i ety -

court even where prescribed medication is not sought. 1'the concern is ordering that medication be
taken in conjunction with an ATO with non-compliance resulting in hospitalization, that is already
being done.  As I stated above, since medication is not generally ordered in chemically dependant
cases and it is not always required in mental illness cases it should not be required in all ATO’s.
Next, on page 3, lines 20 through 22 is language that is superfluous and redundant. The

North Dakota Supreme Court has already ruled that “overt violence or an expressed intent to commit

violence" need not be shown,

A . i

Again on page 3, lines 27 through 29 are unconstitutional, viclating due process. The

language is vague, For example, who is to determine what it means to “function independently in the

community” or what it means to lose “cognitive or volitional control.” Clearly, in view of the lack
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of definitive clarity, the respondent could not defend him or herself because they would not know

[

what to defend, thereby violating their due process, in that, they would not have proper notice of the

deed they were purported to have conmitted. Even if the terms were spelled out, these ferms would i
be redundant because they are already defined under section 25-03.1-02 §310.

On page 4, lines | through 2, this language also violates due process due to vagucicss, Who

is to say when a person is requiring treatment and when a person would merely benefit from

treatment? See ’Connor v. Donaldson, 422 U.S. 563, 575 (1975); In the Interest of R.N., 450

N.W.2d 278 (N.D. 1990).

The biggest problem with this bill is the deliberate attempt to water down the requirements
for depriving persons of'their liberty by removing the requirement for showing a serious risk of harm
from not only the definition of a “person requiring treatment,™ but from the emergency committal

process and forced medication provisions. Again, this will raise issues of constitutionality if these

T e e o e 1 < b ot

changes take effect.
As a final point, I would ask that this matter be deferred to further study to give an |

opportunity to all participants of the mental health process 1o give input in the form of a study :

resolution or the like. I would also add that the real problem to be address is to update the statute

to take into account the greater use of non-hospital treatment in both the mentally ill and chemically

dependant cases. The statute is still too focussed on the North Dakota State Hospital as the primary

provider.

Thank you for your attention. | would be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Gregory lan Runge
Respondents’ Attorney
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SENATE BILL 2296
R SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
February 5, 2003

CORINNE HOFMANN ]
PROTECTION AND ADVOCACY PROJECT
Chairman Traynor and Members of the Committee, my name is
Corinne Hofmann. I am Director of Policy and Operations for the
~ Protection and Advocacy Project [P&A]. We are aware of the concerns
that led to the submission of this bill for the legislature’s consideration.
We have great compassion for the frustration that familles sometimes
endure In navigating the mental health system in North Dakota. We
believe that in some cases the system falls to provide the needed
Intervention and assistance. In other cases, we belleve the system
works as It should, but simply ylelds a result unacceptable to some of

T S )

those involved.

N The state has an obligation to provide for the welfare of Iits

| cltizens. Adequately addressing the needs of persons with mental

iiness is a challenge. The state must walk a fine line between |
safeguarding the health of this vulnerable population and safeguarding ,
individuals’ right to self-determination. Errors will sometimes be made, }
Ultimately, the system relies on fallible human beings to iImplement {

! our statutes. Human error can be minimized with education and

training, but never wholly eliminated.

Our current commitment law was conceived and outlined with j
much thought and Iinput. We believe the changes outlined in Senate
Bill 2296 jeopardize the delicate balance achieved in our current law. |
% We do not belleve that the changes proposed in SB 2296 will clarify or 7
4 assist those implementing the law.

The bill defines “alternative treatment order”, We belleve this is
unnecessary. Under section 25-03.1-21 the plain and clear meaning

-1 -
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of “alternative treatment order” is an order for a treatment program
other than hospitalization. That section also outlines the process for
using alternative treatment orders.

Section 25-03.1-21 does not reference 25-03.1-18.1, the section
in the commitment chapter which outlines the process for Involuntary
treatment of individuals with medication in an Inpatient setting. We
believe it would be inappropriate to include the language referencing
section 25-03.1-18.1 in the definition of an alternative treatment
order.

If treatment were visualized on a contlnuum from least intrusive
to most inxtrusive, voluntarv treatment In the community would lie at
one end, alternative treatniant orders would be in the middle, and
involuntary inpatient hospitalization would be near the other end of the

~continuum. The most intrusive treatment on the continuum would be

involuntary inpatient hospitalization with a forced medication order
obtained under 25-03.1-18.1. With each step across the continuum,
individual cholce and liberty become Increasingly limited.

We believe that involuntary treatment with medication, as
conceptualized in 25-03.1-18.1, Is inconsistent with the philosophy
underlying the use of alternative treatment orders. Taking prescribed
medication and medication monitoring may be, and often Is, part of
the alternative treatment program and order, but forcible
administration of medication Is not. Apart from philosophical and
constitutional concerns, as a practical matter it is unlikely that the
manpower and resources exist to forcibly administer medication in an
outpatient setting.

Should the Committee belleve it would be beneficlal to add a
definition for “alternative treatment order” to section 25-03.1-02, we

and

e L o e e AT AT S La AN T e Sk i A

s R AWEL

mj

i




The micrographic images on this film are acourate reproductions of reco

were filmed {n the regular course of business. The photographic process meets stands
(ANS!) for nrahflrrwfaromm. NOTICEt If the f1imed Image above s less legible tr::: tor:i:h;om:,m(’? 7:'&’3‘&':3'.”&5.“&53’3'33

document being

support adopting the definition currently used in 25-03.1-21, as
outlined in the second paragraph of my testimony,

Senate Bill 2296 removes “serlous risk of harm” from the
definition of a person requiring treatment in section 25-03.1-2. It also
replaces “serious risk of harm” with a “person requiring treatment” in
section 25-03.1-18.1, pertaining to involuntary inpatient medication
and In section 25-03.1-25 pertaining to emergency procedures,

In discussing this bill with someone who participated in the 1989
task force responsible for developing chapter 25-03.1, I was told that
this language was deliberate and has important cohéept:ual relevance
and utility. It was Intended to keep those implementing the statute
focused on the critical issue to be considered in the commitment
process. Eliminating this language weakens this focus and increases
the likellhood that people will be inappropriately committed.
Involuntary treatment was not Intended to be Imposed, and should not
be imposed, on those who would merely benefit from treatment, but
only on those who pose a serlous risk of harm to themselves and

others.

The remaining change proposed In Senate Bill 2296 is a change
to section 25-03.1-2 (11) (d). The proposed language Invites a more
subjective and expansive Interpretation that is inconsistent with the
well established requirement for clear and convincing evidence prior to
Imposing involuntary treatment. It seems certain to result in an
Increased number of Inappropriate Involuntary commitments,

We understand that amendnients to this portion of the blll may
be offered that would include the person’s capacity to consent or make
an Informed cholce as an element to be considered in determining
“*dangerousness”. Incorporating this standard Is Inconsistent with
section 25-03.1-33, which states that a determination that a person
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requires treatment, a court order for hospitalization or for alternative f
treatment, or an admission to a hospital Is not a finding that the '
person is legally Incompetent or unable to give or withhold consent.

If the person’s capacity to consent or make an informed choice is
at issue, guardianship or other less intrusive interventions can be put
In place to address the needs of the person at risk. Lack of capacity to
consent and legal iIncompetence do not predict *dangerousness”.

Many people with guardianships function quite well in the community. L

While P&A does not support the changes in Senate Biil 2296, we l
belleve that the state would benefit from a study of chapter 25-03.1.
Adcressing the néeds of people with mental Iliness Is a complex
undertaking, particularly at a time when the state hospital is
downsizing and human service centers are experlencing cuts in
funding. Any change to the state’s commitment law should be done
~ thoughtfully after careful study and input from all relevant parties
‘ involved in the process - Including consumers and family members.
P&A Intends to éupport House Concurrent Resolution 3034, which
proposes such a study.

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any . |
questions from the committee. Thank you. |
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9. "Mental health professional” means: | ' ,4# r %

a. A psychologist with at least a master's degree who has been either licensed or
approved for exemption by the North Dakota board of psychology examiners.

b, A soclal worker with a master's degree in social work from an accredited
program.

¢. A registered nurse with a master's degree in psychiatric and mental health
nursing from an accredited program,

d. A registered nurse with a minimum of two years of psychiatric clinical
experience under the supervision of a registered nurse as defined by
subdivision ¢ or of an expert examiner.

e. Alicensed addiction counselor.

f.  Alicensed professional counselor with a master's degree in counseling from an
accredited program who has either successfully completed the advanced
training beyond the master's degree as required by the nationa! academy of
mental heaith counselors or a minimum of two years of clinical experience in a
mental health agency or setting under the supervision of a psychiatrist or

psychologist.

10. "Mentally ill person" means an Iindividual with an organic, mental, or emotional
disorder which substantially impairs the capacity to use self-control, judgment, and
discretion in the conduct of personal affairs and soclal relations. "Mentally ill person”
does not Include a mentally retarded person of significantly subaverage general
intellectual functioning which originates during the developmental period and is
assoclated with Impairment in adaptive behavior, although a person who is mentally
retarded may also suffer from a mental illness. Chemical dependency does not per
se constitute mental iliness, aithough persons suffering from that condition may also

be suffering from mental lliness.

11.  "Person requiring treatment' means a person who Is mentally fll or chemically
dependent, and there is a reasonable expectation that if the person Is not treated
there exists a serlous risk of harm to that person, others, or property. "Serious risk
of harm" means a substantial likelihood of:

a. Sulcide, as manifested by sulcidal threats, attempts, or significant depression
relevant to suicidal potential;

b. Kiling or Inflicting serious bodily harm on another person or inflicting significant
property damage, as manifested by acts or threats;

¢. Substantial deterioration in physical health, or substantial injury, disease, or
death, based upon recent poor self-control or judgment in providing one's
shelter, nutrition, or personal care; or

d. Substantial deterioration in mental health which would predictably result in
dangerousness to that person, others, or property, based upon acts, threats, or
patterns in the person's treatment history, current condition, and other relevant

factors.

12, "Private treatment facllity" means any facility established under chapter 10-19.1 or &
10-33 and licensed under chapter 23-16 or 23-17.1. %

13, "Psychiatrist" means a licensed physician who has completed a residency program
in psychiatry,

Page No. 2

The micropraphic inages on this £1lm are accurate reprodustions of records delivered to Modern Information Systems for microfiiming end o 3

,.mi;ilndlntMrm

for archival microfilm,
document being f1lmed

¢ Dperator’s Sipnature

NOTICE: 1+ the filmed image above is less legible than this Notice, 1t is due to the quality of the

<y wwailes

ate

Lar course of buainess. The photogrephic process meets standards of the American National Stenderds Inetftute
P ‘1
e g

S v e s Ty g ‘-»'w«'u“":‘ S ‘.‘-'.r-i
S R A B IR et “,‘iv&%g\if e é&@‘ﬁf\‘fe\% 3’;@“1"*‘3 v
R \‘ K "




A
y
i

medication and other forms of treatment before the preliminary or treatment hearing. However, a
physician may prescribe medication or a less restrictive alternative If it is necessary to prevent
bodilr harm to the respondent or others or to prevent imminent deterioration of the reescrondent‘s
physical or mental condition. The patient has the right to be free of the effects of medication at
the preliminary or treatment hearing by discontinuance of medication no later than twenty-four
S hours before the hearing unless, in the opinion of the prescribing physician, the need for the
‘ medication still exists or discontinuation would hamper the respondent's preparation for and
participation in the proceedings.

25-03.1-17. Involuntary treatment - Right to preliminary hearing, A respondent who
is In custody under section 25-03.1-25 and who Is alleged to be mentally [ll or to be suffering from
a combination of chemical dependency and mental iliness is entitled to a preliminary hearing. At
the preliminary hearing the magistrate shall review the medical report, During the hearing the
petitioner and the respondent must be afforded an opportunity to testify and to present and
cross-examine witnesses, and the court may receive the testimony of any other interested ]
person. The magistrate may receive evidence that would otherwise be inadmissible at a :
treatment hearing. At the conclusion of the hearing, if the court does not find probable cause to
believe that the individual is a person requiring treatment, the petition must be dismissed. The
person must be ordered discharged from the treatment facility Iif that person has been detained
before the hearing. If the court finds probable cause to believe that the respondent is a person
requiring treatment, it shall consider less restrictive alternatives to Involuntary detention and
ireatment. The court may then order the respondent to undergo up to fourteen days' treatment
under a less restrictive altemative or, if it finds that altemative treatment is not in the best
interests of the respondent or others, it shall order the respondent detained for up to fourteen
days for involuntary treatment in a treatment facllity. ‘

The court shall specifically state to the respondent and give written notice that if
involuntary treatment beyond the fourteen-day period is to be sought, the respondent will have
the right to a treatment hearing as required by this chapter.

P, 25-03.1-18. Involuntary treatment - Release. The superintendent or the director may
, ' release a patient subject to a fourteen-day evaluation and treatment order or a seven-day
‘ ' emergency order If, in the superintendent's or director’s opinion, the respondent does not meet
the criterla of a person requiring treatment or, before the expiration of the fourteen-day order, the |

respondent no longer requires inpatient treatment. The court must be notified of the release and f

the reasons therefor, If the respondent is released because the respondent does not meet the !

criteria of a person requiring treatment, the court shall dismiss the petition.

25-03.1-18.1. Court-authorized Involuntary treatment with prescribed med!zation.

1. a. Upon notice and hearing, a treating psychiatrist may request authorization from
the court to treat a person under a mental health treatment order with
prescribed medication. The request may be considered by the court in an
involuntary treatment hearing. As a part of the request, the treating psychlatrist
and another licensed physiclan or psychiatrist not involved in the curent .
diagnosis or treatment of the patient shall certify:

M S e A AR A S o . it S

S LA i D A L R

(1) That the proposed prescribed medication Is clinically appropriate and
necessary to effectively treat the patient and there Is a reasonable
expectation that if the person is not treated as proposed there exists a
sertous risk of harm to that person, other persons, or property;

o (2) That the patient was offered that treatment and refused it or that the
patlent lacks the capacity to make or communicate a responsible
decision about that treatment;

(3) That prescribed medication Is the least restrictive form of intervention
necessary to meet the treatment needs of the patient; and
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(4) That tthe benefits of the treatment outweigh the known risks to the
patient,

b. The court shall inquire whether the patient has had a sufficient opportunity to
adequately prepare to meet the issue of involuntary treatment with prescri
medication and, at the request of the patient, the court may continue the
involuntary treatment hearing for a redod not exceeding seven days or may
appoint an Independent expert examiner as provided in subsection 4.

a. Evidence of the factors certified under subsection t may be presented to the
court at an involuntary treatment hearing held pursuant to sections 25-03.1-19
and 25-03.1-22, or at a separate hearing after motion and notice. The court in
ruling on the requested authorization for involuntary treatment with prescribed
medication shall consider all relevant evidence presented at the hearing,

including:

(1)  The danger the patient presents to self or others;
(2) The patient's current condition;

(3) The patient's treatment history;

(4) The results of previous medication trials:

(5) Thg etfrlcaoy of current or past treatment modalities concerning the
patient;

(6) The patient's prognosls; and

(7)  The effect of the patient's mental condition on the patient's capacity to
consent.

b. Involuntary treatment with prescribed medication may not be authorized by the
court solely for the convenience of facllity staff or for the purpose of
punishment. :

If the factors certified under subsection 1 have been demonstrated by clear and
convincing evidence, the court may include In its involuntary treatment order a
provision, or it may Issue a separate order after notice and hearing, authorizing the
treating psychiatrist to involuntarily treat the patient with prescribed medication on
such terms and conditions as are appropriate. The order for Involuntary treatment
with prescribed medication, however, may not be in effect for more than ninety days.

If a patient has requested an examination by an independent expert examiner under
this chapter, and if the treating psychiatrist has requested authorization for
Involuntary treatment with prescribed medication, only a psychiatrist may
independently examine the patient as to the Issue of involuntary treatment with

prescribed medication.

25-03.1-19. Involuntary treatment hearing. The Involuntary treatment hearing, unless

walived by the respondent or the respondent has been released as a person not requiring
treatment, must be held within fourteen days of the preliminary hearing. If the preliminary
hearing is not required, the involuntary treatment hearing must be held within seven days of the
date the court received the expert examiner's report, not to exceed fourteen days from the time
the petition was served. The court may extend the time for hearing for good cause. The
respondent has the right to an examination by an independent expert examiner if 0 requested.
If the respondent Is indigent, the county of residence of the respondent shall pay for the cost of
the examination and the respondent may choose an independent expert examiner.
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| The hearing must be held in the county of the respondent's residence or location or the ;
county where the state hospital or treatment facllity treating the respondent Is located. At the '

hearing, evidence In support of the petilion must be presented by the state's attorney, private ]

counsel, or counsel designated by the court. During the hearing, the petitioner and the |

respondent must be afforded an opportunity to testify and to present and cross-examine |

/N witnesses. The court may receive the testimony of any other interested person. All persons not

" necessaty for the conduct of the proceeding must be excluded, except that the court may admit

| persons having a legitimate interest in the proceeding. The hearing must be conducted in as
; informal a manner as practical, but the Issue must be tried as a civil matter. Discovery and the
l power of subpoen: permitted under the North Dakota Rules of Civil Procedure are available to
the respondent. The court shall recelve all relevant and material evidence which may be offered
as governed by the North Dakota Rules of Evidence. There is a presumption in favor of the
‘ respondent, and the burden of proof in support of the petition is upon the petitioner. i

If, upon completion of the hearing, the court finds that the petition has not been sustained
by clear and convincing evidence, it shall deny the petition, terminate the proceeding, and order
that the respondent be discharged if the respondent has been hospitalized before the hearing.

25-03.1-20. Involuntary treatment hearing - Findings and dispositions. if an
individuat Is found at the involuntary treatment hearing to be a person requiring treatment, the
findings and conclusions must be entered in the record of the proceedings and the court may:

1. Order the individual to undergo a program of treatment other than hospitalization; i
2. Order the individual hospitalized in a public institution; or |

3. Order the individual hospitalized in any other private hospital if the attending
physician agrees. The reason supporting the court's particular treatment order must |

be entered in the record.

— 25-03.1-21. Involuntary treatment order - Alternatives to hospitzilzation -
‘ Noncompliance with alternative treatment order - Emergency detention by certain
professionals - Application for continuing treatment order.

1. Before making its decislon in an involuntary treatment hearing, the court shall review
a report assessing the avallabllity and appropriateness for the respondent of
treatment programs other than hospitalization which has been prepared and
submitted by the state hospital or treatment facility. If the court finds that a
treatment program other than hospltalization Is adequate to meet the respondent's
treatment needs and is sufficient to prevent harm or injuries which the individual may
inflict upon the individual or others, the court shall order the respondent to receive
whatever treatment other than hospitalization is appropriate for a period of ninety

days.

2. If the respondent Is not complying with the alternative treatment order or the -
alternative treatment has not been sufficient to prevent harm or injuries that the
individual may be infiicting upon the Individual or others, the department, a
representative of the treatment program involved in the alternative treatment order,
the petitioner's retained attorney, or the state's attorney may apply to the court or to
the district court of a different judicial district in which the respondent Is located to
modify the alternative treatment ordér. The court shall hold a hearing within seven
days after the application is filed. Based upon the evidence presented at hearing
and other avallable information, the court may:

a. Continue the alternative treatment order;
L b. Consider other alternatives to hospitalization, modify the court's original order,

\
‘ \J and direct the individual to undergo another program of alternative treatment for
the remainder of the ninety-day perlod; or
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If, upon the discharge of a hospitalized patlent or the termination of alternative
treatment of an individual under this chapter, the individual would benefit from further
treatment, the hospital or provider of alternative treatment shall offer appropriate
treatment on a voluntary basis or shall aid the individual to obtain treatment from
another source on a voluntary basis. With the individual's consent, the
superintendent or director shall notify the appropriate community agencies or
persons of the release and of the suggested release plan. Community agencies
include reglonal mental health centers, state and local counseling services, public
and private assoclations whose function Is to assist mentally ill or chemically
dependent persons, and the individual's physician. The agencies and persons
notified of the Individual's release shall report to the facility that initial contact with the
individual has been accomplished.

If, before expiration of an Initial treatment order, the superintendent or director
determines that a less restrictive form of treatment would be more appropriate for a
patient hospitalized by court order, the superintendent or director may petition the
court which last ordered the patient's hospitalization to modify its order. The petition
must contain statements sefting forth the reasons for the determination that the
patient continues to require treatment, the reasons for the determination that a less
restrictive form of treatment would be more appropriate for the patient, and
describing the recommended treatment program. If the patient consents, the court
may, without a hearing, modify Its treatment order by directing the patient to undergo
the agreed treatment program for the remainder of the treatment order. The patient
must be given an opportunity to protest the discharge and modification of treatment
order and to recelve a hearing on the merits of the protest.

25-03.1-31. Procedure to extend continuing treatment orders - Respondent's right
to petition for discharge. '

1.

if the director or superintendent believes that a respondent continues to be a petson

requiring treatment, the director or superintendent, not less than thirty days before
expiration of the order, shall petition the court where the facility is located for another
continuing treatment order in the manner prescribed by section 26-03.1-23, The
petition must also contain a notice to the respondent that, unless the respondent
walves a hearing on the petition within fiteen days after service of the petition upon
the respondent, a hearing will be held by the court. The court shall appoint counset
for the respondent upon receipt of the petition, unless retained counsel has
appeared on behalf of the respondent. If retained counsel has appeared, the court
shall provide notice of the petition to the attorney. If the hearing Is not walived, it
must be held within thirty days after the petition was filed, unless extended for good
cause shown. The burden of proof Is the same as in an Involuntary treatment

hearing.

Every individual subject to an order of continuing treatment has the right to petition
the court for discharge once annually, The petition may be presented to the court or
a representative of the facllity who shall transmit it to the court forthwith. 1f the
patient is indigent or Is unable for reasons satisfactory to the court to obtaln an
independent expert examiner, the court shall appoint an (ndependent expert
examiner to examine the patient and to furnish a report to the court. The court shall
set a hearing date which must be within fourteen days of recelpt of the examiner's
report. At the hearing, the burden of proof Is the same as In an Involuntary treatment

hearing.

25-03.1-32, Periodic hearing and petition for discharge - Continuing

hospitalization. Repealed by S.L. 1979, ch. 334, § 33,

25-03.1-33. Legal incompetence - Presumption - Finding - Adjudication negated.
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1. No determination that a person requires treatment, no court order authorizing
hospitalization or alternative treatment, nor any form of admission to a hospital gives
rise to a presumption of, constitutes a finding of, or operates as an adjudication of
legal incompetence, or of the inability to give or withhold consent,

™ 2, No order of commitment under any previous statute of this state, in the absence of a
‘ concomitant appointment of a guardian, constitutes a finding of or operates as an
adjudication of legal incompetence, or of the inability to give or withhold consent.

25-03.1-34. Transfer of patients,

1. The superintendent or director of a treatment facllity may transfer, or authorize the
transfer of, an involuntary patient from a hospital to another facility if the
superintendent or director determines that it would be consistent with the medical
needs of the patient to do so, Due consideration must be given to the relationship of
the patient to family, legal guardian, or friends, so as to maintain relationships and
encourage visits beneficlal to the patient. Whenever any treatment facility licensed
by any state for the care and treatment of mentally ill or chemically dependent
persons agrees with a parent, a spouse, a brother, a sister, a child of legal age, or
guardian of any patient to accept the patient for treatment, the superintendent or
director of the treatment facllity shall release the patient to the other facllity.

2. Upon receipt of notice from an agency of the United States that facilities are-
avallable for the care or treatment of any Individual ordered hospitalized who Is
eligible for care or treatment in a treatment facility of that agenicy, the superintendent
or director of the treatment facllity may cause the individual's transfer to that agency
of the United States for treatment. No person may be transferred to any agency of
the United States if the person [s confined pursuant to conviction of any felony or
misdemeanor or the person has been acquitted of the charge solely on the ground of
mental iliness unless the court originally ordering confinement of the person enters

N an order for transfer after appropriate motion and hearing. Any person transferred
‘ under this section to an agency of the United States is deemed committed to that
agency under the original order of treatment.

' 3. No facllity may transfer a patient to another hospital or agency without first notifying
the patient and the patlent's legal guardian, spouse, or next of kin, if known, or a
chosen friend of the patient and the court that ordered treatment. The patient must
be given an opportunity to protest the transfer and to receive a hearing on the
protest. The patient's objection to the transfer must be presented to the court where
the facility is located or to a representative of the facility within seven days after the
notice of transfer was received. If the objection is presented to a representative of
the facllity, the representative shall transmit it to the court forthwith. The court shall
set a hearing date which must be within fourteen days of the date of receipt of the
objection. If an objection has not been filed or the patient consents to a transfer, the
court may enter an ex parte order authorizing transfer. -

25-03.1-34.1. Exchange of chemically dependent patient or prisoner. The director of
the department of human services, a county, a city, or a local law enforcement agency may enter
into reciprocal agreements with the appropriate authorities of any other state regarding the
mutual exchange, return, and transportation of chemically dependent or mentally lil patients or
prisoners who are treated or confined in hosplitals of one state for treatment of chamical
dependency or mental iilness but who have legal residence in another state.

25-03.1-35. Treatment by an agency of the United States.

1, If a respondent under this chapter is eligible for treatment by any agency of the
United States, the court, upon receipt of notice from that agency showing that
facllities are avallable and that the Individual Is eligible for care or treatment therein,
may order the respondent placed in the custody of the agency for treatment. Any
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INCORFORATIONS FROM CASELAW.. ()

" The district court must find by clear arid convin¢ing évidence that alternative

treatment is not adequate or hospitalization is'the least restrictive alterdative. Ip -
492 N, W.2d 82, 86 (N.D. 1992)

[Clonclusive reports, parﬁcularly onés with preprmted conclusions chccked or
underlined without satisfactory explanations, are unacceptable, Such forms do
not carry out the intent of Ch. 25-03.1 and are not appropriate for findings of fact
or an order. Jn the Interest of LK., 599 N.W.2d 337, 342 (N.D, 1999) (alﬁng

numerous cases),

Although D.Z. has not yet exhibited overt violent action, such conduct is not a
prerequisite to finding that a person poses a serious risk of harm to himself or
othets, Direct evidence of overt violence or an expressed intent to commit
violence are not required to find a person poses a serious risk of harm. Inre
D.Z, 649 N.W.2d 231 235 (N.D. 2002) (citing In re D.P,, 636 N.W.2d 921.)

Significantly, § 25-03.1-02(11Xd), N.D.C.C., specifically allows patterns in the
person’s treatment history to be used as a basis for finding a serious risk of harm
and we Have further held, a court can use what has happened in the past as
prognostic evidence to help predict future conduct. In the Interest of R M., 555
N.W.2d 798, 799 (N.D. 1996) (citing In the Interest of C. W, 552 N.W.2d 382,
384 (N.D, 1996)..

When the choice is b/w ibvoluntarily treating o patient with drugs (which could
stabilize the patient and allow an early release from hospitalization), and not
medicating the patient at all (which could cause a deterioration in condition and
lead to indefinite hospitalization), forced medication is the “least restrictive form
of treatment.” In the Interest of C.W., 552 N.W.2d 382, 385 (N.D. 1996) (clting

In the lme_rcsg of B.D., 510 N.W.2d 629, 633 (N.D, 1994),
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Resolutlon

| NATIONAL SHERIFFS’ ASSOCIATION SUPPORTS -
THE MISSION OF THE TREATMENT ADVOCACY CENTER |

3 N B S o T A T I

r WHEREAS, the National Sheriﬂ's’ Assooiation (NSA) and the Accreditation, Detention & y

‘“ e Corrections Commlttee ofNSA have reviewed and considered the mission of the
L Treatment Advocacy Cemer. a non-mﬁt Ommﬂmﬁm in Arlington, Virginia; and -

\ ' . “

WHEREAS, the rmssion of the Treaturent Advocacy Center 1s to eliminate barriers to treatment
Joow for Americans who suﬂ‘er ﬁom, but are not being treated for, severe mentel
illnesses such as sohizophrenia and manic-depressive illness' and i “,{ : -
WHEREAS, 40% of individuals who suﬁ'er from severe mental illnesses are not being treated
. ‘ atany given time, primarily becatise the illness affects their nbility to reeognize
that they are ill and they therefore refuse neatment- and
‘WHEREAS, one ofthe most serious consequences of failing to treat sovere mental nllnesses is
i+ ° " that there are now more than twice as many mentally {ll individuals in jails and *
* prisons tha there are in state psychiatric hospitals, and more than one million -
individuals with severe mental illnessés admitted each year to jafls, and that these
individuals comprise as much as 15% of the population ofJalls. and |
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" WHEREAS, the most significant barrier to treatment for the most severely mentally ill are laws

that prevent the treatment of individuals who refuse treatment until they are 2
danger to themselves or others and laws that prevent a court from ordering
individuals to take medication while living in the community; and

- WHEREAS, the consequences of non-treatmnt, including incarceration, suicide,
homelessness, worsening symptoms, victimization and violence, can be prevented
by having laws that require treatment based on a “need for treatment” rather than
just "dangerousness' for those who 'efuse it, and | L o

WHEREAS the consequenees of non-t:eaunent can‘nlso be‘ prevented by heving laws that
~ allow a court to order treatment in the community for individuals who are in need
of tr‘eatment but refuse it (also known as Assisted Outpatient Treatment). -

'I‘HEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED that the National Shedﬁ’s Assoeiation and the
Accreditation, Detention & Correoﬁons Committee of NSA hereby share and *

.approve of the mission of the Treatment Advocacy Center and support laws that _
. require treatment based on a“'need fortreatment" mtherthanjust "dangemusness )
for those who refusé it and laws Wa that alloW 8 Coft t9 order treatment in the '. " 7 -
: wmmunity for mslivid whoareiqneed of treatment by but refuse it (alsoi_!%x wat L

“..»u RS 44 ; By .1u| "y H;ltx)‘ gl P ,",l‘;rhnu,-‘p .gll
" ",
en .
: b
.u,., ; )
R
.

v
R

s !
“".,,‘ lﬁ*c !)l"l‘

Adopted at a meeting of the |
General Assembly on June 30,
1999, in Columbus, Ohio
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™ Briefing Paper |

77\ ¢ Twelve patients refused medication when admitted to a psychlatric unit. Three-quarters of them were diagnosed

e inslght Into thelr iliness, were more psychotic, had higher mood elevation, and were more grandiose. After two

General Resources / Legal Resources / Medical Resources / Briefing Papers / State Activity 1
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THE EFFECTS OF INVOLUNTARY MEDICATION ON INDIVIDUALS
WITH SCHIZOPHRENIA AND MANIC-DEPRESSIVE ILLNESS

AT K et

SUMMARY: Patients with psychiatric disorders refuse medications for a variety of reasons, including experience with, or
fear of, side effects, In other cases, the refusal Is based on lack of awareness of lliness or on delusional beliefs. Many :
such patlents must ultimately be medicated involuntarlly. Studies suggest that the long-term effects of involuntary i
medication on individuals with schizophrenia and manic-depressive lliness (bipolar dlsorder? are more positive than is
commonly thought. In most studies, the majority of patients retrospectively agreed that involuntary medication had been in
their best interest, Anecdotal claims by opponents of Involuntam medication that Involuntary treatment has widespread,

devastating, and lasting effects are not supporied by these studies.

L

e P b s

¢ Nine patients, seven with schizophrenia and two with bipolar disurder, refused medication when admitted to a
psychiatric unit. All nine were given a single injection of long-acting fluphenazine decanoate, At the end of two
weeks, their symptoms were markedly improved (BPRS improved from 10.4 to 4.1), and all were accepting

medication voluntarily,
:(;Lsallng R. Characterivilcs and outcome of patlents who refuse medication. Hospital and Communily Psychlatry 34:647-848 ,

4
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with schizophrenia or bipolar disorder. Compared to a control group that accepted medication, the refusers had less

weeks of medication, six of the patients (60 percent) no longer wished to refuse medication. "They were more likely
to view medications as imporiant for thelr lliness and were less likely to believe in alternative treatments." The other
six patients "still preferred to refuse treatment despite considerable Improvement in thelir clinical condition."

Marder SR et al. A study of medication refusal by involuntary psychlatric patients. Hospital and Community Psychiatry
35:724-726, 1964, ,

* Twenty-four patients who had been involuntarlly medicated with antipsychotic medication were interviewed at the
time of discharge from the hospital. Sixteen (67 percent) were diagnosed with schizophrenia or bipolar disorder, and
5 more (21 percent) with atyplical psychosis. Thirty-three percent of the patients said they had refused medication
because they believed they had no need for it, 29 percent said they had refused medication because of "severe
confusion or psychotic ideation,” and 17 percent "stated that they did not know why they [had] refused medication."
At discharge, 17 patients (71 percent) agreed that the decision to involuntarily medicate them had been correct and
agreed with the statement: "if | become Il again and require medication, | believe it should be given to me even If |
don't want it at the time." The 7 patients (29 percent) who disagreed scored high on measures of grandiosity,
hostllity, and suspiclousness; 6 of them had a dlagnosis of bipolar disorder. The authors concluded that “it is
impossible to avold the conclusion that the treatment refusal of every patient in our sample was influenced by

psychosis."

Schwartz H! et al. Autonomy and the right to refuse treatment: patients' attiiudes after Involuntary medication, Hospital end
Community Psychlatry 36:1046-1054, 1988,

* Eleven patlents who had been forcibly medicated during their psychlatric hospitalization were retrospectively
Interviewed. Seven strongly agreed and two somewhat agreed (thus 82 percent total) that thelr involuntary

treatment had been useful.

. Selde M et al. The reluctant psychiatric patient: ethics and efficacy around the lssue of forced medication (Sesslon 2219),
‘ American Public Health Assoclation 117th Annual Meeting, Chicago, October 24, 1988,

 Seventy-nine patients who had been placed under guardianship, 76 (95 percent) of whom had been involuntarily
medicated, were asked to retrospectively fill out a questionnaire. Eighty-seven percent of the patients had been
diagnosed with schizophrenia or blpolar disorder. The results were as follows: 3
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Do you have a mental liness?

definitely/probably not - 47%
don't know - 8%
definitely/probably do - 44%

How helpful was your guardianship?

very/fairly helpful - 46%
neutral - 21%
very/fairly unhelpful - 34%

There was a high correlation between patients who belleved they had a mental ifiness and those who found the
guardianship helpful (p < .01), The authors concluded that "although a majority of the patients were against
enforced treatment In principle, often because they thought it conflicted with their civil rights, most found the actual

experience, including medication, to be helpful.”

Adams NHS and Hafner RJ, Attitudes of psychlatric patients and thelr relatives to involunlary treattient. Ausiralian and New
Zealand Journel of Psychialry 25:231~237, 1991,

Fifty-one state hospital Involuntary inpatlents who refused to accept medication and were therefore involuntarily
medicated were compared with 51 matched involuntary Inpatients who were similar except that they voluntarily
accepted medications. Seventy-nine percent of the study group and 66 percent of the matched controls had
diagnoses of schizophrenla or affective disorder. The patients who were Involuntarily mediated had improved
symptoms and were discharged mote quickly than the matched controls, suggesting that their refusal to take
medication had prolonged thelr hospital stay. At one year follow-up, there was no difference between the two groups
in their rate of rehospitalization or compiiance with follow-up outpatient medication, which was relatively poor for
both groups. This is not surprising since both study patlents and controls had been involuntarily hospitalized and
had been asslgned to long-stay wards for chronlc patients. In addition, none of the patients were placed on
outpatient commitment or other form of assisted treatment at discharge. The authors conclude that "those in need
of continued care could be considered for an expanded use of outpatient commitment.”

?903;"“ F el al. Oulcome of Involuniary medicalion In a stale hospital system. American Joumal of Psychialry 148:480-404,

In a forensic psychiatric hospital in which 97 percent of all patients were in involuntary treatment, an anonymous
questionnaire was used to assess the attitudes of 203 patlents to various forms of treatment. Two-thirds of the
patients felt that medication was helpful, and only 10 percent considered medication to be harmful.

Varllainen H el al. The patients' opinlons about curative factors In involuntary treatment, Acta Psychiatrica Scandinavica
91:163-1686, 1995,

Twenty-eight outpatients who "had felt pressured or forced to take psychiatric medicatlons within the pust year"
were administered a questionnalre by their peers. Diagnostically, they were part of a larger group of users of
psychosocial rehabilitation centers in which 52 percent of those with known diagnoses had schizophrenia or bipolar
disorder. Only 2 of the 28 had actually been physically forced to take medication. In reply to questions about how
they felt about having been pressured to take medications, 9 (32 percent) were positive, 8 (32 percent) expressed
mixed views, 6 (21 percent) reported no effect, and 3 (11 percent) reported a negative effect. In addition, 12
patients (43 percent) said that "the experlence gave them a sense that people were looking out for their best
interest." The authors also noted that “only a few respondents sald that past experlences of pressured or forced
medication had had any effect on thelr subsequent willingness to take medication.”

Lucksted A and Coursey RD. Consumer perceptlons of pressure and force In psychlatric treatments, Psychiatric Services
46:148-162, 1995,

Thirty patients who had been forclbly medicated during their psychiatric hospitalization were interviewed by
telephone one to two weeks later by individuals who had not been Involved in their treatment, Eighty-seven percent
of the patients had been diagnosed with schizophrenia or bipolar disorder. Among the refusers, 30 percent recalled
having refused the medication because they had befleved there was nothing wrong with them, and 20 percent sald
they had refused because they had belleved the medication was poison,

Retrospectively, 18 patients (60 percent) sald that having medication forced was a good Idea, 9 (30 percent)
disagreed, and 3 (10 percent) were unsure. Most of those who disagreed had either paranold schizophrenia of
bipolar disorder with grandiosity, The authors concluded that "forced medication frequently restores the capacity to
make competent declsions and often results in a more rapld return of freedom to be discharged from involuntary

hospitalization.*
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Greenberg VWM of sl. Patients’ atitudes toward having been forcibly medicated, Bulletin of the American Academy of Psychiskry
and the Law 24:513~-824, 1996,

Genera] Resources / Legal Resources / Medical Resources / Briefing Papers / State Activity
rwﬂmm/mmm@mju/mzmmmmmmm

nienis of all material availabie on the Center's websie are ghted by the Tre~iment Advocacy
g gommkunuummww. Al rights resarved and content may be reproduced, ¢ wnioaded, ‘
\ \ o s men e e T “&mam“”mwmm.m'b&
resime A
L mental iliness, mmm«wumammumm.mmmw:m‘
~ via email o [nfo@osvchigws org. - Write fo us at: The Trestment Advocacy Center, 3300 N, F.irfax Drive;
Sulte 220; Arlinglon, VA 22201, Tochni%n‘l' o_?mmom on the cm&r:* m m.m*g-&iw) can
- to Webmaster@osvchisws.org. The Treatment ‘ R.C, ~
Treatment Advecacy Ceater bt:x:xmompt corporation. Donstions sre apprecisied and are eligible for the charkable oontr‘nnm
deduction under the provisions of |,R.C. § 170. ‘

iRl
hi

AMMANY Li-A Y

e et i B b [ S T L e TR .
[T ; ) ptaky e N b B e DA b P sk o k5 N ot 2 e e RS e R L A :
i s A a0 U A0k SRR b i o D
;

The mioregraghie inages on this 11im are ascurste #t1ene of records delivered to Nadern Infornation Systems for microfiluing ind '
. mlgiw in the reguisr ssurse of business. Wuwu Process mests standerds of the Anerloen u.ovt.lcml Stenderds lm:'l.tm —

for archivel microf{im. NOTICH: 1f the #itmed 1mage above is less legible then this Notfee, it fs cue to the quality of the
dooument being f1(med.

— ' \2\ gx\e;
' 2 8lgnature ¥ - s




Gengral Resources / Lega) Resources / Medical Resources / Briefing Papers / State Activity
Hospital Closures / Preventable Tragedies / Press Room / Search Our Site / Home

N Briefing Paper

Updated January 2003

VIOLENCE AND UNTREATED SEVERE MENTAL ILLNESS

SUMMARY: It is well known that the two major demographic predictors of violent behavior are male sex and yYounger age.
it is also known that the two major clinical predictors of violent behavior are past history of violence and substance abuse
(alcohol and/or drug). Recent studies have established that being severely mentally ill and not taking medication is a third

major clinical predictor of violent behavior.

LK K

1. Severely mentally ill individuals who ARE taking their medication are NOT more dangerous
than the general population.

¢ The three-site MacArthur Foundation Study of violence and mental lliness reported that discharged psychiatric
raﬂents without substance abuse had approximately the same incidence of violent behavior as other individuals
iving in the same neighborhoods. These patients were being followed closely for a year and most were taking their
medications. The reported results were weakened by the fact that the patients with the most violent past histories
were excluded from the study and the fact that the Pittsburgh neighborhoods used as controls were
"disproportionately Impoverished and had higher violent crime rates through the city as a whole."

Stesdman HJ, Mulvey EP, Monahan J, et. al, Violence by people dischargad from acute psychiatric impatient facllities and by
others in the same neighborhoods, Archives of General Psychialry 65:393-401, 1998,

(,A ,»‘Severely mentally ill individuals who are NOT taking their medication ARE more dangerous

4, -

“Than the general population.

* Several early studies In the 1970s suggested this fact but were not well controlled. For example, a 6-year follow-up
of 301 patients discharged between 1972 and 1975 from a Callfornia state hospital reported that their arrest rate for
“violent crimes” was 10 times the rate for the general population,

Sosowsky, L. Explaining the increased arrest rale among mental palients: A cautionary note. American Journal of Psychiatry
137:1602.1605, 1980.

* In reviewing these earlier studies on discharged psychiatric patients, Dr. Judith Rabkin concluded: "Arrest and
conviction rates for the subcategory of violent crimes were found to exceed general population rates in every study

in which they were measured.”

Ra_;b:ln J. Criminal behavior of discharged mental patients; A critical appraiscl of the research. Psychological Bulletin 86:1-27,
1979,

 The Epidemiological Catchment Area (ECA) surveys carried out in 1980-1983 reported much higher rates of violent
behavior among individuals with severe mental lliness living in the community compared to other community
residents. For example, individuals with schizophrenia were 21 times more likely to have used a weapon In a fight,

Swanson JW, Hozer CD, Ganju VK, ¢t. al. Violence and psychiatric disorder in the community: Evidence from the Epidemiclogic
Catchment Araa surveys, Hospitel and Communtty Psychiatry 41:761-770, 1990,

* In a more recent analysis of data from the ECA study the authors noted that “mentally ill individuals with no
treatment contact in the past 8 months had significantly higher odds of violence in the long term... moderate levels
of agitation and psychoticism increase the risk of violence." They then conctude: "This would seem to provide a
~,  Strong argument for providing more Interventions targeted specifically to persons with combined mental illness and
t\) addictive disorders who are likely not to comply voluntarily with conventional outpatient therapies.”

Swanson J, Estroff S, Swarlz M, et al. Viclence and severe mental disorder in clinical and community populations: The effecls
of psychotic symploms, comorbidity, and lack of traatment, Psychletry 60:1-22, 1997,

A MAAA / O™

on
n the reguler
archl'vrl mierotd

doumt“bomf wd
S M@% \b\&.\.\.?l___
' tor's Signature - ate

) AL R AN TR ) SR
A AR ‘l.&,i@.ﬂ%

this film are sccurate reproductions of records del fvered to Modern Information Systems for microf!iming and
course of buainess. The photographic process meets standards of the American National Stenderds Institute
Ime NOTICE: 1f the filmed image above ie Less legible then this Notice, it fs due to the quality of the

R




r

* A study of inpatients diagnosed with schizophrenia reported an inverse correlation between their propensity to
violence and their blood level of antipsychotic medication,

Yesavage, JA. Inpatient viclence and the schizophrenic patient: An inverse correlation between danger-relsted events and
N neuroleptic levels, Biological Psychistry 17:1331-1337, 1982,

* A study of severely mentally ill patients in a state forensic hospital found a highly significant correlation (p< 0.001)
between fallure to take medication and a history of viclent acts in the community.

Smith LD. Medication refusal and the rehospitalized mentally i inmate, Hospital and Community Ptywaw 40:491-498, 1909,

* A study in a forensk: hospital in England regoned an assoclation between violent behavior and untreated psychotic
symptoms. According to the authors "over 80 percent of the offenses of the psychotic [men] were probably
attributable to their lliness....Within the psychotic group those driven to offend by their delusions were most likely to
g:;e b&e‘r.u seriously violent, and psychotic symptoms probabty accounted directly for most of the very viclent

avior,

Taylor P. Motives for offending amongst viclent and psychotic men, British Journal of Psychistry 147.491-498, 1085,

* A 1990 study investigated violent behavior among severely mentally ll individuals in 1401 randomly selected
families who were members of the National Alliance for the Mentally Il (NAMI), In the preceding year 11 percent of
these individuals were reported to have physically harmed another person.

Steinwachs DM, Kasper JD, Skinner EA, Family &enpecuvu on meeting the needs for care of severely mentally il relatives: A
national survey. Arlington, VA: National Atliance for the Mentatly IN, 1962,

e A9to12year follow-ur of 192 men with schizophrenia who had been detained by the Secret Service when they
had presented themselves at the White House with deluslonal demands found that they had a subsequent arrest
rate for violent crimes 1.6 times (no past history of violence) to 4.8 times (with a past history of violence) the general

population.

Shore D, Filson CR, Rae DS, Violent crime arrest rates of White House case subjects and matched control subjects. American
Joumnel of Psychiatry 147:746-750, 1990,

f\ « A study of 133 outpatients with schizophrenia showed that "13 percent of the study group were characteristically
' violent." Having inadequately treated symptoms of delusions and hallucinations was one of the predictions of violent
behavior. Specifically, 71 percent of the violent patients...had problems with medication compliance, compared

glt%o)nly 17 percent of those without hostile behaviors," a difference which was statistically highly significant (p<
.001).

B;g:b J, Drake RE, Wallach MA, et. al. Characteristic hostiiity in schizophrenic outpatients. Schizophrenia Bulletin 17:163-171,
1991,

« A Swedish study of 644 Individuals with schizophrenia followed for 16 years reported that they committed violent
offenses at a rate four times greater than the general population.

Lindguist P, Aliebeck P, Schizophrenia and crime: A longHudinal follow-up of 644 schizophrenics in Stockholm. British Journel of
Psychiatry 1567:345-360, 1980,

o Another Swedish study, using case registers, examised the criminal records of all individuals born in Stockholm in
1953 and still living there 30 years later. Men and women with a severe mental illness were 4.2 times (men) and
27.5 times (women) more likely to have been convicted of a violent crime compared to individuals with no

psychiatric diagnosis.
Hodgins, S. Mental disorder, Intellectual deficiency, and crime. Archives of General Psychislry 49.476-483, 1092,

o In & follow-Up of patients released from a psychiatric hospltat, Dr Henry Steadman et. al. reported thal "27 percent of released male and female
patients report af least one viclent act within a means of four months after discharge."

Monahan J. Mental disorder and violent behavior. American Psychologist 47:611-621, 1992,

o Among 20 individuals who pushed or tried to push another person In front of the subway in New York, all except one
was severely mentally ill and offered motives directly related to their untreated psychotic symptoms. ‘

S Martell DA, Dietz PE. Mentally disordered offenders who push or attempt to push victims onto subway fracks in New York Chy.
i Archives of General Psychialry 49:472-475, 1862,

~ ¢ In a carefully controlled study comparing individuals with severe mental lliness living in the community In New York
with other community residents, the former group was three times more likely to commit violent acts such as
weapons use or "hurting someone badly.” The sicker the Individual, the more likely they were to have been violent,
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‘5.‘7'*’:’ %bm H, Cullen FT, The violent and illegal behavior of mental patients reconsidered. Americen Sociological Review

o A study of 538 individuals with schizophrenia living in London reported that the men had a 3.9 times and women 5.3
2 ( ) gm;s greater risk for conviction for assault and serious violence compared to a control group with other psychiatric

w1§.g.4 Castle D, Douglas AJ, et. al. The criminal careers of incident cases of schizophrenia. Psychological Medicine 24,

o A study of 348 inpatients in a Virginia state psychiatric hospital found that patients who refused to take medication
mhw to be assaultive, were more likely to require seciusion and restraint, and had longer
I s."

Kasper JA, Hoge SK, Feuchi-Havier T, ol 8l. P study of patients' refusal of antipsychotic medication under a
physician discretion review procedure. Americen of Psychiatry 154.483-489, 1997,

* A study in Switzerland compared 282 men with schizophrenia with a matched control group in the general
poputation. The patients were five times more likely to have been convicted of violent crimes, mostly "assaults
resulting in bodily harm." The more acutely il the patient was, the more likely he was to have been violent.

Modestin J, Ammann R. Mental disorder and criminality: Male schizophrenla. Schizophvenia Bulletin 22. 69-82, 1986,

e A study of homicides in Finland reported that “the risk of committing a homicide was about 10 times greater for
schizophrenla patients of both genders than it was for the general population.” For men "schizophrenia without
alcoholism increased the odds ratio more than 7 times; schizophrenia with coexisting alcoholism more than 17

times."
Eronen M, Tithonen J, Hakola P. Schizophrenia and homicidal behavior, Schizophrenia Bulletin 22:83-89, 1996,

« In another study in Finland an unselected birth cohort of 11,017 individuals was followed for 26 years. Men with
schizophrenia without alcoholism were 3.6 times more likely to commit a violent crime than men without a
gzychiatric diagnosis. Men with both schizophrenia and alcoholism were 26.2 times more likely to commit a violent

me. |

et

O Rasanen P, Tiihonen J, Isohanni M, et.al. Schizophrenia, akohol abuse, and violent behavior: a 26-year follow-up study of an
unselacied birth cohorl. Schizophrenia Bulletin 24:437-441, 1998,

¢ In the three-site MacArthur Foundation Study of violence and mental illness referred to above, 17.4 percent of the
patients were violent in the 10-week period prior to hospitalization, during which time they were not being treated,
compared to an average of 8.9 percent for the five 10-week periods after hospitalization during which most of them

were being treated.

Steadman HJ, Mulvey EP, Monahan J, et. al. Violence by people discharged from acute psychiatric Inpatient facikties and by
others in the same neighborhoods. Archives of General Psychiatry 56:393-401, 1998,

* An English study of 1016 forensic patients with severe mental iliness (“functional psychosis") reported that the
diagnosis of "schizophrenla was most strongly associated with personal violence" and that "more than 75 percent of
those with a psychosis were recorded as being driven to offend by their delusions.” The authors concluded that
“reatment appears as important for public safety as for personal health."

Taylor PJ, Leese M, Wiliams D, et. al. Mertal disorder and violence. British Joumnal of Psychiatry 172:218-226, 1996.

¢ A 10-year follow-up of 1056 severely mentally Ill patients discharged from mental hospltals in Sweden in 1986 J
reported that "of those who were 40 years old or younger at the time of discharge, nearly 40 percent had a criminal
record as compared to less than 10 percent of the general public." Furthermore, "the most frequently occurring
crimes are violent crimes."

Belfrage H. A fen-year follow-up of criminality in Stockholm mental patients. British Joumal of Criminology 38:145-165, 1998,

o A study of 331 individuals with severe mental iliness reported that 17.8 percent "had engaged In serious violent acts
that involved weapons or caused injury." It also found that "substance abuse problems, medication noncompliance,
and low insight into lliness operate together to increase viclence risk." ‘

o !
& ) Swartz MS, Swanson JW, Hiday VA, et. al. Violence and severe mental iness: The effects of substance abuse and
nonadherence to medication. Amencan Joumael of Psychialry 185:226-231, 1996,

o A four-state (NH, CT, MD, and NC) study of 802 adults with severe mental iliness (64 percent schizophrenia or
schizoaffective disorder, 17 percent bipolar disorder) reported that 13.6 percent had been violent within the previous
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f \) Marzuk PM. Violence, crime, and mental iliness, Archives of General Psychiatry 53.481-486, 1996,

percentags of violent acts to individuals with severe psychiatric disorders may be proportionately greater. Thus, in New Zealand, a
:tudy rep%ﬂod that *Just over 10 percent of past-year viokence committed by these young aduls was attributable to schizophrenio spectrum
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year, “Violent” was defined as “any physical fighting or assaultive actions causing bodily Injury to another person,
any use of lethal weapon to harm or threaten someone, or any sexual assault during that period.” Those who had
been violent were more likely to have been homeless, to be substance abusers, and to be living in a violent
environment. Those who had been violent were also 1.7 times more likely to have been noncompliant with
medications. As has been found in other such studies, the women with severe psychiatric disorders were almost as
likely to have been violent (11 percent) as were the men (15 percent). Because the data on violent behavior were
collected by self-report, the authors suggested “that our findings are probably conservative estimates of the true
rrwalonce of violent behavior for persons with SMI.” They concluded “that risk of violence among persons with SMi
s a significant problem" and “is substantially higher than estimates of the violence rate for the general population.”

Swanson JW, Swartz MS, Essock SM et al. The social-environmental context of violent behavior in persons trested for severe
mental liness, Amernican Joumnal of Public Heakh 92:1523-1531, 2002,

* A study of 83 inpatients with schizophrenia in Spain reported that the best predictors of violent behavior were being
sicker (i.e. higher scores on symptom measures) and less insight into their iliness. "The single variable that best
predicted violence was awareness into psychotic symptoms.”

Arango C, Barba AC, Gonzalez-Salvador T, et. al. Violence in schizophrenic inpatients: A prospective study.
Schizophrenia Bulletin, in press.

* |n reviewing many of these studies in 1992 Professor John Monahan concluded: “The data that have recently
become available, fairly read, suggest the one conclusion | did not want to reach: Whether the measure is the
prevalence of violence among the disordered or the prevalence of disorder among the violent, whether the sample
is people who are selected for treatment as inmates or patients in Institutions or people randomiy chosen from the
open community, and no matter how many social and demographic factors are statistically taken into account, there
appears to be a relationship between mental disorder and violent behavior.” '

Monahan J. Mental disorder and violent behavior. American Psychologist 47.611-521,1992,

* |n a 1996 editorial reviewing such studies Dr. Peter Marzuk added: "In the last decade, however, the evidence
showing a link between violence, crime, and mental iliness has mounted. It cannot be dismissed; it should not be

ignored.”

* A 2001 review article on violence and schizophrenia, authored by researchers at the institute of Psychiatry in
London, concluded: “It is now generally accepted that people with schizophrenia, albeit by virtue of the activity of a
small subgroup, are significantly more likely to be violent than members of the general population, but the
proportion of societal violence attributable to this group is small." The authors also noted that *comorbid substance
abuse considerably increases the risk." They emphasized that the proportion of total viclence in soclety attributable
to schizophrenia is small, specifically "below 10 percent."

Waish E, Buchanan A, Fahy T. Viclence and schizophrenia: examining the evidence. British Journal of Psychiatry 180: 490-495,
2001,

3. Individuals with severe mental ilinesses probably are responsible for no more than 6
percent of violent episodes in the United States.

¢ Compared to substance abuse, severe mental iliness contributes a relatively small percentage to total violence.
Professor John Monahan cited a study that estimated “that 3 percent of the variance in violent behavior in the
United States is attributable to mental disorder.”

Monahan J. Mental Hiness and viclent crime. National Institute of Justice Research Preview, October 1996.

o A 1968 Department of Justice study reported that individuals with a history of mental liiness (not including drug or alcohol abuse) were
responsible for 4.3 percent of the homicides in the United States, or 897 out of 20,860. In instances in which the homicide occurred among family
members the was much higher, 8g. in 25 parcent of cases in which an Individual kiked his/her parent, that individuat was merntally I,

percentage
If the 4.3 percentage held in 1993, the total mental Hiness-related homicides would have been 1,055 (4.3 percent of 24,530). It seems reasonable
to sssume that most of these would have been preventable if the individual had been receiving psychiatric treatment.

Dawson JM, Langan PA, Murder in families. U.S. Deparitment of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice

d

'

; * In countries such as the United States, where violence is relatively common, the percentage of violent acls attributable to individuals with severe
/' peychiatric disorders is comparstively low, probably no more than 5 percent. in many other countries where violence is less common, the

The wierographic images on this film are ocm&o reprodustions of records delivered to Nedern Information Systems for microf(ining ml &
. wore f1limed In the n,nmmouu
" (ANSI) for archival microftim, NOYICE:

or { o
 document being fiimed.
. \ !a ]! E; |

iness. sndards 1netitute

1f the filmed

The ographic process meets stentards of the American Nationel 8t
m"lu’:’m fo less Legible than this Notice, it s due to the quality of the

i LY
. . st . i h
. . ' ) y ) '
: '




b
(RTINS

g Srieting Paper: Vioknee und Unlreated Severe Mental finess DA/ Wy chiiaw s.0rg/ BTG Papats 518, I

4. At least 10 percent of males with severe mental ilinesses become violent and a lesser
/*\{contago of females. In the United States this would total approximately 200,000 - 250,000
ividuals.

!

)

; 2%:)':” E, Buchanan A, Fahy T. Viclence and schizophrenia: examining the evidence. British Journal of Psychistry 180; 490-495,
i

|

{

* There is very littie data which can be used to estimate the percentage of severely mentally ill individuals who
~ become violent. The best study used the Danish psychiatric case register, covering the whole country, and
convictions for criminal offenses. Between1978 and 1990 6.7 percent of males and 0.9 percent of females with
“major mental disorders” (psychoses) were convicted of a violent crime (“all offenses involving intarrmonal
aggression or a threat thereof"), compared with 1.5 percent males and 0.1 percent females among individuals with
no psychiatric diagnosis. Since these are only convictions, it can be assumed that another unknown percentage
committed a violent act for which they were not charged or convicted.

Hodgins S, Mednick SA, Brennan PA, et.al. Mental disorder and crime. Archives of Genersl Psychiatry 53:480-496, 1996,

J ;I'ni;'e uldn::denoe of violent behavior among severely mentaily iil indlividuals in the studies discussed under ) above
o 11 percent in the survey of NAMI families

° 13 percent among outpatients with schizophrenia
° 8.9 percent in treatment and 17.4 percent not in treatment in the MacArthur Foundation Study

o 17.8 percent among inpatients with severe mental iliness
* In light of the above, it seems reasonable to estimate that at least 10 percent of males with a severe mental iliness
exhibit violent behavior at some time during their illness and a lesser percentage of females. Since there are at
least 4 million individuals in the United States with schizophrenia and manic-depressive disorder, then
approximately 200,000 — 260,000 severely mentally il} individuals are or have been violent.

8. Publicized episodes of violence by individuals with severe mental ilinesses are a major
cause of discrimination and stigma against this group.

(“ )e Following highly publicized attacks on prominent German officials by individuals with severe mental ilinesses, there
- was a measurable "marked increase in desired social distance from mentally ill people immediately following {the]
violent attacks." The Increased social distance and consequent stigma slowly decreased over time but had not
returned to baseline two years later.

Angermeyer MC, Matschinger H. The effect of violent attacks by schizophranic persans on the attitude of the public towards the
mentally Hl. Soc/al Science and Medicine 43:12:1721-1728, 1996,

* A study using university volunteers demonstrated that reading a newspaper article reporting a violent crime
committed by a mental patient led to increased "negative attitudes toward people with mental illnesses."

Tmog M.g\;v;hl OF. Impact of a newspaper article on attitudes toward mental iiiness. Joumnal of Community Psychology
2 RYe 5. 1 v

« Such studies suggest that it is futile to try and decrease stigma against individuals with mental iliness until the
problem of violence is addressed. This was noted as early as 1981 by Dr. Henry Steadman who observed:

“Recent research data on contemporary populations of ex-mental patients supports these public fears [of
dangerousness] to an extent rarely acknowledged by mental health professionals. . . .it is [therefore] futile and
inappropriate to badger the news and entertainment media with appeals to help destigmatize the mentally itl."

Steadman, HJ. Critically reassessing the accuracy of public perceptions of the dangerousness of the mentally il. Jounal of
Heatth and Sociel Behavior 22, 31—316, 1984,

¢ in 1892 Dr. John Monahan added:

“The data suggest that public education programs by advocates for the mentally disordered along the lines of
‘people with mental liiness are no more violent than the rest of us’' may be doomed to failure....And they should: the

e~ claim, it tums out, may well be untrue."
\\‘ \) Monahan J. Mental disorder and violent behavior. American Psychologist 47:511-621, 1962,

» The 1999 Surgeon General's Report on Mental Health noted that "the perception of people with psychosis as being
dangerous is stronger today than in the past.... People with mental lliness, especially those with psychosis, are
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~ Briefing Paper

ASSISTED OUTPATIENT TREATMENT REDUCES HOSPITAL STAYS, VIOLENCE AND
ARRESTS
AND IMPROVES CHANCE OF RECOVERY FOR PEOPLE WITH SEVERE MENTAL ILLNESSES

Approximately 40 percent of all individuals with severe mental illnesses (i.e. schizophrenia and manic-depressive iliness)
are not receiving treatment at any given time.1 Many of these individuals are homeless, in jail on misdemeanor charges,
and responsible for increasing episodes of violence .2 A major reason why so many severely psychiatrically ill individuals
are not being treated is that, because of the effects of the illness on their brain, they lack awareness of thelr iliness.
Studies have shown that approximately half of all patients with schizophrenia? and mania4 have markedly impaired
awareness of thelr iliness as measured by tests of insight; thus, they are similar to some patients with cerebrovascular
accidents (strokes) and with Alzheimer's disease. Such individuals consistently refuse to take medication because they do
not believe they are sick. In most cases, they will take medication only under some form of assisted treatment.

Forty-one states use a form of assisted treatment commonly referred to as outpatient commitment, also called assisted
outpatient treatment.% Assisted outpatient treatment involves court ordered treatment (including medication) as a condition
of remaining in the community for individuals who have a history of medication non-compliance. Typically, violation of the
court ordered conditions can result in the individual being hospitalized for further treatment.

Long-term assisted outpatient treatment (LT-ACT) combined with routine outpatient services (3 or more outpatient visits
r month) has been shown to be significantly more effective in reducing violence and improving outcomes for severely
(Attally ill individuals than routine outpatient care without LT-AOT. Results from a North Carolina study® showed a 36%
. _uction in violence among severely mentally ill individuals in long-term assisted outpatient treatment (LT-AOT - 180 days
""or/more) compared to individuals receiving less than LT-AOT (0 to 179 days). Among a group of individuals characterized
as serlously violent (..e. committed violent acts within the 4 month period prior to the study), 63.3% of those not in LT-AOT
repeated violent acts while only 37.6% of those in LT-AOT did so. LT-AOT combined with routine outpatient services

reduced the predicted probability of violence by 50%.

Another significant finding of the North Carolina study was that for individuals who had a history of multiple hospital
admisslons combined with arrest and/or violence in the prior year, LT-AOT reduced the risk of arrest by 74%. The

predicted risk of being arrested for individuals with LT-AOT was 12%, compared to 47% for those who had no AOT.L

In another report from the North Carolina study,& LT-AOT reduced hospital admissions by 67% and length of hospital stay
by 20 days compared to individuals without court ordered treatment. The results were even more dramatic for Individuals
with schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders for whom LT-AOT reduced hospital admissions by 72% and tength of
hospital stay by 28 days compared to individuals without court ordered treatment,

The effectiveness of assisted outpatient treatment in decreasing hospital admissions has been clearly established in
several studies. in Washington, D.C., admissions decreased from 1,81 per year to 0.95 per year before and after
outpatient commitment.& Similarly, in Ohio the decrease was from 1.6 to 0.412 and in fowa from 1.3 to 0.3.11 in North
Carolina, admissions for patients on outpatient commitment decreased from 3.7 to 0.7 per 1,000 days.12 Only two studies
have failed to definitively find assisted outpatient treatment effective in reducing admissions. One was a Tennessee study
in which it was evident that "outpatient clinics are not vigorously enforcing the law" and thus non-adherence had no

consequences, 13

The second was a study in New York in which the authors acknowledged that a "limit on [the study's] ability to draw

wide-ranging conclusions Is the modest size of [the] study group."14 Additionally, during the period of the study, there was
_no procedure in place to transport individuals who did not comply with treatment orders to the hospital for evaluation. As in
7y 'Tennessee study, non-adherence to a treatment order had no consequences, Although not statistically significant, the
N ¥ York study suggests that the court orders did in fact help reduce the need for hospitalization. Patients in the
-souri-ordered group spent a median of 43 days in the hospital during the study year, while patients in the control group
spent a median of 101 days in the hospital, The difference in fact just misses statistical significance at the level of p = 0.06.
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Outpatient commitment has also baen shown to be effective as a form of assisted treatment in Increasing treatment
compliance. in North Carolina only 30 percent of patients on outpatient commitment refused medication during a six-month

period compared to 68 percent of patients not on outpatient commitment. 18 In Ohio, outpatient commitment increased
_patients’ compliance with outpatient psychiatric appointments from 5.7 to 13.0 per year and with attendance at day

4 \m\ent sessions from 23 to 60 per year.18 In Arizona, among patients who had been outpatient committed "71 percent
: patients voluntarily maintained treatment contacts six months after their orders expired” compared to “almost no

| patients* who had not been put on outpatient commitment.1Z And in lowa “it appears as though outpatient commitment
promotes treatment compliance in about 80 percent of patients while they are on outpatient commitment. After

commitment is terminated about three-quarters of that group remain in treatment on a voluntary basis.*14
Endnotes

1Regier, D.A., Narrow, W.E., Ree, D.S., Manderscheid, R.W., Locke, B.Z., Goodwin, F.K. The de facto US Mental and e
Addictive Disorders Service System: Epidemiologic Catchment Area prospective 1-year prevalence rates of disorders and R
services. Archives of General Psychiatry, 50.85-94 (1993). S

2Torey, E.F. Out of the Shadows: Confronting America's Mental lliness Crisis, {(John Wiley and Sons, 1997).

SAmador, X.F., Strauss, D.H,, Yale, S.A., and Gorman, J.M. Awareness of iliness in schizophrenia. Schizophrenia Bulletin,
17:113--132 (1991).

4Ghaemi, S.N. Insight and psychiatric disorders: a review of the literature, with a focus on its clinical relevance for bipolar
disorder. Psychiatric Annals, 27:782~790 (1997).

:rggnay. E.F. and Kaplan, R.J. A national survey of the use of outpatient commitment. Psychlatric Services, 46:778-784

6Swanson, J.W;. Swartz, M.S., Borum, R. et al. Involuntary out-patient commitment and reduction of violent behaviour In
persons with severe mental iliness. British Journal of Psychiatry,176: 224~231 (2000).

B ;‘, - vanson, J.W, Borum, R., Swartz, M.S., et al., Can involuntary outpatient commitment reduce arrests among persons
“liath severe mental iliness?, 28 Criminal Justice and Behavior 166 (2001).

8Swartz, M.S., Swanson, J.W., Wagner, R.H,, et al. Can Involuntary outpatient commitment reduce hospital recidivism?
American Journal of Psychiatry, 156:1968-1975 (1999).

8Zannl, G. and deVeau, L. Inpatient stays before and after outpatient commitment. Hospital and Community Psychiatry
37:941-942 (1986).

10Munetz, M.R., Grande, T., Kleist, J., and Peterson, G.A. The effectiveness of outpatient civil commitment. Psychiatric
Services, 47:12561-12563 (1996).

11Rohland, B.M. The role of outpatient commitment in the management of persons with schizophrenia. lowa Consortium
for Mental Health, Services, Training, and Research (May 1998).

12Fremandez, G.A. and Nygard, S. Impact of Involuntary outpatient commitment on the revolving-door syndrome in North
Carolina. Hospital and Community Psychiatry 41:1001-1004 (1990).

13gursten B. Posthospital mandatory outpatient treatment. American Journal of Psychiatry 143:1266-1258 (1986).

14Research study of the New York City involuntary outpatient commitment pilot program. Policy Research Assoclates, Inc.
(December 1098),

1SHiday, V.A. and Schald-Cook, T.L. The North Carolina experience with outpatient commitment: a critical appraisal.
International Journal of Law and Psychiatry, 10:216-232 (1987). L

o

Kw)lunetz. supra note 8.
17van Putten, R.A., Santiago, J.M., Berren, M.R. Involuntary outpatient commitment in Arizona: a retrospective study.
Hospital and Community Psychiatry 39:053-968 (1988).
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- Minnesota Activities |
Mionasota statutes | most recent changes n Minnesota law ;
After one of Jim's rampages at home his parents called the police and asked !
them to take him to the hospital. But the police refused, since the mentally il
cannot be committed until they pose a threat. “You reach the point,” said H
[Minnesota Rep.] Mindy [Greiling], “where you're actually hoping for §
something to happen, so he’ill be forced to §o to a hospital.” g
s there lrouble with Jim?* When somecne you love hears voices through walls, " Newsweek, March 11, 2002 :
5
{
!
Recent news
CHANGE IN LAW SF179 ro\}Ides better access to treatment
became effective Ju|yp 2002. s ? ’ No one would think of lettinga
loved orie lie about the house
| Govemor Jesse Ventura signed SF179 into law on June 30, 2001. with an untreated fracture, or
dismissing a worker grappling
i 'ghe Iawballciws ?arﬂerr ;gtewentlon. removing the requirement that with diabetes or shunning a
' danger be "Imminent" for emergqency resgonge, and improving the_ eiahb se evesiaht is
S’ staﬁ%ar?ﬂor treatment so that a person's deteriorating psychlatric neighbor who yesld ) '
SONAMGH hay bé considered 1 the standard for care. faifing. Yet with society's
- blessing, many of us look away
| The law also allows for lengthened hospital stays to stabilize g when the liiness in question
b person’s condition as well as timely intervention with medication. involves ct;"t‘l:" ‘i’is‘-’f ders of . s
e brain.
Our profound admiration and grateful congratulations go to "f,}';,” i a‘""s'?f,',’-” "'*; “[,,“' and ""0'3?'
" Minnesota Representative Mindy Grelling, the original sponsor of this nespols roune, March 16, 2002
¥ legislation and the leader of the effort for treatment reform in her state.
um In jailhouse Interview, Shoreview mom tells why she killed her son
Min s Star-Tribune, March 11, 2002
History
ARTICLE Idealism gone awry - Exploring origins of dysfunction in mental health care
by John W. Mion, former State Senastor and Co-chalr. AMI-MN Legisiative Commitise :
Calalyst rmvsmur. Mey/June 2001 _
PRESS RELEASE HF 281 helps those who need it most - A benefit for all i
Treatment Atvocaty Center {
_ March &, 2001 1
\ )mgu A lesson from Minnesota and California
by E. Fuller Torrey, president, Treatment Advocacy Center
Calslyst newsiatter, Janusry/Februaty 2001
ns http://www.psychlaws.org/StateActivity/Minnesota.htm' - \ L 1t/16/2002 .
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Betting on the right horse to save lives
By E. Fulier Torrey, M.D., and Mary T. Zdanowicz, Esq. -

"The reslily Is that advocates must challenge criminal laws ill equipped to deliver
Justice for people like Andrea Yates wltwo' o”ommit cnimes while ravaged by a severe
mental illness.” |

Mental health advocates rallied to save Andrea Yates' life, just as they do every time someone with
severe mental iliness could be sentenced to death for a helnous crime.

This is the mental health community's equivalent of closing the bam door after the horm has
escaped. it is too little too late for the thousands of individuals who each year become violant
becatise of untreated mental illnesses.

Whilla the Yates case has captured the nation's attention, it Is hardly an exception. Within daysiof
 the.death of the. Yates children, Kristin Anderson's 15-month-old son dled of blunt force trauma) -
Injuries 4fid stab wounds, Anderson, diagnosed with bipolar disorder, confessed that she'iwica’

junipad frdm.a deck carrying her son in her arms, fatally stabbed him, and then burned his:body: v
the, by of a friend’s home because “voices told me to jump off the baicony and follow the,
light: Month tater, Mee Xlong.of Minneapolls stabbed two of her children to-ceath: Xiofig hid &

iong histéry of delusions and hallucinations, at feast one sulcide attempt, multiple Nospitatizations,
and a few years before had chased her children with a knife. ‘ ~ , =

* And Justlast month in San Francisco, Donna Marle Anderson kilied her son to save him from being
kidnapped into a non-existent child porn ring. Her family noted for years that she saw conspiracies.
everywhere as her condition progressively worsened. §he still firmly belleves she saved her son by

stabbing him 15 times.

Attemnting to fight the stigma that stems from such cases, the sacred mantra of mental heaith
advou .tes is that “people with mental lliness are no more viclent that the gerieral public.” But that is
only a half-truth, While peopie who are being treated are no more violent, non-treatment increasas

the risk of violence substantially.

Friends and families are lulled into a faise sense of security, desperately wanting to believe that
, loved ones transformed by psychosis won't actually obey the voices In their heads, Only this
| deception can explain Russa!l Yates' testimony that “(alt the time, | didn't think she was dangerous,
none of us did," despite the fact that one psychiatrist who examined her concluded she was “one of

the sickert patients | had ever seen”

There was ample evidence that Andrea was in desperate need of treatment and that her condition
had been worsening for years. She had a long history of mental lliness, including multiple sulcide
attempts, Voices had even instructed her to kill her first child, in the months before the tragedy, she
stopped washing her hair and bathing. She barely ate or drank. Her best friend said she was

http://www.psychlaws.org/GeneralResources/article73.htm
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virtually comatose, answering her questions with a single word, She paced like a “scared animal.”

,’/ - i

So why didn't she and thousands of others like her get adequate treatment?

An estimated 4.8 million Americans today suffer from the most severe mental iiinesses,
schizophrenia and manic-depressive iliness. The National Advisory Mental Health Council estimates
that 40 percent of these individuals, or 1.8 million people, are not receiving adequate treatment on

any given day.

In a recent study, individuals with serious mental liinesses were interviewed to ascertain whr they
mrz;\eo;{mlvlng treatment. The majority - 56 percent - denied having a problem that required
a _ |

, That is largely because almost half of those with schizophrenia and manic-depressive iliness suffer
from a neurological deficit called anosognosia, which impairs their awareness of their lliness. Such
Eroph can truly believe that God Is speaking to them, that the CIA is after them, or that they must
i their children to save them from Satan. They refuse treatment because they don't think there is
anything wrong with them, or worse that agents are trying to poison them with the medicine. And in
some states, if you refuse treatment - even if that refusal is because of the disease itseif -courts
cannot intervene unless you are an immediate danger to yourself or others.

If Andrea Yates was‘so sick, why did it matter if she was dangerous or not? If she was so obviously
deteriorating, wasn't there a way to get her some help?

The horse that escaped from the barn Is stitl running. Families have been misled again - they are
told that nothing can be done for a loved one who refuses treatment for psychosis until they become
dangerous. In most states this is not true - laws have been changed to aliow for early treatment
/‘\ intervention, before someone becomes dangerous. The laws in the remaining states can and must
{

be reformed.

The reallty Is that advocates must challenge criminal faws il equipped to deliver justice for people
like Andrea Yates who commit crimes while ravaged by a severe mental iliness, Yet improving the
criminal justice system will be a hollow victory if the untreated ' mentally fll are still condemned to it
because advocates avold the harsh realities of untreated mental iliness. We must get the horse
back in the barn by ensuring timely and effective treatment for individuals who refuse it because

they don't think they are ill.

v, .
e

READ MORE
TAC's slatement on the Andres Yates sente; cing | ancsognosia | criminalization

a0 A

General Resources / Legal Resources / Medical Resources / Briefing Papers / State Activity
Hospital Closures / Preventable Tragedies / Press Room / Search Our Site / Home

The contents of all matarial avallable on the Center's website are copyrighted by the Treatment Advocacy

. T ) Center unless otherwise indicated, All rights reserved and content may be reproduced, R
disseminated, of transferred, for single use, of by nonprot organizations for educationsl purposes only, ¥
cortect sitribution Is made to the Treatment Advocacy Center, Please feel fres 1o call with quastions on

- mantal itiness, treatment laws or the benefits of medication compliance at 703.204.6001 or send
questions via emait to |nfofdasyehiswe.org, White 16 us st: The Treatmant Advocacy Cenler; 3300 N,
Fairfax Drive: Sulte 220; Artington, VA 22201, Technical comments on the Center's wabsite

- WwWw.psychlsws.org) can be sent lo . The Treatment Advocacy Center ls an
TREATMENT ADVOCACY CENTEN f.n.C. 5 m(c)(s)w-cxemm corporation. Donations are spprecisied and are eligible for the charitable
contribution deduction under the provisions of L.R.C. 4 170,

E httn://www.nsvchlaws.ore/GeneralResources/article73.htm
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Kim Montgomety, left, who Is looking into changing the state’s medical confidentiality la

_ w, and Janet Sabol
of the northwest North Dakota affiliate of the National Alliance for the Mentally: Iil, review information that

Montgomery has coilected over the years about advocating for people with mental iliness,
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Families want laws changed in mental health system

By JiLL SCHRAMM
Staff Writer
jschramm @ ndweb.com

For 7-1/2 years, Kim Montgomery of
Minot has sought closure on her father's
suicide. :

Her sfforts to bring justice to what she
calls a preventable death have resulted
onl‘{mh‘;al additional frustration with a men-
tal health system that she believes falled
her father, If she can't get healing for her

f, Mantgomery hopes she can at least
oosen medical confidentiality laws to
:};:rm another family what she's gone

O ‘

“I don't want a tragedy like this to ha;
pen to anyone else,” she said, P
Meanwhile, Sheree S
Molnes ,
[R1078 8

o ”
nsumer advocacy groups get ner-
vous about proposed law cgsanges that

“there’s to be a bre
" an involuntary commitment, there needs

appear to whittle away at patient protec-
tions such as confidentiality and self
determination, However, some advocates
are saying the time is right to Jook at
whether current laws are helping or hin-
dering consumers in getting appropriate
care,
“The big question is how many
tragedies do we have lo have before people
with mental illnesses get good care,” said
Janet Sabol of Minot, ¢oordinator for the
Northwest North Dakota affiliate of the
National Alliance for the Mentally I,

"We have to get the discussion gotnﬁ‘:
she said, “We need to inform the pub
what's happening in the mental-health
m (1]

Allan Stenehjem, executive director for
the Mental Health Assocfation of North
Dakota in Blsmarck, said his };_roup is open
to reviewing the Juw but feels strongly
about safeguarding patients' rights, If
in canfidentiality or

to be substantlation for it, he said,
Montgonery belleves substantiation

existed in her father's case. He committed
sulcide three days after his release from
the hospital that now is Trinity-St.
Joseph's, :

Afer hiring an attorney to obtain her
father's medical records, Momgom
learned her father hadn't been taking med-
{cine, talked about suicide and had a diffi-
cult time thro t his 3-1/2 weeks of
hospitalization, Nowhaere in the records
did it indicate that her father was doing
well, which is what the doctor {old the
family upon his release, she said.

“They took precautions in the hospi-
tal,” she sald, “but they took no precau-
tions to protect us or my father when he
was released.”

Trinity officlals declined to commant
on the case because of patient confiden-

tiality,

A forensic expert’s report based on a
review the medical records was that
Montgomery's father's desth “was pre-
ventable with aggressive psychiatric treat-

ment, adequate communication with fam-

“ R R LTI Ty WK phd

~
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By JILL SCHRAMM
Staft Writer
jschramm@ndweb.com

Micheal Kemp of Minot isn't happy that
fie Tad to go (o gie eMergency room ’%ﬂtﬂ a

ontana famil

stab wound before his brother could qualily
o) hospital care Ior his men ness,

He's Just as upset that others in his fam{-
ly had to be endangered because his brother

was released only days later,

“It's got to be darn near illegal,” he said of .
the hospital's release of his brother. “If not, it

should be.”

Officials at Trinity-St. Joseph's were
unable to comment about the case but
denied that they erred in releasing Kemp's
brother.

Kemp said his brother, 20, had become
lax about taking his medicine in the months
before coming from Montana to Minot for
the Christmas holiday, Although his broth-
~#g condition had deterlorated, he hadn't

ally proved himself a threat to himself or

. alers so that he could be hospitalized,
Kemp said,

Kemp recalled that his brother was acting
delusional on Christmas Eve. He hed
stepped outside briefly, and no one saw him
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take a steak knife from the kitchen when he
came In. He stabbed Kemp in the chest,
sending him to the hospital for stitches.

Kemp's brother was' hospitalized in
Trinity-St. Joseph's,. Kemp’s parents, who
also were visiting in Minot, began a seres of
phone conversations with medical staff,
socfal workers and law enforcement agen-
cles to ensure that thelr son remained hospi-
talized untll a commitment hearing could be
held in Minot Dec. 31,

Doctors advised long-term hospitalization
at the State Hospital in jamestown and told
the family that treatment would continue in
St. Joseph's until the hearing and transfer
could ocour, Kemp sald,

Ron Kemp, Micheal's father, said he and
his wife stopped by the hespital te deliver
péersonal ltems to thelr son Dec, 27 when
they learned he wus to be immediately
released. Ron Kemp sald the doctor told him
thal Montana Medicald no longer would pay
for the hospital care, The hospital walved
the court hearing and issusd papers saying
their son was in stable condition, he said,

But Ron Kemp added the doctor also sald,
“He's a very sick boy, and you need to get
him some help,”

The Kemps retuned with their son to

nese . The F"
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Montana, where he again experienced
another violent eplsode in attempting to
physically harm family members, He was
jatled overnight before getting into a hospi-
tal. He now is receiving long-term care
through the Montana State Hospital.

Ron Meler, director of mental health ser-
vices at St, Joseph's, said the hospital doesn't
release patients unléss they are stable or are
to be transported to another center for care.
If patients are dangerous to themselves or
others, he said, “We don't just let them out.”

That policy holds regardless of the per-
son's residency or insurance status, Meler
said. Montsna Medicaid will cover a
Montana resident hospitalized in another
state as long as the hospitalization can be
medically justified, he said, A patient who is
stable, although not fully recovered, can be

discharged into outpatient care, he said. |

Coverage of outpatient care requires a med-
ical referral from a network provider in
Montana,

Michael Kemp and his family say the sys-

* tem falled them, His brother continued to be

delusional and potentially a threat to himself
or others when he was released, he said.

“The money runs out, so he's out," Kemp
said. “That's the shame of the system.”
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he or she is {1}, Because of their
mental conditions, some patients
won't sign a medical releass form.
to enable a family member to-be -
patt of their care, she said. That
might keep a patient from y~ting
" Woat NAME b

" trylng to get
across is that family members
really are an rtant af
the treatment team,” Sabol said

Another problem. she said, is
that families don't often know
about availability of the release
form,

‘Tvinity-St. Joseph's officials
say that all patients receive a
“wse form upon discharge so
‘ ?\edk:al informatian can bo
\H_,«s/femd to follow-up care-
givers, That form also lets
patients designate any others to

receive that infarmation.
Tom Bennett, director of

I Trinity Health’s outpatisnt She faced & dilemma about deterioration in mental health
Mental s fih, ind' son i o e v B ol e il
efer, director o nity-St. ‘condilion OTA ) ess
by s o o S T, g ek e
ly members and intensive out- 414" families are mcludod in Vg sald familiss do have
'”“f,'ff followup care and treat- uet:lumm hmmdncﬂ:hu- TSIPITA BSCE0SS T8 COUAnT tolzad.mﬂon ogpunmnlw
_og i cutpatient care o
7 espite that finding, the State d “Most doctors are fairly liberal . hos zmmzzn. which is eesier
xd °f Medical. Examiners yith that information if they ™ "THF I reall bnmd us teo thana ital commit-
ueternined the physiclan didnY  (hink there's a safety issue |from getting him halp,” she sald, ment. Once outpatisnt care is
conmit gross negligence as Bernett said, “The window whers you can obtained, there's & better oppar-
deflned by state law. The board  *"Mgjer said it good to review | commit somebody fc so' small, for necassary
declisied to initiate disciplinary (g Jaws affecting mental-health | They have to have the gun in  hospitaiization, he-sald.
sctiou. Nor could Monigomery's  yeryices once in a while, | their hand s0 yoi can prove  Spear also would like grester]
funily find an attorney willing o Howevar, he added, it's difficult | intent, but not yet pull the trig- use of court orders to foroe non-
tuke thelr case, to support changes that take | gar, What has happened is 1 lot co:gflhm patients to take thelr
Montgomery sald her famlly .,y consumer rights, of peopls have actually died. medicine..
aluo had difficulty getting asels- “}t's a complex issue,” he said. | These are preventable deat)u" “When you get them to the
tance ~through the State wThe patient Is the one we are or y was Tucky. | point where are safe and
Protection and Advocacy Office.  gq4ling wlth and we have to 2001, her son broke into hh stable, why not keep them
The law says a doctor can be  regpect his wishes and hh gun cabinet but a thm?"Spmutd.“Anyonewho
held responsible for b rights.” g;:ﬂ mamhn walked in and you can take away some-
cofidentiality ~ but not for fail-  ““gpeer said most consumers intervened before he could shoot body ts by forcing them to
lng o break confidentiality to Wantsomeone 1 Took out Taf | himself. cine - the medicine
protect 'h‘ﬂ patient, Montgamery when " Spear now is lobbying for leg- thnt‘s required for their {llness —
vald, She's concluded thet law “GrerTwell encugh 1o make dect- | islation to permit a court com- they have a lack of human com _4
needs to be changed, mfﬁﬁx_ru%%i‘_— nﬁttnlwhanthmusubctmtid,'puﬁon."
"We need lawtsh. in mh -
Dukota to protoct
she sald, “Kee thn liness
confidential from family i
not protecting the patient. ..
Somethinshutobedomtoyt
the family involved ar there are
going to be more suicides, more
tragedies.” '
bol sald advocacy agencies
object to breaking confi-
fulity to protect peopls.
“H you are advocating for the
consumer, you want the con-
sumer to live. You want them to
be well anough to participate in °
the community at whatever level
they are able,” she satd.
Subol sald a common charac-
texistic of many mental llnesses
is that the patiant doesn't realize
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February 10, 2003

The Honorable John T, Traynor :
Chairman, Standing Committee on the Judiciary !
North Dakota Senaie

P.O. Box 838

Devils Lake, ND 58301-0838

Dear Senator Traynor:

1 am writing in behalf of the National Alliance for the Mentally 11l (NAMI) in support of Senate
Bill Number 2296 (SB 2296), an Act to amend certain sections of the North Dakots Century Code
relatin, to civil commitment procedures for individuals with meuta] illnesses, With more than

220,000 members and 1,200 state and loca! afBlistes, NAMI is the nation’s lesding g
organization dedicated to improving the lives of people with severe mental illnesses,

NAMI strongly believes that decisions to involuntarily commit individuals to treatment should not i
be made lightly, Involuntary intesrventions should occur only as & last resort and laws governing |
involuntary commitment and involuntary treatment must ensure that individuals subject to these
interventions are afforded s full range of due process rights and protections, including right to
counsel, right to present testimony in one’s own half, and othess.

However, NAMI also recognizes that laws requiting proof of imminent dangercusness before
involuntary trestment interventions occur can cause unnecessary suffering and impede treatment
and recovery for certain individuals whose symptoms prectude them from recognizing their need
for treatment or making informed treatment decisions. And, scientific evidence establishes that it
is very difficult for psychistrists or other mental health professionals to accurately prediot imminent
dangerousness to self ot others.

SB 2296 would establish a more balanced approach by allowing treatment interventions to occur
based on lack of capacity to make informed, rational treatment decisions that create a substantial
risk of substantial deterioration in physical or mental health or a substantial risk of injury, disease
or death. The burden of proving that the individual requites treatment would remain with the party
seeking the involuntary treatment order, while enhancing the ability to intercede in & humane
fashion before needless suffering occurs.

Thank you for affording me the opportunity to comment on this itportant legistation. Please
contact me (phone: 3014245847, email: RonH@namj.org) with any questions.

Sincerely,

Ronald 8. Honberg, 1.0, M.Ed
National Director for Policy and Legal Affairs

Co.  The Honorable¢ Stanley W. Lyson

| NAMI | The Nation's Volon sx Mental Kinass
| Colonial Place Three ¢ 2107 Wilson Blvd., Suite 300 « Arlington, VA 22201-3042
l PH: 703.524.7600 # FX: 703.524.9094 * 1.800.950.NAMI (6264) « www.namt.org
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| SUPREME COURT OF WISCONSIN b
Casx No. 1 01-0374
ConpPLETE TITLY:
In re the Commitment of Dennis H., ’
State of Wisconsin,
Petitioner-Respondent,
V.
Dennis H.,
' Regpondent-;\ppellant '
ON CERTIFICATION FROM THE COURT OF APPEALS
OrTwion FILmd: July 12, 2002
SUBMITTSD OM BRINYS: '
ORAL ARGUMENT : May 1, 2002 C
SOURCE OF APPEAL!
- Courr1 Circuit
( ) Coumry ¢ ., Milwaukee
AN JuDaE ! . Victor Manian
JUSTICHS ¢
CONCURRED ¢ ABRAHAMSON, C.J., concurs (opinion filed),
BABLITCH and BRADLEY, JJ., join conciurrence,
DISSENTED )
NoT PARTICIPATING
ATTORNRYS :
For the respondent-appellant there were briefs by Ellen
Henak, assistant state public defender, and Thomas K. Zander,
Milwaukee, and oral argument by Ellen Henak.
For the petitioner-respondent the cause was argued by
Thomas J. Balistreri, assistant attorney general, with whom on
the brief was James E. Doyle, attorney general.
An amicus curiae brief was filed by Theresa M. Hottenroth
and Whyte Hirschboeck Dudek S.C., Madison, on behalf of the
Treatment Advocacy Center, and there was oral argument by Mary
Zdanowicz.
( A An amicus curiae brief was filed by Mary Dianne Greenley,
\~// Madison, on behalf of the Wisconsin Coalition for Advocacy, Inc.
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An amicus curiae brief was filed by Robert Theine Pledl and
Schott, Bublitz & Engel, S.C., Brookfield, on behalf of the
American Civil Liberties Union of Wisconsin Foundation.

An amicus curiae brief was filed by Michael J. Bachhuber,
Milwaukee, on behalf of the Grassroots Empowerment Project, Inc.

An amicus curiae brief was filed by Richard G. Niess and
Coyne, Niess, Schultz, Becker & Bauer, §.C., Madison, and
Xenneth J. Kress, lowa City, Iowa, on behalf of Kenneth J.
Kress.

An amicus curiae brief was filed by Herbert S. Bratt,
Milwaukee, and Mark L. Adams and Melanie E. Cohen, Madison, on
behalf of the Wisconsin Psychiatric Association, Inc., and the
State Medical Society of Wisconsin.

An amicus curiae brief was filed by Mary Dianne Greenley,
Madison, on behalf of the Wisconsin Coalition for Advocacy,
Inc., and the Judge David L. Bazelon Center for Mental Health
Law: ‘
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No. 01-0374
(L.C. No. 00 ME 1299)

STATE OF WISCONSIN : IN SUPREME COURT

In re the Commitment of Dennis X.,

State of Wisconsin, FILED
Petitioner-Respondent, i

JUL 12, 2002 g

v.

Cornelia 0. Clark
Clark of Supreme Court

PDennis K.,
Respondent-Appellant.

APPEAL from an order of the Circuit Court for Milwaukee

County, Victor Manian, Circuit Court Judge. Affirmed.

41 DIANE S. SYKES, J. This case is before the court on
certification from the court of appeals, which we accepted to
resolve a single issue of law: whether the fifth standard of
dangerousness in the involuntary civil commitment statute, Wis.
Stat. § 51.20(1) (a)2.e. (1999-2000), is constitutional. We hold
that it is.

92 Dennis H. is the subject of this mental health
commitment, and he has schizophrenia. His father, his

paychiatrist, and his case manager filed a three-party petition

:
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i , in Milwaukee County Circuit Court seeking to commit him pursuant

to wWis. sStat., § 51.20(1)(a) (1999-2000)!, because he was

exhibiting behavior that had previocusly led to his
hospitalization in critical condition for kidney failure.

93 Dennis H. moved to dismies, arguing that the fifth
sﬁmdard of dangerousness, Wis. fStat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.e., is
unconstitutional,? The circuit court denied the motion, a jury
found Dennis H.‘danqerous under the fifth standard, and he was
committed. He appea‘led, and the court of appeals certified the

case to this court.

¥4 Dennis H. contends that the fifth standard is facially .
unconstitutional because it violates the due process and equal
protection guarantees of the federal and state constitutions and

is also vague and overbroad.’ More specifi’cally, he argues that (

p— ’

1 All references to the Wisconsin Statutes are to the 1999-
2000 version unless otherwise noted.

¥ 1t was determined at the probable cause hearing that none
of the first four definitions of dangerousness sufficient for ‘
commitment under Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.a.-d. applied. J‘ 1

3 The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution
states: “No State shall make or enforce any law which shall
abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United
States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, : 4
or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person ‘
within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws. "

Article I, Section I of the Wisconsin Constitution states:
"All people are born equally free and independent, and have
certain inherent rights; among these are life, liberty and the
pursuit of happiness; to secure these rights, governments are
instituted, deriving their just powers from the consent of the

governed. * | (\
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the statute is constitutionally infirm because it lacks a

requirement of imminent dangerousness to self or others, and
because it allows commitment upon a finding of‘ a substantial
probability of something less than physical harm, to wit, mental
or emotional harm.

95 A facial constitutional challenge to a statute is an
uphill endeavor. The state has a well-established, legitimate
interest under its parens patriae power in providing care to
persons unable to care for themselves, and also has authority
under its police power to protect the community from mentally

i1l persons determined to be dangerous. Heller v. Doe, 509 U.S.

312, 332 (1993) (citing Addington v. Texas, 441 U.S. 418, 426

(1979)). The general rule, of course, is that any legislative
O enactment carries a presumption of constitutionality. State v.
Carpenter, 197 Wis. 24 252, 263-64, 541 N.W.2d 105 (1995).

96 Furthermore, "(wle deal here with issues of unusual

delicacy, in an area where professional judgments regarding
) desirable procedures are constantly and rapidly changing."*
Heller, 509 U.S. at 333 (discussing mental health commitments)
(quoting Smith v. Organization of Foster Families for Equality &
Reform, 431 U.s. 816, 855-856 (1977)). "In such a context,

' restraint is appropriate on the part of courts called upon to

adjudicate whether a particular procedural scheme is adequate

o

"[TfThe due process and equal protection clauses of the

Wisconsin Constitution are the substantial equivalents of their
respective clauses in the federal constitution." State v.

—~ McManus, 152 Wis. 2d 113, 130, 447 N.w.2d 654 (1989). '
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under the Constitution." Id. We conclude that the fifth
standard is not unconstitutionally vague or overbroad, and does

not violate due process or equal protection.
I

17 On 'June 23, 2000, Dennis H.'s father, psychiatrist,
and case manager filed a petition in Milwaukee County Circuit
Court to have him involuntarily committed for tieatment_ under
Wis. Stat. § 51.‘20(1")(&.). Dennis H. suffgrs from schizophrenia
and, due to medication noncompliance, had previously been
hospitalized in acute renal failure and electrolyte imbalance
brought on by extreme and rapid weight loss and dehydration.

98 Dennis !-I sought to have the petition dismissed,
arguing that the fifth standard of dangerousness as grounds for
involuntlary commitment, Wis. Stat, § 51.20(1)(a)2.e., violates
the federal and state constitutions. The'.‘ circuit court, the
Honorable Michael J. Dwyer, rejected Dennis H.'s constitutional
challenge and denied the motion to dismiss.

99 Noting that thé state has a legitimate interest under
its police and parens patriae powers in »piotecting society and
the mentally ill, the circult court concluded that the fifth
standard constituted a ‘“"new description of dangerousness*
sufficlient to justify commitment. The c¢circuit court viewed the
£ifth standard's new definition as encompassing a requirement of

present dangerousness, albeit "in a little different vocabulary"

4
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than the other four. Because the fifth standard | did not
dispense with dangerousness as a pre-condition of commitment,
but merely defined it in a different way, the circuit court
found it "constitutionally appropriate."!

910 A probable cause hearing was held. Following the
testimony of two doctors, the first four standards of
dangerousness were determined to be inapplicable, and the case
proceeded to trial on the fifth standard only.

911 A jury trial was held on July 24-25, 2000, before the
Honorable Victor Manian, The jury was instructed on the
statutory elements of the fifth standard, and returned a verdict
finding Dennis H. dangerous. The circuit court ordered Dennis
H. committed for a period of six months. Pursuant to
stipulation, this was later extended for another six months.
Dennis H. appealed the order of commitment, and the court of
appeals certified the case to this court.

IX
¥12 The constitutionality of a statute is a gquestion of

law which this court reviews de novo. State v. Janssen, 219

Wis. 24 362, 370, 580 N.W.2d 260 (1998). The party challenging

1

.mﬁwlnmw business. The ph

{ pennis H, asserts that Judge Dwyer recast the statute to
require evidence of '"imminent physical dangerousness." the
Honorable Victor Manian presided at trial, however, and
instructed the jury precisely according to the text of the
statutae,
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a statute must establish its wunconstitutionality beyond a

reasonable doubt. State v, McManus, 152 Wis. 2d 113, 129, 447

N.w.2d 654 (1989). *Every presumption must be indulged to

sustain the law if at all possible and, wherever doubt exists as

.to a legislative enactment's constitutionality, it must be

resolved in favor of constitutionality." Carpenter, 197 Wis. 2d

at 263-64 (citing McManus, 152 Wis. 2d at 129 (citations and

quotation marks omitted in original)). A court does not

evaluate the merits of the legislature's economic, social, or

political policy choices, but is limited to considering whether

the statute violates some specific constitutional provision.

State ex rel. Hammermill Paper Co. v. La Plante, 58 Wis. 24 32,

46-47, 205 N.wW.2d 784 (1973).

913 We have previously noted that the United States
Supreme Court has declined to prescribe "s}:rict‘ bbundaries for
1égislative determinations of what degree of dangérousness is
necessary for involuntary commitment," because " ([s)]ubstantive as
well as procedural limitations on a state's traditional power to

commit the dangerously mentally i1l vary widely from

jurisdiction to jurisdiction.* State v. Post, 197 wis. 2d 279,

312, 541 N.w.2d 115 (1995), cert. denied, 521 U.S. 1118 (1997)

(footnote omitted) (eiting Jackson v. Indiana, 406 U.S. 718,

736-37 (1972)). Because of "the uncertainty endemic to the
field of psychiatry . . . particular deference must be shown to
6
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No, 01-0374

legislative decisions in that arena." Id. (citing Jones v.

United States, 463 U.S. 354, 364 n.l13 (1983)). Accordingly,

courts generally proceed with restraint in this complex,
delicate, and policy-sensitive area, deferring to the procedural

scheme the legislature has chosen. See Heller, 509 U.S. at 332;

Smith, 431 U.S. at 855-856; Post, 197 Wis. 2d at 312.
III

914 We start with the text of the statute at issue.
Section 51.20 of the Wisconsin Statutes governs involuntary
civil commitments for mental health treatment and contains five
different definitiong or standards of dangerousness for purposes
of involuntary commitment. The so-called "fifth standard," Wis.
Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.e., was enacted in 1995, see 1995 Wis. Act
292, and provides that "an individual, other than an individual
who 1s alleged to be drug dependent or developmentally

disabled, " is considered "dangerous" if:

[A)fter the advantages and disadvantages of and
alternatives to accepting a particular medication or
treatment have been explained to him or her and
because of mental illness, evidences either
incapability of expressing an understanding of the
advantages and disadvantages of accepting medication
or treatment and the alternatives, or substantial
incapability of applying an understanding of the
advantages, disadvantages, and alternatives to his or
her mental illness in order to make an informed choice
as to whether to accept or refuse medication or
treatment; and evidences a substantial probability, as
demonstrated by both the individual's treatment
history and his or her recent acts or omissions, that
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the individual needs care or treatment to prevent
further disability or deterioration and a substantial
probability that he or she will, if left untreated,
lack services necessary for his or her health or
safety and suffer severe mental, emotional or physical
harm that will result in the loss of the individual‘'s
ability to function independently in the community or
the loss of cognitive or volitional control over his
or her thoughts or actions. The probability of

1-0374

suffering severe mental, emotional or physical harm is

not substantial under this subd.2.e. if reasonable
provision for the individual's care or treatment is
available in the community and there is a reasonable
probability that the individual will avail himself or
hergelf of these services or if the individual is
appropriate for protective placement under § 55.06.
Food, shelter or other care that is provided to an
individual who is substantially incapable of obtaining
food, shelter or other care for himself or herself by
any person other than a treatment facility does rnot
congstitute reasonable provision for the individual's
care ‘or treatment in the community wunder this
subd.2.e. The individual's status as a minor does not
automatically establish a substantial probability of
gsuffering severe mental, emotional, or physical harm
under this subd.2.e.

Stat. § 51.20(1) (a)2.e.
915 Dennis H. argues that the fifth standard: (1)

a risk of imminent physical harm to himself or others.

overbreadth, equal protection, and due process challenges.

Vagueness

ar course of business, The photographic process meets standarde of the American Nationel St

14 the filmed image sbove fs less legible than this Notice, it is due to the

is

unconstitutionally wvague and overbroad; (2) wviolates his right
to equal protection of the law by allowing for commitment under
circumstances different than those existing under any of the
and (3) violates his right to substantive

due process by allowing commitment without requiring evidence of

We

disagree, and uphold the sgtatute against his vagueness,
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916 The statute is long and complex. Neither attribute
makes it unconstitutional, however, for neither is the proper
measure of a statute's constitutionality. We have previously

explained that:

The principles underlying the void for vagueness
doctrine . . . stem from concepts of procedural due
process. Due process requires that the law set forth
fair notice of the conduct prohibited or required and .
proper standards for enforcement of the law and
adjudication. Based upon these concepts of due
process, a statute is void for vagueness if it fails
to give notice to those wishing to obey the law that
their conduct falls within the proscribed area, or if
it fails to provide those who must enforce and apply
the law objective standards with which to do so.

In re Commitment of Curiel, 227 Wis. 24 389, 414-15, 597 N.W.2d

697 (1999) (quoting State v. Popanz, 112 wis. 24 166, 172-73,

332 N.W.2d 750 (1983)) (citations and internal quotatlion marks
omitted).

917 Our task, then, is to determine whether the statute
provides objectively discernible standards by which commitment

decisions c¢an be made. In other words, "we must determine

.whether the statute fails to be sufficiently definite to allow

judges, juries and expert witnesses to apply (its) terms . . .
objectively to the question before them in order to determine
whether to commit the defendant without having to create or
apply their own standards." Curiel, 227 Wis. 2d at 415 (citing
Popanz, 112 Wis. 2d at 173); see algo State v. Courtney, 74 Wis.
2d 705, 711, 247 N.w.2d 714 (1976).

9418 The statute identifies five elements, each of which

must be satisfied before a person may be civilly committed., It

9
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No. 01-0374

precisely, though perhaps clumsily, identifies those to whom it
applies. That the statute attempted to do all of this in one
paragraph, rather than through separate, discrete subparts, does
not make it constitutionally infirm. We measure the statute for
its constitutionality, not its technique of draftsmanship.

119 First, a person who is the subject of a commitment
petition must be mentally ill. See Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)l.®
and § 51.20(1)(a)2.9.‘ Whether a person is mentally ill is a
nedical judgment, see.Humphrey v. Cady, 405 U.S. 504, 509

(1972), made by applying the definition of mental illness in

Wis, stat. § 51.01(13)(b), lwhich 'is applicable to all

involuntary commitments under Wis. Stat. § 51.20. A
determination of mental illness requires a finding of ‘*a
substantial disorder of thought, mood, perception, orientation,
or memory which grossly impairs judgment, behavior, capacity to
recognize reality, or ability to meet the ordinary demands of
life.* wis. Stat. § 51,01(13)(b), .

920 Dennis H. argues that the fiflt:h standard's definition
of dangerousness is essentially no more than a reiteration of
the definition of mental illness, although in slightly different
terms, and therefore allows involuntary commitment upon a

finding of mental illness alone. This is not true. The fifth

5 wphe individual is mentally ill . . . drug dependent or
developmentally disabled and is a proper subject for treatment.*
Wig. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)l.

¢ The fifth standard removes those *"alleged to be drug
dependent or developmentally disabled* from its scope. Wis.

Stat. § 51.20(1) (a)2.e.

10
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standard's definition of dangerousness requires proof of a
substantial probability of something more than impairment;
section 51.20(1)(a)2.e. requires proof of a substantial
probability of a "loss of the individual's ability to function
independently in the community or the loss of cognitive or
volitional control over his or her thoughts or actions.* In
this regard, the fifth standard spells out a heightened standard
of impairment—beyond the threshold definition of mental
illness—for purposes of the dangerousness determination.

Accordingly, a finding of mental illness alone does not equate

to a finding of dangercusness under the fifth standard.

921 Second, the person who 1is the subject of the

commitment petition must be incompetent to make medication or l

q treatment decisions, or, more specifically, must be unable, !
"because of mental illness," to make "an informed choice as to

whether to accept or refuse medication or treatment." Wis.

Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.e. This must be evidenced either by an
*incapability of expressing an understanding of the advantages

and disadvantages of accepting medication or treatment and the
alternatives," or by a "substantial incapability of applying an

understanding of the advantages, disadvantages, and alternatives

to his or her mental illness." Id. This must occur "after the
advantages and disadvantages of and alternatives to accepting a
particular medication or treatment have been explained to him oxr
her." Id.
¥22 Thirg, the person must show & "substantia}
Q probability" that he or she "needs care or treatment to prevent
11
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further disability or deterioration." Id. This must be
"demonstrated by both the individual's treatment history and his

or her recent acts or omissions.* 1I1d.

923 Fourth, the person must evidence a "substantial
probability that he or she will, if left untreated, lack
~services necessary for his or her health or safety.* Id.

924 Fifth, the person must evidence “a substantial
probability that he or she will, if left untreated, . . . suffer
severe mental, emotional, or physical harm that will result in
the loss of the individual's ability to function independently
in the community or the loss of cognitive or volitional control
over his or her thoughts or actions.*" Id.

925 Only after each of these elements is proven may the
person be considered "dangerous" under the fifth standard. The
statute also contains an explicit limitation on its reach: "if
reasonable provision for the individual's care or treatment is
available in the community and there is a reasonable propability
that the individual will avail himself or herself of these
services," then a substantial probability of suffering severe

' mental, emotional, or physical harm does not exist. Id.
However, the simple provision of food and shelter by a non-
treatment facility does not satisfy the requirement of
"reasonable provision for the individual's care or treatment."

Id. The statute also specifies that an "individual's status as

a minor does not automatically establish a substantial
probability of suffering severe mental, emotional, or physical

harm., . ., .* 1Id. (
12 '
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No. 01-0374

926 It is important to note that the fifth standard
requires that these conditions be evident to a ‘"substantial
probability." Id. The "substantial probability" degree of

proof provides a proper standard of adjudication. See Curiel,

227 Wis. 24 at 414-15. The statute "is not so obscure that men
of common intelligence must necessarily guess at its meaning and
differ as to its applicability." Curiel, 227 Wis. 24 at 415
(citing Peissig v. Wisconsin Gas Co., 155 Wis. 2d 686, 699, 456
N.W.2d 348 (1990)).

Accordingly, we reject Dennis H.'s
contention that the fifth standard is unconstitutionally vague.

Overbreadth

927 Invalidation of a statute on overbreadth grounds is
"strong medicine" that is *employed by the Court sparingly and
only as a last resort." Janssen, 219 Wis. 2d at 373 (quoting
Broadrick v. Oklahoma, 413 U.S. 601, 613 (1973)). 'A statute is

overbroad when its language, given its normal meaning, is so
sweeping that its sanctions may be applied to constitutionally
protected conduct which the state is not permitted to regulate."

Id. {(quoting Bachowski v. Salamone, 139 Wis. 24 397, 411, 407

N.W.2d 533 (1987)). *A statute must be narrowly enough drawn
that its terms can be given a reasonably precise content and
those persons it encompasses can be identified with reasonable

accuracy." Post, 197 wis. 2d at 303 (citing 0O'Connor v,

Donaldson, 422 U.S. 563, 575 (1975)).

428 When the legislature ‘"undertakes to ac¢t in areas
fraught with medical and scientific uncertainties," however,
"legislative options must be especially broad." Post, 197 Wis.

13
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2d at 304 (quoting Jones, 463 U.S. at 370, and Marshall wv.

N R 3
S

| United States, 414 U.S. 417, 427 (1974)). A mental commitment

provision is overly broad only if by its terms it could
reasonably be applied to commit mentally ill persons who are not
in any way dangerous to themselves or others. See id. The
fifth standard's focus is on dangerousness to sgelf—
dangerousness of a particularly insidious nature because it is
chronic and cyclica; (measured by treatment history and recent
acts or omissions),‘ and brought on by mental illness that
produces an incapacity to make medication or treatment decisions
as well as a substantial probapility of an incapacity to care
for oneself. The. fifth standard dOeé not apply to mentally ill

peopie who are not dangerous to themselves. Accordingly, the

Jo——

statute is not unconstitutionally overbroad. | (

Equal Protection

429 Dennis H. also argues that the fifth standard violates
equal protection by allowing for commitment and involuntary .

medicatiqn under circumstances different tHan those existing

under any of the other four standards. See Wis. Stat.
§ 51.20(1){a)2.a.~e. and (13) (dm), The focus of hig argument

is on the fifth standard's use of the phrase "mental, emotional,’
or physical harm," gee Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.e., in contrast
to the requirement in each of the first four standards of some

form of "physical® harm. See Wis. Stat..S§ 51,20(1)(a)2.a.~d.’

7 the first four étandards define dangerbusness as follows:

. Evidences a substantial probabilitylof physical |
harm to himself or herself as manifested by evidence (r
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Specifically, Dennis H. contends that the statute impermissibly
dispenses with a requirement of physical harm, allowing

involuntary commitment and forcible medication upon a finding of

mere mental or emotional harm.

430 Dennis H. reads the statute too narrowly. The flith
standard requires proof of a substantial probability that "if
left untreatedﬁ the individual will *lack services necessary
for his or her health or safety and suffer severe mental,
emotional or physical harm that will result in the loss of the

individual's ability to function independently in the community

of recent threats of or attempts at suicide or serious
bodily harm. Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.a.

Evidences a substantial probability of physical
o harm to other individuals as manifested by evidence of !
~ recent homicidal or other violent behavior, or by !
evidence that others are placed in reasonable fear of ‘
violent behavior and serious physical harm to them, as
evidenced by a recent overt act, attempt or threat to
do serious physical harm . . . ." Wis. Stat.
§ 51.20(1)(a)2.b

Evidences such impaired judgment, manifested by
evidence of a pattern of recent acts or omissions, i
that there 1is a substantial probability of physical
impairment or injury to himself or herself. Wis,
stat, § 51.20(1)(a)2.c.

Evidences behavior manifested by recent acts or
omigsions that, due to mental illness, he or she is
unable to satisfy basic needs for nourishment, medical
care, shelter or safety without prompt and adequate
treatment so that a substantial probability exists
that death, serious physical injury, serious physical
debilitation or serious ©physical disease will
imminently ensue unless the individual receives prompt
and adequate treatment for this mental illness. Wis.

Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.d.
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or the loss of cognitive or volitional control over his or her
thoughts or actions.* Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1) (a)2.e. (emphasis
added). The legislature has thus defined dangerousness in the
fifth standard by reference to a threat to the individual's
fundamental health or safety and a 1loss of the ability to
function independently or control thoughts or actions. Mere
emotional or mental harm is insﬁfficient for commitment.

31 .In any event, to the extent that the differences
between the fifth standard and the first four result in a
classification for purposes of equal protection analysis, it is
not a constitutionally impermiss%ble one. Whether a legislative
distinction between otherwise 8imilarly situated persons

violates equal protection depends upon whether there is a

reasonable basis to support it. State ex rel., dJones v.
Gerhardstein, 141 Wis. 2d 710, 733, 416 N.wW.2d 883 (1987); see
also Post, 197 Wis. 2d at 319-20 (noting that the Supreme Court

has not explicitly required strict or intermediate scrutiny of
involuntary commitment statutes challenged on equal protection
grounds), *Where the classification does not invblve a suspect
class, equal protection is denied only if the legislature has
made an irrational or arbitrary classificatien.*  Jones, 141
Wis. 2d at 733.

932 "[Tlhe state retains broad discretion to create

classifications so long as the classifications have a reasonable

basig.” MdMénus, 152 Wis. 2d at 131 (citing Graham v,
Richardson, 403 U.S. 365, 371 (1971)). Under the rational basis

The micrographic imeges
. were 11 regu

{
being f1lmed,

test, & statutory c¢lassification . is presumed to be proper.
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State v. Hart, 89 Wis. 24 58, 65, 277 N.wW.2d 843 (1979). It
will be sustained if the reviewing court can identify any

reasonable basis to support it. Matter of Care and Maintenance

of K.C., 142 wis. 2d 906, 916, 420 N.w.2d 37 (1988). Any doubt
must be resolved in favor of the reasonableness of the
classification and the constitutionality of the statute in which

it is made. Racine Steel Castings v. Hardy, 144 Wis. 24 553,

560, 426 N.W.2d 33 (1988). A "legislative enactment must be
sustained unless it is 'patently arbitrary' and bgars no
rational relationship to a legitimate government interest."

McManus, 152 Wis. 24 at 131 (citing Frontiero v. Richardson, 411

U.S. 677, 683 (1973)).8
933 The fifth standard applies to mentally ill persons

whose mental illness renders them incapable of making informed
medication decisions and makes it substantially probable that,
without treatment, disability or deterioration will result,
bringing on a loss of ability to provide self-care or control
thoughts or actions. It allows the state to intervene with care

and treatment before the deterioration reaches an acute stage,

® Accord Milner v. Apfel, 148 F.3d 812, 815-16 (7th Cir,
1998). The Seventh Circuit noted that "the uniform view of the
courts of appeals" 1s that *rational basis 1is the proper
standard for deciding equal protection cases' involving the
mentally 1l1l1. fThe court also noted that several Supreme Court
cases imply or suggest the same. See id. (citing Heller v. Doe

by Doe, 509 U.S. 312, 321 (1993) ("We Je have applied rational-basis
review in previous cases involving the mentally retarded and the
mentally ill."); City of Cleburne v. Cleburne Living Center, 473
U.S. 432, 466 (1985); Jones v. United States, 463 U.S. 354, 363
(1983); Jackson v. Indiana, 406 U.S. 715, 736-37 (1972);
Baxstrom v, Herold, 383 U.S. 107, 111-15 (1966)). :
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(1979). The state also has "authority under its police power to
protect the community" from any dangerous mentally ill persons.
Heller, 509 U.S. at 332 (citing Addington, 441 U.S. at 426).
The state's legitimate interest ceases to exist, however, if
those sought to be confined "are not mentally ill or if they do
not pose some danger to themselves or others.*® Addington, 441
U.S. at 426 (emphasis added).

937 “(E]lven if there is no foreseeable risk of self-injury
or suicide, a person is literally ‘'dangerous to himself' if for
physical or other reasons he is helpless to avoid the hazards of

freedom either through his own efforts or with the aid of

willing family members or friends." 0O'Connor v. Donaldson, 422
U.S. 563, 574, n.9 (1975) (emphasis added). Substantive due
process has not been held to require proof of imminent physical

dangerousness to self or others as a necessary prerequisite to

involuntary commitment.?®

9 Addington also held that due process requires that the'

middle “"clear and convincing® burden of proof apply to
involuntary commitment proceedings. Addington v. Texas, 441
U.S. 418, 433 (1979): see also Foucha v. Louisiana, 504 U.S. 71,

75-76 (1992).

10 o'Connor held that "{a) finding of ‘mental illness'
alone cannot justify a State's locking a person up againgt his
will and keeping him indefinitely in simple custodial
confinement." O'Connor v. Donaldson, 422 U.S, 563, 575 (1975)
(emphasis added). As we have noted, the fifth standard does not
allow involuntary civil commitment upon a finding of mental
illness alone. Nor does it place the mentally 1ill person in
simple  custodial  confinement.  See, e.g., Wis. Stat.
§ 81.20(10) (em) (requiring the formulation of a treatment plan
prior to commitment); wWis. Stat. § 51.20(13)(g)2d.a. (limiting
the time a person committed under the fifth standard can spend
in inpatient treatrent to 30 days).

19
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938 It 1is well-established that the =state “*cannot
constitutionally confine without more a nondangerous individual
who is capable of surviving safely in freedom by himself or with
the help of willing and responsible family members or friends."

Id. at 576; see also Foucha v. Louisiana, 504 U.S. 71, 78 (1992)

(involuntary mental health commitment 1is improper absent a
determination vof current mental illness and dangerousness).
This does not mean, however, that substantive due process
requires the state to restrict the scope of its mental health
commitment statutes to onl? those individuals who are imminently
physically dangerous. There iswno "single definition that must
be used as the mental condition sufficient for involuntary
mental commitments.® Post, 197 Wis. 2d at 304. In this
complicated and difficult area, the Supreme Court "has wisely
left tﬁe job of «creating statutory definitions to the
legislators who draft state laws." Id.

39 'The 'fifth standard permits commitment only when a
mentally i1ill person needs care or. treatment to prevent
deterioration but is unable to make an informed choice to accept
it. This must be ‘"demonstrated by both the individual's
treatment history" and by the person's ‘"recent acts or
omissions." Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.e. It must also be
substantially probable that if left untreated, the person "will
suffer severe mental, emotional or physical harm* resulting in

the loss of the ‘"ability to function independently in the

community® or in the loss of "cognitive or volitional control.®

20
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Id. Only then may the individual be found "dangerous" under the

fifth standard.

No. 01-0374 I |
|
|
940 The fifth standard thus fits easily within the 0'Connor ’
formulation: even absent a requirement of obvious physical harm
such as self-injury or suicide, a person may still be "dangerous
to himself" if "he 1is helpless to avoid the hazards of freedom
either through his own efforts or with the aid of willing family
members or friends." O0'Connor, 422 U.S. at 574, n.S.
941 Moreover, by requiring dangerousness to be evidenced

by a person's treatment history along with his or her recent

acts or omissions, the fifth standard focuses on those who have

been in treatment before and yet remain at risk of severe harm,

i.e., those who are chronically mentally ill and drop out of

) therapy or discontinue medication, giving rise to a substantial

probability of a deterioration in condition to the point of
inability to function independently or control thoughts or

actions. See Darold A. Treffert, The MacaArthur Coercion

Studies: A Wisconsin Perspective, 82 Marg. L. Rev. 759, 780

(1999). The statute represents the fruition of the efforts of
the Wisconsin State Medical Society and the Alliance for the
Mentally Ill, profesgsional organizations which recognized a need
for a law that could be applied to those victims of mental
illness who fell through the cracks under the old statutory
scheme. See id.
942 *As with all enactments, we presume good faith on the
‘ part of the legislature.” [Post, 197 Wis. 2d at 308 (citing
O State ex rel. Thomson v. Zimmerman, 264 Wis., 644, 652, 60 N.w,zé ,
21
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416 (1953)). By permitting intervention before a mentally 111 '
person's condition becomes critical, the legislature has enabled

the mental health treatment community to break the cycle ;
associated with incapacity to choose medication or treatment, |
restore the person to a relatively even keel, prevent serious
and potentially catastréphic harm, and ultimately reduce the
amount of time spent in an institutional setting.!’ This type of
"“prophylactic interyention" does not .wiolate substantive due

process.

943 A number of amicus curiae briefs have been filed by

professional and}advocacy organizations, both in support of and
opposition to the fifth standard, and they cite academic !
B research on both sides of the policy choice that the statute
ﬁ }: embodies. "The fact that studies reaching opposite conclusions (ﬁ
cah be cited on both sides of this igsue does not preclude the i

legislature from acting, nor does it compel a finding of

unconstitutionality." Post, 197 Wis. 2d at 31l.

944 The Supreme Court has cautioned against judicial
second-guessing of legislative judgments in the area of mental
health commitments:

We do not agree with the suggestion that Congress'
power to legislate in thilis area depends on the
research conducted by the psychiatric community. We
have recognized repeatedly the ‘“uncertainty of
diagnosis in this field and the tentativeness of
professional judgment. The only certain thing that

! As we have noted, those committed under the fifth |
standard are initially limited ¢to 30 days of inpatient i
treatment. See supra, note 10. (: g
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M can be said about the present state of knowledge and
' ' therapy regarding mental disease is that science has
not reached finality of judgment . . . . " The lesson
we have drawn is not that government may not act in
the face of this uncertainty, but rather that courts
should pay ©particular deference to reasonable

legislative judgments.

Id. (citing Jones, 463 U.S. at 364 n.13 (citations omitted in

original)). We defer, therefore, to the legislature's

resolution of the conflicting positions of mental health
advocates and psychiatric professionals.

945 In summary, the fifth standard does not allow
involuntary commitment upon a finding of mental illness alone,
and contains an ascertainable standard of commitment, and is

therefore not unconstitutionally vague oxr overbroad.

Furthermore, +the fifth standard does not c¢reate a c¢lagss of

C‘W persons who can be involuntarily committed upon a £inding of

g

mere mental or emotional harm, and therefore does not violate

R . )

equal protection. Finally, the fifth standard does not violate
substantive due process, because the constitution does not
require proof of imminent physical harm prior to commitment for

treatment. Accordingly, the fifth standard of dangerousness for

inveluntary civil commitment, Wis. Stat. § 51.20(1)(a)2.e., is

constitutional.

By the Court.—-The order of the Milwaukee County Circuit

Court is affirmed.
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TN 946 SHIRLEY S. ABRAHAMSON, CHIEF JUSTICE (concurring).
| Both mental illness and dangerousness are necessary to satisfy

the requirements of substantive due process for involuntary

e -

civil commitment in Wisconsin.

¥47 The so-called fifth standard was enacted to allow for :

o

the hospitalization and treatment of individuals with a history

S

" of mental health treatment who become incapable of making

rational treatment decisions and refuse treatment. For such

SO

individuals, refusing timely treatment could lead to substantial

e

e AR S A R S R R N AR B S S

mental deterioration. For family members and friends, a loved
one's refusal of timely treatment can result in an agonizing and

helpless wvigil as that individual's mental, emotional, and '

physical condition deteriorates.

948 A court must balance the desires of mental health
professionals, friends, and family members who believe that care (

and treatment are in the best interests of a person who is

mentally ill, and the constitutional 1liberty interests of

In recent decades, this balance has been struck by requiring

4
:
;
individuals to be free from unwanted and unnecessary :estraints. “ a
/
!

proof of mental illness and imminent dangerousness to self or j
]

' others before permitting involuntary civil commitment.? 1

$49 The fifth standard comes perilously close to upsetting

this balance. It passes constitutional muster for me only so

| | 1 see O'Connor v. Donaldson, 422 U.S. 563, 573-76 (1975)
(state cannot confine nondangerous person without more); Lessard
v. Schmidt, 379 F.Supp. 1376, 1381 (E.D. Wis. 1974), vacated and
remanded on other grounds, 421 U.S. 957 (1975), reinstated 413
F.Supp. 1318 (E.D. Wis. 1976) (mandating dangerousness al a
constitutional prerequisite to involuntary hospitalization). (

1
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No. 01-0374.ssa
'4.,.4) long as courts require significant evidence of the statutory
elements, and treatment is in fact provided. For the reasons
set forth, I write separately.
9450 I am authorized to state that Justices WILLIAM A.
BABLITCH and ANN WALSH BRADLEY join this opinion.
|
\_ |
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February 27, 2003

Representative Duane DeKrey

Chairman, House Committee on the Judiciary
4323 — 27° Street, SE

Pettibone, ND 58475.9357

Dear Chairman DeKrey and Members of the Judiciary Committee:

I am writing in behalf of the Nationa] Alliance for the Mentally Iil (NAMI) in support of
Senate Bill Number 2296 (SB 2296), an Act to amend certain sections of the North Dakota
Century Code relating to civit commitment procedures for individuals with mental
illnesses. With more than 220,000 members and 1,200 state and local affiliates, NAMI is
the nation’s leading grassroots organization dedicated to improving the lives of people

with severe mental illnesses.

NAMI strongly believes that decisions to involuntarily commit individuals to treatment
should not be made lightly. Involuntary interventions should occur only as a last resort
and laws governing involuntary commitment and involuntary treatment must ensure that
individuals subject to these interventions are afforded a full xange of due process rights and
protections, including right to counsel, right to prese:at testimony in one's own half, and

others.

However, NAMI also recognizes that Jaws requiring proof of imminent danigerousness
before involuntary treatment interventions occur can cause unnecessary suffering and
impede treatment and recovery for certain individuals whose symptoms preclude them
from recognizing their need for treatment or making informed treatment decisions, Axnd,
scientific evidence establishes that it is very difficult for psychiatnists or other mental
health professionals to accurately predict imminent dangetousness to self or othexs.

=2

SB 2296 would establish 2 more balanced approach by allowing treatment interventions to
occur based on lack of capacity to make informed, rational treatment decisions that create a -
substantial ok of substantial deterioration in physical of mental health or a substantial risk
of injury, disease or death, The burden of proving that the individual requires treatment
would remain with the party seeking the involuatary treatment order, while ephancing the
ability to intercede in a bumane fashion before needless suffeting occurs.

Thank you for affording me the opportunity to comment on this important legislation.
Please contact me (phone: 301-424-5847; email: RonH@nami.otg) with any questions.

Sincerely,
Ronald S, Honberg, J.D., M.Ed
National Director for Policy and Legal Affairs

| NAMN | The Nation's Velce on Mental liiness
Colontal Place Three + 2107 Wilson Blvd,, Suite 300 » Arlington, VA 222013042
PH: 703.524.7610 « FX: 703.524,9004 ¢ 1,800.950 NAMI (6264) ¢ www.natnd.otg
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NORTH DAKOTA SENATE

STATE CAPITOL
- 600 EAST BOULEVARD
BISMARCK, ND 58505-0360
District 21
1125 College Strest
Fargo, ND 58102-3433
cnelson @ state.nd.us

Testimony in favor of SB 22986

Can you identify a mentally ill person? [s it that man you passed on the street
yesterday? Is it the woman you talked to in the grocery store? Is it the young man in the
advanced economics class of the university's MBA program? Is it the young mother ;
you saw at the daycare center? lIs it a family member? It could be any of these people.
Mental iliness is a neurological brain disorder, requiring medical care the same as any !
other disease. This bill deals with civil commitment of mentally ilf persons to a place i
deemed to be the least restrictive environment for the situation. In the past we have !
viewed this place to be residential or Institutional. Now we see “out-patient” as an
alternative, The last revision of this sectlon of the code was 1993,

This bill adds one definition. “Alternative treatment” order means an involuntary
outpatient order for a treatment program, other than hospitalization, which may include
treatment with a prescribed medication. Involuntary commitment should occur only as a |
last resort. The blll is written to protect the rights of citizens with mental iliness with the j

full range of safeguards and due process.

!
' ) The second revision of a definition is in subsection 12, “person requiring treatment”, !
Subsection d. “Serious risk of harm” will include (along with subsections a-c) the %
substantial deterioration in mental health which would predictably result in
dangerousness to that person, others or property based upon acts, threats, or patterns
in the person’s treatment history, current condition, and other relevant factors, including
the effect of the person's mental condition on the person’s ability to consent.

Section 2 allows upon notice and hearing, a treating psychiatrist and another licensed
physiclan (or a psychiatrist not involved In the current diagnosis or treatment) may
request authorization of the court to treat a person with a prescribed medication that is
clinically appropriate and necessary to effectively treat the patient. The only change
here is the deletion of “there is a reasonable expectation that if the person is not treated
as proposed there exists a serious risk of harm to that person, other person, or
property.” Sulcide, murder, preventable crime, irreversible brain damage, drug
addiction... can we not only predict these tragedies but prove that they will happen?
The Senate judiclary committee preferred the language “patient is a person requiring

treatment”.

This bill is a balanced approach to allow treatment interventions to ocour based on lack
of capacity to make informed, rational declisions.

| encourage a “Do Pass” on SB 2296
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02-26-2003  03:30P  FROM-FARGO POLICE

.

+T012077789 T-313  P.001/002 F-328

FAX TRANSMISSION

City of Fargo i
Police Department §
P.O. Box 150, Fargo, North Dakota 58107 ]
February 26, 2003
Dear Representative Tirmm:

| am writing to express my support for SB2296 when it comes before you next week. This bill would
make it easier to get help for people with mental llinesses through the commitment process. Rather
than waiting until someone commits suicide, seriously hurts themselves, or hamms other people, this
bill would allow family, friends, and others who interact with persons with serious untreated mental
ilinesses to get them the care they need—when it can still make a difference.

As someone involved in law enforcement for the past twenty years, | have seen many situations
where individuals with varlous mental llinesses were allowed to “fall through the cracks,” often
resulting in tragic outcomes. A fellow police officer | worked with for several years, Officer Julie
Englehardt, was shot and killed by an older man with untreated mental problems when she
approached him in his backyard about a sled he had taken from some neighborhood children, We
learned later that his family and others had tried for years to get him help, but he had refused all

intervention efforts.

IMany of us have recognized for a long time that the commitment process throughout this country
needs to be improved. By passing SB2296, North Dakota has a chance to be a leader in this area. !
hope you will carefully review this important plece of legislation and give it the support it deserves.

Sincerely yours,
Chris Magnus

Fargo Chief of Police
(701)241-1400
cimagnus@oi.fargo.nd.us |
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; “Kim D. Murphy" Toi < slvsongstate.nd.un >, <tmathern@state.nd.us >
o ¢ <kmurphy@state.nd.u cc: <scottb@co.wiliiams.nd.us>, <rthane@state.nd.us>,
s> <jheitkam@state.nd.us >, <beckre@state.nd.us>,
<cdwiliams@state.nd.us >

03/03/2003 06:02 PM  gypject: SB 2296

Senator Stan Lyson —

| understand you will be testifying Wednesday at 0900hrs in committee hearing on Mental Health SB
2296. | also know that you support this bill and that Sheree Spear has had communications with you. |
too support this bill, but with some reservations. | have been in contact with Sheree Spear over the past
few weeks on a somewhat regular basis. | also am aware that she has had contact with Chief Kemmet of
Devils Lake, Chief Magnus of Fargo, and Sheriff Scott Busching of Willlams County, Both Chief Kemmet
and Chief Magnus fully support this bill. | cannot speak for Sheriff Busching but, | think he too supports
this bill but this some reservations.

This bilf would make it easier {o help people with suspected mental llinesses. it would alfow law :
enforcement to act earlier in the mental iliness committal process, i.e. act more on a “gut feeling” or “sixth i
sense” approach. | believe that the current mental illness committal process is a good one and ! do not :
want the current tools we have to become more restricting in anyway for law enforcement or familles. }
However, | hope that SB 2296 will only help facilitate family, friends, law enforcement, and others who
Interact with people with suspected untreated mental ilinesses. Getting people with untreated mental |
{inesses Into treatment or at least into the evaluation process as soon as possibie so care and treatment ‘!
can be started Is key and | can see benefits this Bill In that regard. However...

- A "

. This Bill may create much more work for Sheriff's Departments across the State, much more so than
Police Departments. Currently police departments do not transport mentai health committals to
Jamestown that is almost solely a County law enforcement function. | am concerned (as is Sheriff
Busching) that it will cause sheriff departments to expend more labor hours in transports, mental health
hearings, and interventions for both juvenile and adults. Therefore, we will need to increase our
department budgets to adequately cope with this. | also have a concern with the current limited number of
mental health facilities around the State. if we currently deal with any mental health intervention, we are
required to transport immediately. If the person has Insurance they may be admitted to a local hospital,
othenwise, we will be required to transport to Fargo or Jamestown right away. Most of the time it will be a
transport to Jamestown (as you remember | am sure). Furthermore, if law enforcement is able to act on a
more discretionary opinion for suspected mental ilinesses under SB 2296 wil there be a “Hold Harmless
Clause" for law enforcement agencies and officers? If we act in good faith on what we belleve, at the
time, to bea someone suffering from an untreated mental iliness and it later turns out not to be, but now that
person claims that they suffer from the “stigma of mental iliness” will there be protection?

Again, | do support this bill, but with some reservations. | do believe we need to improve the mental health
laws for the benefit of the patients, family, friends, and community. However, there are the looming Issues
of disappearing funding, facilities, and mental health professional staff. Everyone is feeling these funding
cuts on the State and County levels, We are all endeavoring to do more with less and there is no real
relief for all these Issues. Therefore, | hope we all can have a careful review of this Bill so it will be truly a
benefit for all those that need assistance and not let anyone fall through the mental health
treatment/evaluation cracks. The second balanced Issue to this will be not create a funding or staffing

burden on any one or two entities.
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R Thank you, Sir for taking the time to review my input. If at anytime, you have any questions or concerns
please do not hesitate to ask.
Respectfully,
Kim D. Murphy, Sheritf (Kim)
Kim D. Murphy, Sheriff
Richiand County Sheriff's Department
413 3rd Ave No,, LE.C.

~ Wahpeton, No. Dak., 58075

Office: 701-642-77114

. Fax: 701-642-7720

(, - “Uniting Richland County by

investing in the Strengths of each other.” 1
| |
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Dear Senator Lyson,

| am writing concerning SB 2296, the Mental Health Commitment Bill. On its face, we as ND Sheriff's &
Deputies support this bill. We do, however, have some concerns.

With the downsizing of the State Hospital and the requirements that patients have insurance for the
private facilities, we wonder what effect this bill will have on our ability to house and treat these folks. We
certainly see the need to be able to provide services for those people who require intervention but do not
necessarily meet the “danger to themselves or others” requirement as it is now written. We are afraid,
however, thatourjatlamaymanlnoreaseinuaoby&mmaronotodmlnals.butmsuﬂorlngfrom

mental iness and for lack of any where to house them, are placed with us. We strongly agree that Jall is
not a place for those who are mentally ill.

We are aiso aware that this bill would benefit those who need help but do not qualify under current
reguiations but as law enforcement officers are sometimes stuck between feuding spouses, or other
family members who, at times, tell us stories in order to “get back” at their partners. This, at tmes, make
forsomovorydifﬁwndodsmtobemadebyus.mmnotmenuhedﬂ\pmfmbrm.

Having said all this, we want to do what's right for those individuals who may falf through the cracks of the
current system and will have to place our trust in the mental health people who support this bil.

Sincerely,

--------

| : Scott W. Busching
( Williams County Sheriff
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SENATE BILL 2296
HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
March 5, 2003

CORINNE HOFMANN
PROTECTION AND ADVOCACY PROJECT

Chairman DeKrey and Members of the Committee, my name Is |
Corinne Hofmann. I am Director of Policy and Operations for the !
Protection and Advocacy Project [P&A]. We are aware of the concerns |
that led to the submission of this biil for the legislature’s consideration.
' We agree with proponents of this bill that the system sometimes fails g

to provide the needed intervention and assistance to people with

mental iliness. We have heard concerns expressed by those in law

enforcement and corrections about too many people with mental

iliness ending up in the criminal justice system for lack of adequate

services. We do not agree that the changes proposed in this bill will
o address these problems and are opposed to Senate Bill 2296.

The blll defines “alternative treatment order”. Section 25-03.1-21
establishes the meaning of “alternative treatment order”. It is an
order for a treatment program other than hospitalization. That section
also describes the process for obtaining alternative treatment orders.
Currently, alternative treatment orders often include prescribed
medication and medication monitoring. The proposed definition is
unnecessary

| Senate Bill 2296 proposes to delete “serious risk of harm” and
replace it with a “person requiring treatment” in section 25-03.1-18.1.

"Serlous risk of harm” was chosen by the task force that drafted |
this section specifically to emphasize the critical Issue In the
commitment process. Eliminating this language makes the process

less focused and this increases the likelihood that people will be z.
“ ?’“ inappropriately committed. Involuntary treatment Is supposed to be
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imposed only on those who pose a serlous risk of harm to themselves
and others. The process Is too intrusive to be available just because
soimeone might benefit from treatment.

The remaining change proposed in Senate Bill 2296 is a change to
section 25-03.1-2 (11) (d). The proposed language Is problematic.

Similar language can be found in Wisconsin's mental health
commitment statute. The language Is part of Wisconsin’s “Fifth
Standard” for involuntary commitment. The Wisconsin standard has
been challenged and upheld as constitutional by Wisconsin’s Supreme
Court.

The Wisconsin court decision Is not helpful in the legal or
constitutional analysis of the language in Senate Bill 2296. Wisconsin's
Fifth Standard is substantially different from the language in SB 2296.
The standard Is quite lengthy. I have attached a copy to my
testimony. The Wisconsin Supreme court explained Its Fifth Standard
as requiring each of five elements:

1. The person must be mentally ill; and

2. The person must be unable, because of mental lliness to make

an informed choice as to whether to accept or refuse medication.
This must be evidenced by an Inability to express an
understanding, or an inability to apply an uniderstanding of the
advantages and disadvantages of accepting treatment and the
alternatives after this has been explained to him or her; and

3. There must be a substantial probability that the person needs

care or treatment to prevent further deterioration. This must be
demonstrated by both the individual’s treatment history and his

recent acts or omissions; and
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~ 4, There must be a substantial probability that the person wili, If
left untreated, lack services necessary for his or her health or
safety; and
5. There must be a substantial probabllity that If left untreated, the
person will suffer severe mental, emotionat, or physical harm
that will result in the loss of the individual’s ability to function
independently in the community or the loss of cognitive or
volitional control over his or her thoughts or actions. |
This standard does not apply in emergency commitments.
In contrast, the language proposed in Senate BIll 2296 is overly
broad and vague and would apply to both involuntary and emergency
commitments. Unlike the Wisconsin statute, it allows a determination
of “dangerousness” based solely upon a “loss of cognitive or volitional
control over a person’s thoughts or actions”. The meaning of this
~ language Is unclear and interpretation will, of necessity, be highly |

S S S

subjective.

Because “or” is used to connect the new language to the rest of
subsection d, acts, thireats, or patterns in the person's history, current
. condition, and other relevant factors would not need to be considered.
This Is inconsistent with the well established constitutional requirement
for clear and convincing evidence prior to imposing involuntary

treatment.

Also, incluslon of the person’s capaclty to consent or make an
informed choice should not be an element In determining
“dangerousness”. Incorporating this standard is inconsistent with
section 25-03.1-33, which states that a determination that a person
requires treatment, a court order for hospitalization or for alternative
treatment, or an admission to a hospital is not a finding that the |

‘\) person Is legally incormnpetent or unable to give or withhold consent,
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% If the person’s capacity to consent or make an informed choice Is at
} Issue, a guardianship proceeding adequately addresses the needs of
the person. Lack of capacity to consent and legal Incompetence do not
! predict “dangerousness”.

The cases presented in support of SB 2296 point to fallures In
implementation of the law, not a problem with the law itself. Human
error can be minimized with education and training. Adequate training
and dlalogue between the varlous partles responsible for interpreting |
and implementing the law will help ensure consistency in ~
implementation. This Is not occurring. This needs to happen.

The state has an obligation to provide for the welfare of its citizens.
Adequately addressing the needs of persons with mental iliness is a
challenge. The state must walk a fine line between safeguarding the ?
health of this vuinerable population and safeguarding Individuals’ right

~ to liberty. Our current commitment law was designed in a deliberate

process that allowed adequate time for research, input, and study.
The changes proposed in Senate Bill 2296 jeopardize the delicate
balance achieved in our current law.

There are other more practical problems. The Department of
Human Services funds are being cut rather than increased. The state
hospital Is downsizing and human service centers are cutting services

: and staff. If the system must serve more people, will resources be

i‘ adequate for those currently in the system? Will additional money be
glven to the delivery system to meet the heeds of people brought into
the system? How and where will these people be served? Can we
ensure that people are served In the least restrict setting possible? If |
the language proposed In Senate Bill 2296 leads to more f
commitments, will this create an urimanageable burden for the court
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~ system? The affect of the proposed language needs to be carefully
considered,.

Any change to the state’s commitment law should be done
thoughtfully after careful study and input from all relevant parties
involved in the process - including people with mental iliiess and
family members. P&A supports House Concurrent Resolution 3034,
which proposes such a study and asks you to vote against Senate Bill
2296.

This concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any
questions from the committee. Thank you.
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8118 MENTAL HEALTH ACT

who s confined in a jail, If the Indlvidual consents to the ovalua-
tion, diagnosis or freatment,

(11m) TRAINMNG, Law enforcement agencles shall designate
at lenst one officer authorized to take an Individual into custody
under this section who shall attend the in-service training on
emergency detention and emergenvy proteéctive placement proce-
dures offored by a county department of communi? programs
under s. 51,42 (3)(ar) 4. d., if the county department of community
programs serving the law enforcement agency's jurisdletion
offers an in—service tralning program.

(12) PenALTY. Whoever signs a statement under sub. (4), (5)
or {10) knowing the information contained therein to bo faise is
guilty of a Class H felony.

o I;O"_l'.!’t "sub. ':z) {1 shown &t smended eff, 2-1-03 by 2008 Wis. Act 109, Prioe

’12) PENALTY, Whoever signs a statement under sub, (4), ($) or (10} knowing
the information contained therein to be false may be fined not more thun $5,000
of lmprisaned for not more thun T years and 6 months or both,

Histarys 1975 0, 430: 1977 0, 29, 4281 (979 ¢, 175, 300, 336 353- {983 . 176;

1987 8. 366, 304; 1089 0, 56 1, 399 1993 u, 431; 1998 a. 77, 175, 292; 1997 a, 35,
2831 2001 &, 16 5. 19664 to |966h, 4034zb to 403uzd, 4 1d to 0415 2001 a (09,

g e vy coy ok Wi sy G

‘ not taken Lato cust an .
tion, Kell v, Raemisch, 190 Wis, 2d 754, 428 N‘w.zZ“Ya (Ct. App. |9%4), Y

The time limits established by this section are triggered when & person taken Into
custody under thly section s transported to any of the facilitles designated by sub, (2},
irrespectlve of whether the Facility ii one specirically chosen by ihe county for the
receipt of persons taken into custody under thiy section, Milwaukee County v.
Delores M, 317 Wis, 2d 69, $77 N, W.2d 371 (Ct. App. [998).

Tha community caretaker exeeption that allows police officers (o make a warrahts
less entry into & home when engaging In an activity that is untelated to ériminal activ-
ity aid is for the public good applies to police detivity undertaken pursuait to this sec.
tion, State v. Homgren, 2000 I App 177, 238 Wis, 2d 347, 617 N.W.2d 508,

1t {8 inadvisable to treat indlviduals transported across state lines for emetgency
medival care differently than other indlvidusls when detormining whether emenjency
detention proceedings should be initiated ptirsuant to this section. 78 Anty, Gen. 59,

While sub. (7) does not authorize contractual agreements witlh countles outside of
Wisconsin, g8, 51,75 (11, S8.87 (), und 66.30 (5} [now 66.0303] ench contain légul
inechanisms through which financial or other responsibility for care and treatment of
indlviduals trom such counties may be shared under certain specified clroumstance,
78 Atty, Cen, 59,

A law enforcement officer who places an individual undar emergencr detentlon
Is obllgated to transport the ndividial to one of the four categories of facllities llsted
under sub. (2} until custody of the individual i transfermed ta the facility. 81 Atty.

Qen, (10,

$1.20 Involuntary commitment for treatment. (1) Peri-
TION FOR EXAMINATION. (1) Bxcept as provided in pars. (ab), (am),
(ar) and (av), every writtet petition tor examination shall allege
that all of the fomwing apply to the subject indlvidual to be
examined:

1. The individual ts mentally ill or, except as provided under
subd, 2. ¢., drug dependent or developmentally disabled and is a
proper subject for treatment.

2. The Individual is dangerous because he or she does any of
the following:

a. Evidences a substantiai probability of' physical harm to
himself or herself us manifested by evidence of recent threats of
or atternpts at suicide or serious bodily harm,

b. Evidences a substantiat probability of physical ham to
other Individuals as manifested by evidence of recent homicidal
or other violent behavior, or by evidence that others are placed in
reasonable fear of violent behavior and serfous physical harm to
them, as evidenced by a recent overt act, atternpt or threat to do
serious physical harm, In this subd, 2. b.. {f the petition is filed
under a court order under s, 938,30 (5) (¢) 1. or (d) 1., a finding
by the court exercising jurisdiction under chs, 48 and 938 that the

Juvenile committed the act or acts alleged in the petition under s,

938,12 or 938.13 (12) may be used to prove that the juvenile
exhibited recent homicidal or other viotent behavior or committed
a recent overt act, attenipt or threat to do serious physical harm,

¢, Evidences such impaired judgment, manifested by svi-
dence of a pattern of recent acts or omissions, that there is a sub-
stantial probabllity of physical impalrment or injury to himself ot
herself. - The probability of physical impairment or injury is not
substantial under this subd. 2. ¢, if reasonable provision for the
subject Individual's protestion is available in the comtmunity and

Updated 01-02 Wi, Stats. Database 12
UNOFFICIAL TEXT

there Is a reasonable probability that the individual will avall him-
solf or herself of these services, If the individual is appropriate for
protective placement under s, 55,06 or, In the case of a minor, If
the indlvidual is appropriate for services or placement under s.
48,13 (4) or (11) or 938.13 (4), The subject individual’s status as
a minor does not automatically establish a substantial probability
of physical impairment ot injury under this subd, 2, o. , shel-
ter or other care provided to an Indlvidual who is substantially
incapable of obtainirig the care for himself or herself, by a person
other than a treatment facility, does not gonstitute reasonable pro-
vision for the subjeot individual's protection available in the com-
munity undeér this subd, 2. ¢,

d. Bvidences behavior manifested by recent acts or omissions
that, due to mental {liness, he or she is unable to satisfy basio needs
for nourishment, medical cars, shelter or safety without prompt
and adequate treatment so that a substantial probability exists that
death, serious physical Injury, serlous physical debilitation or seri-
ous physical disease will imminently ensue unless the individual
reveives prompt and adequate treatment for this mental illness.
No substantial probability of harm under this subd, 2, d. exlsts it
reasonable provision for the individual's treatment and protection
is available in the community and there Is i reasonable probability
that the individual wiil avail himself or herself of these services,
if the individual s appropriate for protective placement under s,
55.06 or, in the case of a minor, If the individual is appropriate for
services or placement under s, 48,13 (4) or (11) or 938.13 (4). The
individual’s status as a minor does not automatically establish o
substantial probability of death, serious physical injury, serious
physical debilitation or sertous disease under this subd, 2. d. Food,
shelter or other care provided to an individual who is substantially
incapable of obtalning the care for himsetf or herself, by any per-
son othér than a treatment facility, does not constitute reasonable
provision for the individual’s treatment or protection availablo in
the community under this sibd. 2. d.

d e Foran individual, other than an individual who Is alleged

to be drug dependent or developmentally disabled, after the
advantages and disadvantages of and allernatives to accepting a
particulae medication or tréatment have been explained to him or
her and because of mental (iness, evidences elther Incapability of
expressing an understanding of the advantages and disadvantages
of uccepting medication or treatment and the alternatives, or sub-
stantial incapability of applying an understanding of the advan.
tages. disadvantages, and alternatives to his or her mental illness
in order to make an informed cholcs as to whether to accept or
refuse medication or treatment; and evidences u substantiat proba-
bility, as demonstrated by both the individual's treatment history
and his or her recent acts or omissions, that the indlvidual needs
care or treatment to provent further disability or deterioration and
a substantial probability that he or she will, If left untreated, tack
services necessary for his or her health or safety and suffer severe
mental, emotional, or physical harm that will result in the loss of
the individual's ability to function independently in the commu-
nity or the loss of cognitive or volitional control over his or her
thoughts ot actions, The probability of suffering severe mental,
emotional, or physical harm Is not substantlal under this subd. 2.
¢, if reasonable provision for the individual's care or treatment is
available in the community and there Is a reasonable probability
that the individual will avail himself or herself of these services
or if the individual is appropriate for protective placement under
s, 55.06. Food, shelter, or other care that is provided to an individ-
ual who is substantially incapable of obtaining food, shelter, or
other care for himself or herself by any person other than a treat
ment facility does not constitute reasonable provision for the indi-
vidual's care or treatment in the community under this subd, 2, e,
The individual's status as a minor does not automaticaily establish
a substantial probability of suffering severe mental, emotional, or
physical harm under this subd, 2. e

(ab) [f the individual is an ihmate of a prison, jail or other crim-
inal detention facility, the fact that the individuai receives food,
shelter and other care in that facility may not limit the applicability

Unoficial text from 01-02 Wis. Stats. database. See printed 01-02 Statutes and 2003 Wis. Acts for official text under 3. 35,18
(2} stats, Report errors to the Revisor of Statutes at (608) 266-2011, FAX 264—6978, email bruce.munson@iegis.state.wi.us
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A Guide to
Kendra’s Law

Third Edition
Prepared by

The Treatment Advocacy Center
Arlington, Virginia

KENDRA'’S LAW

New York’s Law for
Assisted Qutpatient Treatment

Kendra's Law (New York Mental Hygiene Law § 9.60) allows courts to order certain individuals with brain disorders to
comply with treatment while living in the community. This court-ordered treatment is called assisted outpatient treatment.

The law took effect on November 8, 1999,»

Kendra's Law is an important advance, It allows individuals to be ordered into treatment without ordering them into a
hospital, In addition, the criteria to place someone in assisted outpatient treatment are easier to muet than the "imminent
dangerousness” standard often required for inpatient commitment in New York, Kendra's Law allovs someone to be ordered
into treatment "to prevent . relapse which or deterioration which would likely result in serious harm to the patient or others."
In other words, there is no need to wait until a deteriorating consumer actually is dangerous to self or others, as in the
inpatient standard; under Kendra's Law you can start procedures to "prevent a relapse"” that could lead to dangerousness. The
law includes strict eligibility criteria and numerous consumer protections,

In enacting Kendra's Law, the legislature found that some people, as a result of mental illness, have great difficulty taking
responsibility for their own care, and often reject outpatient treatment offered to them on a voluntary basis. These individuals
often commit suicide; become homeless; end up in jail; or, on rare occaslons, are involved in acts of violence, Family
members and caregivers often must stand by helplessly and watch their loved ones and patients decompensate to actual
"dangeroushess” before they are allowed to facilitate treatment, Assisted outpatient treatment is a new tool that may help in
these situations. But it is not a panacea.

. Assisted outpatient treatment is meant to help consumers, not punish them. Kendra’s Law makes New York the 41%! state to
“adopt assisted outpatient treatment,

http://www.psychlaws.org/State Activity/NewY ork/GuideKL htm 2/19/2003
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Guide to Kendra's Law Page 2 of 9

* In addition to provisions for assisted outpatient treatment, Kendra's Law also includes (1) a mechanism to see
that Individuals with brain disorders who are discharged from hospitals and Jalls and not yet Medicald eligible can

. continue to receive medications while their ap/olfcaﬂon Is pending; (2) provisions for Improved record sharing

among hospitals and mental health care providers so that a facility can access a consumer's records, even if the
consumer was freated at other facilities; (3) procedures to improve the use of conditional discharge for individuals
released from hospttals prior to the expiration of their inpatient commitment period, and (4) extension of the
outpatient commitment program at Bellevue Hospital in New York City. However, this summary only explains the
provisions refated to assisted outpatient treatment.

OVERVIEW

Arranging for assisted outpatient treatment is technical and somewhat cumbersome, Assisted outpatient treatment is only
available to individuals who meet certain defined criteria. Consumers can only be placed in the program by a court, which
must first receive a petition from one of a defined group of individuals, The petition must give the reasons why the petitioner
belioves the consumer meets the criteria and be accompanied by an sffidavit from a physician who has examined or tried to
examine the consumer within 10 days prior to filing the petition.

Once the court receives the petition and the physician’s affidavit it will schedule a hearing within 3 days, Notice of the
hearing must be given to the consumer and certain other individuals. The consumer is provided with free legal representation
from mental hygiene legal services and extensive due process protections throughout the assisted ou’patient treatment

process.

In the hearing, the court hears testimony and takes evidence from all the parties, including a doctor who has examined the
consumer, If the consumer has refused to be examined and the court believes the individual may meet the ctiteria for assisted
outpatient treatment, the court can order an examination and adjourn the heating until after it is completed. If the consumer

* has been examined and the court finds the individual meets all the criteria for placement in assisted outpatient treatment, it

will have a treatment plan developed and order the consumer to comply with it.

The time frame for creating the treatment plan varies slightly depending on who the petitioner is, If the petitioner is a
government official, the treatment plan will have been prepared by the time of the hearing, If the petitioner is anyone ¢lse and
the court believes the individual meets the criteria for assisted outpatient treatment, the court will have the state prepare a
treatment plan and conduct a second hearing to finalize it within three days, The consumer will be ordered to comply with the
treatment plan once the court approves it. The service providers identified in the plan will be required to supply the services
ordered in it as well as monitor the patient’s condition and treattment compliance,

Consumer compliance with the court’s order Is monitored through case managers, ACT teams, and other treatment providers.
If an individual fails to comply with his or her treatment plan, interventions ate triggeted which can ultimately result in the
individual’s rehospitalization for 72 hours for treatment and evaluation to determine if he or she meets the inpatient

commitment criteria,

Initial assisted outpatient treatment orders are for up to six months and each renewal can be for up to one yeat.

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

The answers to the following questions provide a mote detailed explanation of the procedures outlined above.

What services can be included in an assisted outpatient treatment plan?

Assisted outpatient treatment orders have to include case management services or assertive community treatment team

Yhe micrographic fmages on this #{lm are sccurate reprodustions of records delivered to Modern Informati
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Guide to Kendra's Law Page 3 of 9

medication;

blood or urinalysis tests to determine compliance with prescribed medications;

individual or group therapy;

day or partial day programs;

educational and vocational training;

supervised living;

slcohol or substance abuse treatment;

alcohol and/or substance abuse testing for those with a history of alcohol or drug abuse and for whom such testing is
n‘:cmary to p‘:lvent a deterioration of their cordition (court orders for drug/alcohol tests are subject to review ¢very
six months);

9. any other services prescribed to treat the persoa’s mental illness and to cither assist the person in living and
functioning in the community or to help prevent a relapse or deterioration that may reasonably be predicted to result
in suicide or the need for hospitalization.

-

PNOLEWN—

What are the eligibllity criteria for assisted ouipatient treatment?

A patient may be placed in assisted outpatient treatment only if, after a hearing, the court finds that all of the following have
been met. The consumer must:

be eighteen years of age of older; and
suffer from a mental iliness; and
be unliksly to survive safely in the community without supervision, based on a clinical determination; end
have a history of inon-compliance with treatment that has: ,
i. been a significant factor in his or her being in & hospital, prison or jail at least twice within the last thirty-six
months or;
ii. resulted in one or more acts, attempts or threats of serious violent behavior toward self or others within the
last forty-eight months; and
5. be unlikely to voluntarily participate in treatment; and
. 6. be, in view of his or her treatment history and current behavior, in need of assisted outpatient treatment in order to
I prevent a relapse or deterivration which would be likely to result in: ‘ ‘
* . i. a substantial risk of physical harm to the consumer as manifested by threats of or attempts at suicide or
e serious bodily harm or conduct demonstrating that the consumer is dangerous to himself or herself, or
ii. a substantial risk of physica) harm to other persons as manifested by homicidal or other violent behavior by
which others are placed in reasonable fear of serious physical harm; and
be likely to benefit from assisted outpatient treatment; and
if the consumer has a health care proxy, any directions in it will be taken into account by the court in determining the
written treatment plan. However, nothing precludes a person with a health care proxy from being eligible for assisted
outpatient treatment.

PN~

g =

Any time spent in a hospital or jail immediately prior to the filing of the petition does not count towards either the 36 or 48-
month time limits {n criterion No. 4 above. In ather words, if an individual spent the two months prior to the filing in a
hospital, the court can then look back 38 months (36+2=38) to see if he or she meets criterion No. 4(i).

Who can petition the court for assisted outpatient treatment?

Any of tho yfollowing personis can file a petition with the court for a consumer to be placed in assisted outpatient treatment:

any adult person living with the consumer; ,
the parents, spouse, adult sibling, or adult child of the consumer; |
if the consumer is an inpatient, the hospital director; :
the director of » program providing mental health services to the consumer in whose institution the consumer resides;

a treating or supervising psychiatrist;

the director of community services, or his or her designee, or the social services official of the city or county in which

the consumer is present or believed to be present; or

the consumer’s parole ot probation officer.

T 3 o adl adh e

, " The petition must be filed in the supreme or county coutt in the county in which the consumer is present or reasonably
.- believed to be present,

http://www.psychlaws.org/StateActivity/NewYork/GuideKL htm 2/19/2003
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What has to be in or included with the petition?

7"\ The petition must state (1) the consumer is present, or believed to be present, within the county where the petition is filed; (2)
all the criteria for outpatient treatment; and (3) the facts supporting the belief that the consuiner meets all the criteria.

T;l;"pedtion has to be accompanied by an affirmation or affidavit of a physician (who can not be the petitioner) which states
either:

1. the physician examined the consumer no more than ten days prior to the submission of the petition, the physician
recommends assisted outpatient treatment, and the physician is willing to testify at the hearing; or

2. the physician or his or her designee (no more than ten days prior to the filing of the petition) tried to but could not
persuade the cousumer to be examined, that the physician has reason to suspect the consumer meets the criteria
assisted outpatient freatment, and that the physician is willing to examine the consumer and testify at the hearing.

Whe has te be notified when you file a petition?

The petitioner has to cause written notice of the petition to be given to the consumer and:

-

the consumer's nearest relative; and

the Mental Hygiene Legal Service; and

the current health care agent appointed by the consumer, if known; and

as many as three additional persons, if designated in writing to receive notice by the consumer; and
the Director of assisted outpatient treatment for the county; and

the Director of Community Services, if the director is not the petitioner.

-

QUL N

The New York State Office of Mental Health will appoint a Director of Assisted Outpatient Treatment who will be
responsible for the program in each county. The Director of Community Services is an aiready existing county official, For
the name of these individuals (Nos. § and 6), call the NYS Office of Mental Health (518-474-4403) or NAMI-New York !

-~ \ (800-950-FACT).

What must the court do before it holds a hearing?

After receiving a petition, the court is required to have a hearing on it within three days (excluding weekends and holidays).
It muast also notify all the parties of the hearing date.

Continuances will only be allowed for good cause. Before granting one, the court shall consider the need for an examination
by a physician or the need to provide assisted outpatient treatment expeditiously.

What happens at the first hearing?

The court will hear testimony and, if advisable, examine the consumer (in or out of court). The testimony need not be limited
to the facts included in the petition,

If the consumer fails to appear at the hearing despite appropriate attempts to elicit attendance have failed, the court may
conduct the hearing in the consumer’s absence,

However, the court is prohibited from ordering assisted outpatient treatment unless a physician, who has personally examined
the consumer no more than ten days before the filing of the petition, testifies in person at the hearing, If the consumer refuses
to be examined and the court finds reasonable cause to believe the allegations in the petition to be true, it then may order the
consumer be taken into custody and transported to a hospital for examination for no longer than 24 hours.

How is the treatment plan developed?
" A consumer ordered into assisted outpatient treatment is required to follow a treatment plan approved by the court.

An examining physician appointed by the county's director of outpatient treatment or a director of an approved assisted

http://www.psychlaws.org/StateActivity/NewYork/GuideKL htm 2/19/2003
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ouricm treatment program must develop the treatment plan. A physician must testify and explain it to the court, Unless the
petitioner is an employee of one of the state agencies empowered to develop treatment plans, it is unlikely that such a plan

~ >, will be presented at the initial hearing.

srograph
Wore filand In the ar course of business. The photograghic process mbets standards of the Americen Nat Stende
" (AMSI) for archival microfilm. NOTICE: 11 the m:'d inege sbove 1a less Legible than this Notice, it {s &7.'& the mizym:;“t“h:

If the court finds that the consumer meets the criteria but a treatment plan has not been developed, the court will order the
director of community services to provide one to the court within three days, excluding weekends and holidays. Another
hearing will then be held to finalize and approve the plan.

In developing a treatment plan, the physician will provide the consumer; the treating physician; and, upon the request of the
patient, one person selected by the consumer with.an opportunity to actively participate in its development. Also, if the
patient has one, the court will consider any directions included in a health care proxy, However, the existence of a health
proxy will not prevent a person with a health care proxy from being ordered into assisted outpatient treatment.

The physician developing the treatment plan will state:

1. which categories of assisted outpatient treatment are recommended and the rationale for each;

2. facts which establish that such treatment is the least restrictive alternative; and,

3. if the proposed treatment plan includes medication, the types or classes recommended, physical and mental effects of
such medication (both beneficial and detrimental), and whether such medication should be self-administered or

administored by a professional.

The physician should specify the types and dosage ranges of medication most likely to provide "maximum benefit," since the
court will consider what will be to the consumer’s maximum benefit when ordering treatment.

What kinds of decisions can the court make?

If after hearing all relevant evidence, the court finds that the consumer does not meet the criteria for assisted outpatient
treatment, the court will dismiss the petition.

" If the court finds by clear and convincing evidence that the consumer meets the criteria for court-ordered outpatient treatment

and there is no appropriate, feasible, and less restrictive alternative, the court can order the consumer to receive assisted
outpatient treatment for up to six months (renewals can be for up to a year).

The order will include the categories of treatment that the consumer is to receive, but cannot require any unless it was
recommended by both the examining physician and included in the written treatment plan, The order may specify whether
such medication should be self-administered or administered by an authorized professional as well as delincate the types and
dosage ranges of medication most likely to provide maximum benefit,

If the petitioner is the director of a hospital that operates an assisted outpatient treatment program, the court order will direct
the hospital director to provide or arrange for all categories of treatment for the assisted outpatient throughout the period of

the order.

For all other persons, the order will require the director of community services to make sure that all the categories of services
in the treatment order are supplied to the consumer, This is very important, because not only is the consumer being ordered
into treatment, the director of community services is being ordered to provide treatment.

 How can the treatment plan be changed?

The director of an assisted outpatient treatment program needs court approval to make any material change in a treatment
order unless the change was contemplated in the original order, A material change is the addition or deletion of a category of
assisted outpatient treatment or any deviation, without the patient’s consent, from an existing order relating to the
administration of medicines. An assisted outpatient treatment program does not need court approval to institute non-material

changes,

How can the assisted outpatient treatment order be renewed?

If the Director of Community Services determines that a consumer requires further assisted outpatient treatment, the director

R TIIN N ORI e RO IR SYOLL LA R R
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shall apply prior to the expiration of the assisted outpatient treatment order for a subsequent order for a period that can last up
to one year, The procedures for obtaining a renewal for the director and all others are the same as for an initial order except
7\, the consumer does not have to meet either the 36 month or 48 month rule regarding previous hospitalizations or acts of
' violence.

What (f & consumer falls to comply with an assisted outpatient treatment order?

If someone placed in assisted outpatient treatment fails or refuses to comply with the treatment order despite efforts made to
! solicit compliance, a physician may request that the consumer be brought to a hospital if in his or her clinical judgment, the
! consumer "may” meet a current "inpatient"commitment standard, i.e., "danger to self or others,”

A physician may consider if a consumer refuses to take medications as required by the court order, or either refuses to take,
ot fails a blood test, urinalysis, or alcohol or drug test as required by the court order, when determining whether the consumer
is in noed of an examination to determine whether he or she meets the standard for placement in inpatient care.

Ono inpatient standard referenced in Kendra’s Law, §9,27, allows committal if the consumer has (1) a mental illness for
which care and treatment in a hospital is essential to his or her welfare and (2) the consumer’s judgment is so impaired that he
or she may need or is unable to understand his or her need for treatment, However, some New York courts have interpreted
this very narrowly, sometimes to the point where some form of dangerousness is required. Courts may allow this more
flexible inpatient standard to be applied as it is written in the case individuals who have "failed” on assisted outpatient
freatment,

If he or she believes that a consumer may meet the current inpatient commitment standard, the physician may request a
director of an assisted outpatient treatment program or certain others empowered to direct peace officers, sheriff’s deputies,
ambulance services, or approved mobile crisis outreach teams to transport such consumers to hospitals.

At the hospital, the consumer may be retained for observation, examination and treatment for up to seventy-two hours in
order to determine whether treatment in a hospital pursuant to one of the existing inpatient commitment standards is needed.
77\ Thus, if the physician decides that a consumer on assisted outpatient treatment is non-compliant and "may"” meet the inpatient
- commitment criteria, the doctor can order that person hospitalized for up to 72 hours to see if they meet inpatient
T commitment procedures,

If at any time during this period the person is found not to meet the involuntary inpatient commitment criteria, he or she must
be qeleased unless kept on a voluntary basis, However, continued non-compliance can result in subsequent 72-hour
evaluations,

What rights and protections do consumers have?

A consumer has the right to:

1. free legal representation by the Mental Hygiene Legal Service (or other counsel, at the expense of the consumer) at all

stages of an assisted outpatient treatment proceeding;

present evidence, call witnesses and cross-examine adverse witnesses;

not be involuntarily committed or held in contempt of court solely for failure to comply with a treatment order;

move the court to stay, vacate or modify the assisted outpatient treatment order at any time (along with Mental

Hygiene Legal Service or anyone else acting on the consumer’s behalf) and;

not be deemed legally incapacitated solely on the determination that he or she is in need of assisted outpatient ;

treatment,

I

Also, a petitioner, physician, or anyone else making a false statement or providing false information in a petition or hearing is
subject to criminal prosecution,

Will the mental health system petition for me?

O . Kendra’s Law allows families and others to petition the court to place someone in assisted outpatient treatment, But it is
S ./ casier and less costly if the mental health system, rather than relatives, files the petition. However, New York's mental health |
L i ' system is notoriously reluctant to file petitions, so you must be persistent. {n case it ever becomes necessary, below are some |
; tips on convincing mental health authorities to file a petition for your loved one.
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: Hospitals: For a relative who s in a hospital, families should try to convince the hospital to flle a petition before the person is
~ discharged, Ask the doctor, If he or she refuses, you should appeat to the directos of psychiatry and hospital director, The

. higher up you go, the more likely you are to get what is needed.

‘ Director of Community Services ("DCS"): This individual is the local (not state) official responsible for coordinating local

b ‘ services and for the receipt and investigation of persons alleged to be in need of assisted outpatient treatment in each locality.
The law requires the DCS to establish an assisted outpatient treatment program to serve the community. If someone needs
assisted treatment, as much information as possible (including why the individual meets each of the required criteria) should
be provided to the DCS in order to convince him or her to file a petition for assisted outpatient treatment,

i I the person you are secking treatment for lives in New York City, contact Dr. Michae! Lesser, Medical Director of that |

‘ city's Department of Mental Health, (212) 219-5602, Elsewhere in the state, you can call your local NAMI ((800)950-FACT)

! or MHA chapter to find out who the DCS in your county is, This information is also available on the Office of Mental
Health's Website, www.omb,state,ny,us, and from the head of the Kendra's Law Program, (518) 402-2416.

Assisted Outpatient Treatment Coordinator: Each county is required to have an individual assisted outpatient treatment
program and the coordinator of one is virtually certain to be able to file petitions.

The names and phone numbers for the heads of New York City's programs are listed at the end of this guide. To learn who is
in charge of a program elsewhere in the state, call your local NAMI or MHA chapter, Director of Community Services, or

Mental Health Commissioner,

Regional Program Coordinator: This is the state official charged with overseeing the assisted outpatient treatment programs
in whichever of the five designated regions of the state your loved one lives. He or she is responsible for making sure the
system is working and that providers are supplying the services that the courts have ordered them to provide. A Regional

Coordinator is not authorized to file petitions, but can be an important information source when you are secking an
assisted outpatient treatment order for a loved one and even more valuable at making sure your relative actually gets the
treatment that the court orders.

/\ The five Regional Coordinators are listed at the end of this guide.

As a Final Attempt: If you cannot convince any of the people described above to file a petition, call the Office of Mental
Health’s Kendra's Law Project Director, Glen Ieibman, (518) 402-2416, and/or Counsel, John Tauriello, (518) 4741331,

Individual Petitioners: Even if you cannot convince any of these officials to file a petition, you can still do so as long you are
in one the categories of people listed in the "Who can petition the court for assisted outpatient treatment?” section. Extensive
information (including pro-forma petitions) is available on the Office of Mental Health's Website at www,omh.state.ny.us.

Contact Mental Health Officials: Anyone who knows someone in need of assisted ou?atient treatment or is displeased with
how the program is working should submit written comments to the officials above. If you are having problems with the care
of a consumer in assisted outpatient treatment, write to the officials above plus the court that ordered the treatment, the case
manager, the treatment providers, and the Commissioner of the Office of Mental Health. By notifying all of them, you will
increase the odds that your concerns will be addressed.

This summary does not include all the provisions of Kendra's Law, Also, it is current as of February, 2001 and does not
reflect subsequent changes in the law or its application. Do not rely on it alone. Contact ¢ lawyer.

Permission is granted to reproduce this publication on a non-commercial basis if attributed to the Treatment Advocacy
Center with the phone number (703 294 6001) and website (www.psychlaws.org) also listed.,

KENDRA’S LAW CONTACTS

http://www.psychlaws.org/State Activity/NewYork/GuideKL.htm 2/19/2003 |
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(www.omh.state.ny.us)

OMH Kendra’s Law Project Director

|

|

! NEW YORK STATE OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH
|

|

‘ Glen Leibman (518) 402-2416

Regional Kendra's Law Program Coordinators

Central New York Region
Rebecca Briney (315) 472-2097

Hudson River Region
Jan Spalding (845) 454.8229

Long Island Region
Marilyn Sullivas (631) 761-2092

Western New York Region
Patricia Bylewski (716) 885-4219 (x234)

] New York City
j Susan Shilling (718) 221-7667 '
(For New York City also see below) i

R N. Y. C. DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH

Kendra’s Law Coordinator
Dr. Michael Lesser (212) 219-5602

Assisted Qutpatient Treatment Programs in NYC L

Bronx - North Central Bronx Hospital |
Dr. Rogge (718) 519-2475 :

Brooklyn/Staten Island « Woodhull Hospital
Dr. Trachtenberg (718) 963.5744

Manhattan - Bellevue Hospital
Dr. Berger (212) $62-4219

Queens - Elmhurst Hospital
Dr. Garza (718) 334.3547

[ » e

This Guide was prepared as a public service by the

L TREATMENT ADVOCACY CENTER
http://www.psychlaws.org/StateActnvnty/NewYork/GuldeKL htm 2/19/2003
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| This Guide was found at:
. 2 www.psychiaws.org/StateActivity/NewYork/GuideKL.htm

! The Treatment Advocacy Center is a nonprofit organization dedicated to eliminating barriers to timely and humane treatment
for the millions of Americans with severe brain disorders, such as schizophrenia and manic-depression (bipolar disorder).

! Current federal and state policies hinder treatment for psychiatrically ill individuals who are most at risk for homelessness,

: arrest, or suicide, As a result, an estimated 1.5 million individuals with severe mental ilinesses are not being treated for their
iliness at any given time. The Center serves as a catalyst to achieve proper balance in judicial, legislative, and policy
decisions that affect the lives of people with serious brain disorders,

f To learn more about the Center's efforts, contact:

Treatment Advocacy Center
3300 N. Fairfax Dr., Suite 220
Arlington, VA 22201
703 294 6001
info@psychlaws.org
www.psychlaws,org

If this has been helpful to you, donations, which are tax-deductible, are appreciated.
The Treatment Advocacy Center is a 501(c)(3) organizauonhar;d your donation will be deduciible to the full extent allowed by
the law.

¥ N L d FRINTERARY WA PRAYENTS 535, SRR, Al

( \\ General Resources / Legal Resources / Medical Resources / Briefing Papers / State Activity
N Hospital Closures / Preventable Tragedies / Press Room / Search Our Site / Home

The contents of all material available on the Cetiter's website are copyrighted by the Treatment Advocscy

. Center unless otherwise indicated. AN rights reserved and content may be reproduced, downloaded, i
\ \ disseminated, or transferred, for single use, or by nonprofit organizations for educational purposes only, if f
torrett atiribution s made to the Treatment Advocacy Center. Please feel free to calt with questions on ‘

P o mental Niness, treatment laws or the benefits of medication compliance at 703,204,6001 or send

questions via emall io info@psychlaws.org.  Write to us at: The Treatment Advocacy Center; 3300 N.
Fakrfax Drive; Suite 220; Adington, VA 22201, Technical comments on the Canter's website
i (www.psychiaws.org) can be sent 1o Webmast ychlaws.org, The Treatment Advocacy Center is an
THEATMENT ADVOCACY CENTER | R.C, § 501(c)3) tax-sxempt corpontion. Dona are appreciated and are eligible for the charitable
contribution deduction under the provisions of LR.C. § 170.

| ) ‘
- |

http://www.psychlaws.org/StateActivity/NewYork/GuideKL.htm 2/19/2003
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I — How & Why Assisted Outpatient Treatment
Came to California

Randall Hagar, Charles Sosebee & Carla Jacobs
Coordinators, California Treatment Advocacy Coalition

The California Treatment Advocacy Coalition formed in 1999. Bringing us together
were lives lost to severe mental illnesses — lives of people in jail or prison, people mired
on the streets, people who killed themselves ~ because of laws that withhold treatment for

treatable conditions.

At first we were only a handful. With shared passions and the support of the Treatment
Advocacy Center, we soon became an advocacy cadre with hundreds of consumers,
family members, and mental health professionals visiting legislators, writing letters to
politicians and newspapers, and stomping the halls of the Capitol.

And always in the name of treatment.

The law has been among treatment's worst enemies in California. Passed over 30 years
ago, the Lanterman-Petris-Short Act ("LPS") governs interventions of needed care for
f’\ + people overcome by psychiatric disorders. It takes no account of what has since been
. learned about these illnesses, the vastly different present framework of mental health
services, or the diversity of effective medications that are now available.

Under LPS, people in California rendered incapable of making rational decisions - no
matter how psychotic or delusional - must be an immediate danger to themselves or
others before being placed in treatment. Even when they are permitted, moreover,
interventions are essentially limited to short inpatient stays. As a result, LPS has come to
champion the "right" to be sick over the right to be well,

The members of CTAC rallied behind the indomitable Assemblywoman Helen
Thomson’s efforts to reform our state’s archaic treatment laws. And aftér three years, a
failed original bill, nine committee votes, four floor votes, and the last quest for a
governor’s signature — CTAC’s crusaders helped bring about the most significant reform
of California’s treatment law in more than three decades when Governor Gray Davis
signed Assemblywoman Thomson's Assembly Bill 1421 into law.

Fashioned after New York’s proven Kendra’s Law, AB 1421 (also know as “Lauta’s
Law) makes assisted outpatient treatment available in California. Assisted outpatient
treatment’s sustained and intensive court-mandated care in the community now can help
those most overcome by the symptoms of a severe mental illness. The treatment
mechanism is used until a person is well enough to again maintain his or her own
treatment regimen. And eligibility for assisted outpatient treatment is not predicated
solely on dangerousness. A progressive eligibility standard allows programs created

1 -Second Edition, January 2003
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, under AB 1421 to help people who are vitally in need of care but who do not meet LPS’
o restrictive dangerousness threshold for inpatient hospitalization.

As a bridge to recovery, assisted outpatient treatment can stop the “revolving door” of
repeated hospitalizations, jailings, and homelessness. Yet while thousands of
Californians can now receive essential treatment because AB 1421 is law, this is in no
way guaranteed. Assisted outpatient treatment is only available in those counties that
establish programs for this new treatment option.

The bulk of this guide describes how assisted outpatient treatment works and how it can
be used to bring care for someone overwhelmed by a severe psychiatric disorder. The
last section is about how, should it not have this ctitical treatment mechanism, you can
help secure assisted outpatient treatment for your community.

A law unused might as well have never been passed, We urge you to find out if your
county has assisted outpatient treatment. If it does not, we ask you to write, call, or visit
and make your county mental health director and board of supervisors know that it
should.

AB 1421 creates for many, where none existed before, the chance for help and maximum

possible recovery. It is up to you to make use of this avenue to treatment and, if need be,
help make it available to those in your county who most suffer because of mental illness.

o e -

II — Overview

What is assisted outpatient treatment?

Assisted outpatient treatment is sustained and intensive court-ordered treatment in the
community for those most overcome by the symptoms of severe mental illness. The
treatment mechanism is only used until a person is well enough to maintain his or her
own treatment regimen, Serving as a bridge to recovery for those released from inpatient
facilities as well as an alternative to hospitalization, assisted outpatient treatment can stop
the “revolving doot” of repeated hospitalizations, jailings, and homelessness,

Is assisted outpatient treatment for all people with mental iliness?

Absolutely not. Assisted outpatient treatment (AOT) is for those who are in a crisis or
recovering from a crisis caused by mental illness and for whom voluntary services are not
working. California’s program is based on that of Kendra's Law, a statewide assisted
outpatient treatment program created in New York in 1999 that has proven
extraordinarily successful. In New York State, Kendra’s Law is used to help
approximately one thousand people each year,

Does assisted outpatient treatment work?

Yes, spectacularly so. The best studies of AOT show that it drastically reduces
rehospitalizations, length of hospital stays, arrests, victimization, and violent behavior.

2 -Second Edition, January 2003
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s The outcome numbers available for Kendra's Law have been equally favorable and
' dramatic, particularly in the areas of treatment adherence, usage of mental health
services, and reducing homelessness.

Where is assisted outpatient treatment available in California?

Assisted outpatient treatment is available in those counties that have a program for the
treatment mechanism and in which the county board of supervisors has passed a
resolution authorizing its use. Some counties may choose to establish a separate program
for AOT, while others may integrate its use into existing ones that already provide
intensive services.

Call your county’s mental health department to find out if it has an assisted outpatient
treatment program. If your county does not have AOT, please pay special attention to the
last section of this guide and leamn how to secure this vital treatment mechanism for those
in your area who most suffer from severe mental illness.

III — How Assisted Outpatient Treatment Works

What are the eligibility criteria for assisted outpatient treatment?

A person may be placed in assisted outpatient treatment only if, after a hearing, a court
finds that all of the following have been met. The person must:
- 1) Be eighteen years of age or older;
‘ 2) Be suffering from a mental illness;
3) Be unlikely to survive safely in the community without supervision, based on a
clinical determination;
4) Have a history of non-compliance with treatment that has either:
A. Been a significant factor in his or her being in a hospital, prison or jail at
least twice within the last thirty-six months; or
B. Resulted in one or more acts, attempts or threats of serious violent
behavior toward self or others within the last forty-eight months;
S) Have been offered an opportunity to voluntarily participate in a treatment plan by ,
the local mental health department but continue to fail to engage in treatment; i !
6) Be substantmlly deteriorating; L \
7) Be, in view of his or her treatment history and current behavior, in need of |
assisted oufpatient treatment in order to prevent a relapse or deterioration that |
would likely result in the person meeting California’s inpatient commitment !
standard, which is being:
A. A serious risk of harm to himself or herself or others; or |
B.  Gravely disabled (in immediate physical danger because unable to meet 1
basic needs for food, clothing, or shelter); .
8) Be likely to benefit from assisted outpatient treatment; and
9) Participation in the assisted outpatient program is the least restrictive placement
necessary to ensure the person’s recovery and stability.
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The micropraphic images on this film uro .eeunto roprodunﬂom of recorde el ivered to Modern Information Systems for microfiiming and ‘
were mud fn the regular course of businens. The photographic process muets stendards of the Americen National Standards lnstitute ‘
(ANS1) for rehlval nicroﬂlm. NOTICE: 1f the filmed {mege above s less legible than this Notfce, ft (s due to the quality of the

document being f{imed
* Operator’s Signature Date




q:Mc images on this f{im aro woumo roprmﬂom of records dollvond to Modern Information Systame for uleromum ond
8 standards of the American National Standerds Institute

val nmomu. NOYICE) lf the #1imed image ohovo is lou lnlblo than this Notice, ft is due to the quality of the

f1lmed
T : qnntoryc Oiwtm E D

or
¢t bef

in the
archi
ing

Any time spent in a hospital or jail immediately prior to the filing of the petition does not
count towards either the 36 or 48-month time limits in criterion No. 4 above. In other
words, if an individual spent the two months prior to the filing in a hospital, the court can
then look back 38 months (36+2) to see if he or she meets criterion No. 4(A).

Who can petition the court for assisted outpatient treatment?

Only the county mental health director, or his or her designee, may file a petition with the
superior court in the county where the person is present or reasonably believed to be
present. The following persons, however, may request that the county health department
investigate whether to file a petition for the treatment of an individual:

1) Any adult with whom the person resides;

2) An adult parent, spouse, sibling, or child of the person;

3) If the person is an inpatient, the hospital director;

4) The director of a program providing mental health services to the person and in

whose institution the person resides;
5) A treating or supervising licensed mental healith treatment provider; or
6) The person’s parole ot probation officer.

On receiving a request from a person in one of the olasses above, the county mental
health director is required to conduct an mvesttgatnon The director, however, shall only

file a petition if he or she determines that it is likely that all the necessary elements for an

AOT petition can be proven by clear and convincing evidence.

What has to be in or included with the petition?

The petition must state: (1) that the person is present or believed to be present within the
county where the petition is filed; (2) all the criteria necessary for placement in AOT; and
(3) the facts supporting the belief that the person meets all the criteria,

The petition must be accompanied by an affidavit of a licensed mental health treatment
provider stating that either:

1) The licensed mental health treatment provider examined the person no more than
ten days prior to the submission of the petition, recommends assisted outpatient
treatment, and is willing to testify at the hearing; or

2) The licensed mental health treatment provider, or his or her designee, made
appropriate attempts no more than ten days prior to the filing of the petition to
examine the person and the person refused as well as that the licensed mental
health treatment provider has reason to suspect the person meets the criteria for
assisted outpatient treatment and he or she is willing to examine the person and

‘testify at the hearing,

How long after the filing is the hearing on the petition?

The court must fix a date for a hearing on the petition that is no more than five days
(excluding weekends and holidays) after it is filed.

Continuances will only be allowed for good cause. Before granting one, the court shall

4 —Second Edition, January 2003
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N consider the need for an examination by a physician and the need to provide assisted
| outpatient treatment expeditiously.

Who has to be notified when you file a petition?

The petitioner must cause a copy of the petition and notice of the hearing to be personally
served on the person who is its subject. The petitioner also has to send notice of the
hearing and a copy of the petition to:

1) The county office of patient rights; and

2) The current health care provider appointed for the person, if known,

Note: The person subject to a petition may also designate other people to receive
adequate notice of the hearings,

; Is the person subject to the petition represented by counsel?

The person who is subject to the petition has the right to be represented by counsel at all
stages of an AOT court proceeding. If the person elects, the court shall immediately
appoint a public defender or other attorney to oppose the petition. If able to afford it, the
person is responsible for the cost of the iegal representation on his or her behalf.

What is a settlement agreement and how does it affect assisted oulpatient treaiment?

i After an AOT petition is filed but before the conclusion of the hearing on it, the person

4 . who is the subject of the petition may waive the right to a hearing and enter into a

an settlement agreement. If the court approves it, a settlement agreement has the same force
and effect as a court order for assisted outpatient treatment, including in the case of non-
compliance.

The settlement agreement must be in writiug, agreed to by all parties and the court and

may not exceed 180 days (note — initial orders by a court after a hearing are for a period

of up to six months, which can be a few days longer). The agreement is conditioned ;
upon an examining licensed mental health treatment provider stating that the person can |
survive safely in the community, It also must include a treatment plan developed by the

community-based program that will provide services to the person.

After entering a settlement agreement, a court designates the appropriate county
department to monitor the person’s treatment under, and compliance with, the settlement
agreement. Only the court can modify settlement agreements, but either party may
request a modification at any time during the 180-day period.

What happens at the first hearing?

The court will hear testimony and, if advisable, examine the person (in or out of court).
The testimony need not be limited to the facts included in the petition,

If the person fails to appear at the hearing and appropriate attempts to elicit attendance
have failed, the court may conduct the hearing in the person’s absence. However, the
court is prohibited from ordering AOT unless a physician who has personally examined
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. the person no more than ten days before the filing of the petition testifies in person at the
heating, |
If the person is present at the hearing but has refused and continues to refuse to be i
examined and the court finds reasonable cause to believe the allegations in the petition to
be true, it may order the person be taken into custody and transported to a hospital for
examination by a licensed mental health treatment provider. Absent the use of the
inpatient hospitalization provisions of California law, the person may be kept at the
hospital for no more than 72 hours.

Any person ordered to undergo assisted outpatient treatment who was not present at the ;
; hearing at which the order was issued may immediately petition the court for a writ of ]
habeas corpus, which is a judicial challenge asserting, under these circumstances, that the
person does not meet the eligibility criteria for AOT. Treatment under the order may not
commence until that petition is resolved in another hearing.

What kinds of decisions can the court make?

* If after hearing all relevant evidence, the court finds that the person does not meet the
\ criteria for assisted outpatient treatment, the court will dismiss the petition.

If the court finds, by clear and convincing evidence, that the person meets the criteria for

assisted outpationt treatment and there is no appropriate and feasible less restrictive i
alternative, the court may order the person to receive assisted outpatient treatment for up
to six months.

How is the treatment plan developed?

In the assisted outpatient treatment order, the court shall specify the services that the
person is to receive, The court may not require any treatment that is not included in the

j proposed treatment plan submitted by the examining licensed mental health treatment
provider. The court, in consultation with the county mental health director, must also find
the following:

1) That the ordered services are available from the county or a provider approved by
the county for the duration of the court order;

2) That the ordered services have been offered on a voluntary basis to the person by
the local director of mental health, or his or her designee, and the person has
refused or failed to engage in treatment;

3) That all of the elements of the petition have been met; and

4) That the treatment plan incorporated in the order will be delivered to the county
director of mental health, or his or her appropriate designee.

How can the assisted outpatient treatment order be renewed?

If the condition of the person requires an additional period of AOT, the director of the

assisted outpatient treatment program may apply to the court prior to the initial ordet’s
expiration for an additional period of AOT of no more than 180 days (initial orders are
for a period of up to six months, which can be a few days longer). The procedures and
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o requirements for obtaining a renewal order are the same as for obtaining an initial order.

Can a person be released early from an assisted outpatient treatment order?

There are two methods by which someone under an order can establish that he or she no §
longer meets the eligibility criteria and should be released from an AOT order: i
1) No less than every 60 days the director of the assisted outpatient treatment |

program is required to file an affidavit with the court stating that the person still
meets the criteria for placement in the program. Although not explicitly stated in
the statute, this presumably means that anyone who does not meet the criteria
must be released from AOT. The person has the right to a hearing to challenge
the assessment. If the court finds that the person does not meet the criteria, it will
void the AOY order,

2) Also, an assisted outpatient may at any time file a petition for a writ of habeas
corpus. At the hearing on this petition the court will determine whether or not the
person still meets the initial AOT eligibility requirements. If not, the person shall
be released from the AOT order.

In either type of hearing the burden of proving that the AOT criteria are still met is on the
director.

What if a person fails to comply with an assisted outpatient treatment order?

A licensed mental health treatment provider can request that one of certain designated
T, classes of persons (peace officers, evaluation facility attending staff, members of mobile
crisis teams, and other professional persons designated by the county) take a person under
an AOT order to a hospital to be held for an up to 72 hours to determine if he or she
meets the criteria for inpatient hospitalization (i.e., that the person is a danger to
! self/others or gravely disabled because of a mental illness).

The treatment provider may only make such a request on determining that:
1) The person has failed or refused to comply with the court-ordered treatment,
~ 2) Efforts were made to solicit compliance, and
3) The person may need involuntary admission to a hospital for evaluation.

Any continued involuntary retention in the evaluating facility beyond the initial 72 hours
must be pursuant to the California Code’s provisions for inpatient hospitalization. A
person found not to meet the standard for involuntary inpatient hospitalization during the
evaluation period and who does not agree to stay in the hospital voluntarily must be
released.

Failure to comply with an order of assisted outpatient treatment alone is not sufficient
grounds for involuntary civil commitment. Neither may such non-compliance result in a
finding of contempt of court.

What rights and protections do persons subject to the petition have?

A person subject to a petition for assisted outpatient treatment has the right to:
1) Retain counsel or utilize the services of a court-appointed public defender;

7 -Second Edition, January 2003

praceiie

1
W p : o ‘ e e T e AT, S e A 2 YRR i e e R

i Information Systems for microfilming and
the micrographic images on this vilw are sccurate roprmﬁm of records delivered t?.*“:'f ':ho Ao.mm “l.v:'“l ptld i i ity At

« The photog process meets stande
; ml:‘}':‘amhmt nlelr::ﬁ:f”uo?r'w%r Tf“tho fllued {mage obm {s lou legible than this Notice, ft is due to the quality of the

document being 11 imed,
. DY ( ﬁ)ggm bQMmc | \D\A)\?L._ .
‘ s ‘ Operator's signature e _—




Pt 2) Adequate notice of the hearings;
‘ 3) Have notice of hearings sent to parties designated by the person,;
4) Receive a copy of the court-ordered evaluation;
5) Present evidence, call witnesses and cross-examine adverse witnesses;
6) Be informed of his or her right to judicial review by habeas corpus;
7) Not be involuntarily committed or held in contempt of court solely for failure to
comply with a treatment order;
8) Be present at the hearing, unless he or she waives this right;
9) Appeal decisions and be informed of his or her right to appeal; and
10) Receive the least restrictive treatment deemed appropriate and feasible.

IV — Getting Assisted Outpatient Treatment
For Your County

What can 1 do to help obtain assisted outpatient treatment for my county?

You should strive to pemuade the people who determine mental health policy in your
county that not only is AOT needed, but that it will work. Since they must pass a
resolution adopting AOT, the ultimate decision lies with the members of your county’s
board of supervisors. We urge you to write, call, and/or meet with them. And the more
. you coordinate your efforts with others in the pursuit of this treatment-ensuring program, ;
[ the more your efforts will be amplified. |

In order to bring AOT to your county, you should seek out assistance from other
individuals and organizations interested in securing care for people with severe
psychiatric disorders. Contacts, and especially visits, from representatives of groups like f
NAM], police, sheriffs, judges, correctional officials, and mental health professionals ?
should be particularly effective in getting the message out to the members of the board of

supervisors of your county.

As the elected leaders of counties rely on them for advice on mental health policy, you
should also promote assisted outpatient treatment with the director of your county mental
health department and the members of your local mental health board. You will be
playing into an interesting dynamic. The director is the expert but the members of the
board of supervisors are collectively his or her bosses. And the board members, as
elected officials, are accountable to you, the regisiered voter.

What types of services must a county provide to establish an assisted outpatient
treatment program?

Any county that elects to establish an assisted outpatient treatment program must have
available for those placed in the program a threshold of services that, among others,

includes:
1) Community-based, mobile, multidisciplinary, highly trained mental health teams
that have staff-to-client ratios of no more than one team member per ten clients
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under AOT orders; _

2) A service planning and delivery process that includes provisions to:

Determine the numbers of persons to be served, and the programs and
services that will be provided to meet their needs;

B.  Plan for outreach to families, psychiatric and psychological services,
coordination and access to medications, substance abuse services, housing
assistance, vocational rehabilitation, and veterans’ services;

C. Provide staff who can remove barriers to services resulting from cultural,
linguistic, racial, age, and gender differences;

D.  Offer services to older adults, persons who are physically disabled and
seriously mentally ill young adults (25 years of age or younger) who are at
risk of becoming homeless; and

E.  Provide housing that is either immediate, transitional, permanent, or all of
these.

3) Personal service coordinators, who may be part of the AOT program team, who
are responsible for ensuring, to the extent feasible, that people subject to assisted
outpatient treatment receive services which enable them to:

A,  Live in the least restrictive housing feasible in the local community,
Engage in the highest level of productive activities appropriate to their
abilities and experience;

Access appropriate education and vocational training;

Obtain an income;

Exert as much control over their lives as possible;

Access physical health care; and

Reduce antisocial or criminal behavior.

OmmUn w

Will these assisted outpatient treatment services be more than my county is willing to
provide?

Most, if not all, of the components of the service and delivery process in the second

section above should already be part of most county mental health systems and would

only have to be used by the AOT team, The personal service coordinators and the

objectives cutlined in the third section can be integrated into any high-intensity service
progtam, like one for assisted outpatient treatment. Furthermore, the objectives of those

- coordinators must only be met “to the extent feasible,” which makes them far less than

absolute requitements,

The primary obstacle to a county establishing an AOT program is that it must have an
intengive treatment team with a high staff to client ratio, which_is described in the first
section above. Thete are three basic manners in which a county can satisfy this

requirement,

1) Create a teamn dedicated solely to the care of people in AQT. This solution would

allow your.county to make the greatest use of the AOT program authorized by
Assembly Bill 1421,

2) Integrate agsisted outpatient treatment into existing programs that meet the
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s threshold requirements, Many counties already have programs that meet or
substantially meet the service requirements, such as programs for assertive
gommunity treatment or intensive homeless outreach programs, Even if counties

with these in place are not willing to establish specifically dedicated AOT teams,
these programs can — often with little modification — meet the requirements for
and make usc of AB 1421,

i tio i m tnotn Vv oxi tlf
total staff titme per client), the team is mobile (at least some of the team members
can reach clients in the community), and the team can provide the level and types
of services mandated by the statute, Thus a personal services coordinator and a

Will my county have to offer increased voluntary services if it offers assisted outpatient
treatment?

7 Provisions of the authorizing legislation, AB 1421, require that any county providing
assisted outpatient treatment must also offer the same services on a voluntary basis. This
does not require that everyone asking for those services be provided with them,

What it does mean is that intensive services, such as those in an AOT program, cannot be
reserved exclusively for those under AOT orders. Rather, voluntary patients must have
access — with distribution prioritized on the basis of need — to the same services offered
by AOT treatment teams or to equivalent ones offered in programs not dedicated to
assisted outpatient treatment. AB 1421 thus guarantees that those with the greatest need
can take a place in line for the best available community services regardless of whether ot
not they are subject to court-ordered treatment,

Can my county create an assisted outpatient treatment program out of its existing
mental health budget?

In order to create an AOT program a county's board must make a finding that no
voluntary mental health program will be reduced as a result. As it is targeted at helping
those prone to multiple hospitalizations, repetitive jailings, suicide, and violence — AOT
is more appealing to most elected officials than a typical mental heaith program, County
boards should be interested in funding such a politically attractive program.

An assisted outpatient treatment program can also, however, be justified on the basis of
its cost-effectiveness. AOT substantially reduces the single greatest expense to any
mental heaith system, that of inpatient hospital days. Based on those savings alone, a
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o county board of supervisors could make the finding that voluntary services will not be
affected. Moreover, those placed in AOT will, for the most part, be people who are
continually — if sporadically — already under the care of the mental health system. The
cost of much of their care will thus be a shifting of costs rather than an increase.

What has proven the effectiveness of assisted outpatient treatment?

The Duke Studies are the largest and most respected of the controlled examinations of
assisted outpatient treatment. Among the released findings of this one-year randomized

trial:
1) AOT Reduces Hospitalizations
Assisted outpatient treatment for 6 months or more combined with routine

outpatient servncos (3 or more outpatwnt visits per month) dﬂmggd_hgw
: he a hospital stays by 20 days

2) AOT Reduces Arrests
For a subgroup with a history of multiple hospitalizations as well as prior arrests

and/or vnolent behavior, MME_M for 6 months or more
was 12% that of those who were not under treatment
orders.

! 3) AOT Reduces Violence
‘ Assisted outpatlent treatment of 6 months or more combined with routine

_ outpatient services reduced the incidence of violence in half (24% versus 48%).
4) AOT Reduces Victimization

Over one year, 42% of those in the control group were victims of crimcs, such as
rape, theft, mugging, or burglary versus only 24% of those who were in AOT for

6 months or more with routine services: AOT decreased victimization by 43%,

The outcome numbers from the law on which California’s assisted outpatient treatment is
based are equally conclusive. The first 141 people placed in assisted outpatient treatment
in New York pursuant to Kendra’s Law experienced:
e 129% increase in medication compliance;
194% increase in case rixanagement use,
107% increase in housing services use;
67% increase in medication management services use;
50% increase in therapy use;
26% decrease in harmful behavior; and

’

| Swartz, M.S., Swanson, J.W., Wagner, R.H., et al: Can involuntary outpatient commitment reduce
hospital recldivism? Amerlcan Journal of Psychiatry, 156:1968-1975 (1999).
2 Swanson, J.W., Swartz, M.S., Borum, R,, et al: Involuntary out-patient commitment and reduction of
violent behnviour in persons wlth severe mental illness. British Journal of Psychiatry, 1716; 224-231
2000).
g Swanson, J.W., Swartz, M.S,, Borum, R, et al; Ihvoluntary out-patient commitment and reduction of
violent behaviour in persons with severe mental illness, British Journal of Psychiatry, 176: 224-231
Zwo)l
| $ Hiday V.A., Swartz. M.§,, Swanson J.W, et al: Impact of outpatient commitment on victimization of
S people with severe mental {liness, American Journal of Psychiatry, 159: 1403-1411 (2002).
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N o 100% decrease in homelessness.’ i

What can I do to get more information about getting assisted outpatient treatment for
my county?

The Treatment Advocacy Center can answer questions about AOT, supply you with
additional materials on the treatment mechanism, as well as help you join the California

Treatment Advocacy Coalition, a group of advocates that led the movement for
legislation authorizing assisted outpatient treatment in California, and who are now at the

forefront of the effort to secure its adoption in the counties.

-~ \
R i
" |
i
2
t
P 5 New York State Office of Mental Health, Progress Report on New York State's Mental Health System !
Co ) (Jan. 2001), pp. 16-18, %
N |
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7 Prepared as a public service by the

TREATMENT ADVOCACY CENTER

This Guide and other materials on AB 1421 can be found at:
/! . laws,org/St tivity/Calif

i

The Treatment Advocacy Center is a nonprofit organization dedicated to
eliminating barriers to timely and humane trcatment for the millions of Americans
with severe brain disorders, such as schizophrenia and manic-depression (bipolar
disorder). Current federal and state policies hinder treatment for psychiatrically ill
‘ individuals who are most at risk for homelessness, arrest, or suicide. As a result,

E an estimated 2.2 million individuals with severe mental illnesses are not being

| treated for their illness at any given time. The Center serves as a catalyst to
achieve proper balance in judicial, legislative, and policy decisions that affect the
lives of people with serious brain disorders.

T S e T N e Y e T M A ST

To learn more about the efforts of the Treatment Advocacy Center or
o the California Treatment Advocacy Coalition, please contact:

Treatment Advocacy Center
3300 N. Fairfax Dr., Suite 220
Arlington, VA 22201
(703) 294-6001

|i info@psychlaws.org
| www.psychlaws.org

R A

The Treatment Advocacy Center is a 501(c)(3) organization and donations to it
are deductible to the full extent allowed by the law. The Treatment Advocacy
Center does not, however, accept contributions from pharmaceutical companies.

\ Y
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Jim Jacobson
f‘mm: Pam Mack [pmack@pioneer.state.nd.us)
nt: Tuesday, February 18. 2003 8:59 AM
» Jim Jacobson ; Lorena Poppe ; Loretta Movchan
Subject: FW: DDCM - adults on rogional caseloads

Just passing on scme additional information relative to people
with DD served in the regions of the state.

Pamela Mack
Disabilities Advocate

----- Original Message-----

From: Victoria M. Pederson [mailto:sopedv@state.nd.us]
Sent: Monday, February 17, 2003 2:54 PM

To: Pamela J. Mack

Cc: Robbin E. Hendrickson; Gene A. Hysjulien

Subject: DDCM - adults on regional caseloads :

Hi Pam, .
I think the easiest way to give you this information is a

“ﬁport that lists the unduplicated number of individuals over

e age of 18 years of age who are receiving DD Case Management
Tat a point in time. The report below was run 1-8-03 and tells
you by region, how many folks over the age of 18 that were being
served on that date. I know it is not as of today, but
caseloads for adults don't change that much. I'm guessing this

should work for you.

Undup DDCM 01/01/2002 - 12/31/2002
(Over 18 as of 01/08/2003)

REGION COUNT
NAME ‘ Count ;
I - Northwest 117 |
II - North Central ; 330 i
III - Lake Region 175
Iv - Northeast | 372
v - Southeast 588
VI - South Central 365
VII - West Central 486
\ JVIII - Badlands 185
\\“"/ iy gt s huct Miw S At Sm bm At mw A i e A e Om 2 o2m NS R
2,618 |
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AR TESTIMONY OF EDWIN W. F. DYER III ON SB2296
Although this bill was substantially amended in the
Senate, it still substantially broadens the reach of the

involuntary commitment process beyond those persons who

represent a risk of harm to themselves and other and, it is

therefore, possibly unconstitutional. I urge that' it not be

passed.

I was a member of the task forc; organized by the Mental _
Health Association which developed major changes in Chapter
25-03.1 which was adopted by the 1989 ‘Legislature. Th;a j
subpart d. of the definition of “pPerson requiring treatment”
(page 3 of the bill) was added at that time. I opposed its

“‘ adoption at that time and I testified before this Committee

against in during 1989 Session. The intént of this provision
was to allow early legal intervention 'in the case of

chronically mentally 1ll persons who were no longer taking

their medications and, based upon past history, would become‘
seriously 111 and a danger to themsélves or others unless they '
resumed taking their medication.’ My pfoblem with this | f
provision was that it went beyond the need for a showing of a |
gserlous risk of harm that the courts have Irequi‘red as a
constitutional prerequisite for involuntary committal.

At least the current languaée requireé some objective
factors such as past treatment history before this provision

could be used for commitment purpoées. The‘proposed'amendment

e
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/ﬂ*w adds factors which are purely matters for op&nion and
speculation. What does “loss of cognitive and volitional
control over the person’s thoughts or actions” mean? TIf it
means a person who is psychotig, that person will be committed
under the current definition, wusually under subﬁart c. by
linking the psychotic state with specific dangers. I don’t
,undérstand what the last sentence is supposed to mean. What
is the person lack the ability to consent to? Does it mean

that any mentally an 111 person who refuses treatment can be

committed? Without some requirement that there be some facts

to support an expert examiner’s opinion that this provision
applies there is not assurance that it is fairly applied. f,

Confinement against ones will 1is a serious matter. It

O

should be only ordered for mentally 1ill or chemically
depeﬁdent persons 1f there is a serious risk of harm to them
or others. The current law is adequate tgg‘ﬁggrthe public’s
need to bé protected from harm.

| Thank you for the opportunity to address.the committee on
this bill. I would be happy to answer any questions from the
Committee, including about my expe?ience with the operation of

the current law.
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TESTIMONY
—~ $B 2206
HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
REPRESENTATIVE DUANE DEKREY, CHAIRMAN
MARCH 5, 2003

Chairman DeKrey and members of the House Judiciary Committee, | am Dr.
Joseph Belanger, Licensed Clinical Psychologist at the North Dakota State
Hospital. Thank you for allowing me to testify on Senate Bill 2296.

As members of the medical staff, we understand the anxiety of families and
appreciate their wish to be helpful. At the same time, we have to uphold the
fundamental standard of testimony to a reasonable degree of professional or
scientific certainty. The specific wording of the proposed bill makes this hard to
do. It is difficult if not impossible for professionals to truly know the mind of
another, which is what we are being asked to do in the phrasing “... the loss of

- cognitive or volitional control over the person’s thoughts...” What we can do is

e assoss the risk of behaviors such as suicide and homicide based on the signs
and symptoms of the patient.

e et e £k e S i s im b bt T 5 N . e i T e bkt el

A deeper level of concern than the specific language is the way this bill will
exacerbate the current tensions between concerned family members and the
identified patient. While the families have anxious concerns for the well being of
their injured member, the patient him-or-herself tends to feel misunderstood and
put upon. Reconclliatory family therapy is needed. This work proceeds best as a
conversation among equals. The proposed bill will slide the power differential to
the side of the concerned family members. When the patient is already pararnoid
and depressed, to know your family controls your freedom sets in motion
alienation difficuit-to-impossible to address in psychotherapy.

None of this is meant to imply that we disagree with the intent of this bill.
Families wish to prevent injury or worse to their ill member by hospitalizing him
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or her when this is needed. At the same time they wish the best for the mentally
il person and that includes freedom — nor hospitalizing when it is not needed. As
psychiatrists and psychologists we wish the same. To achieve the goal of
balancing freedom and provision of needed care we must increase the degree of

accuracy with which we, the allied medical staff members, make three
professional decisions.

1.) We testify that some Respondents need commitment as patients.

2.) We testify others do not.

3.) For those who do meet commitment standards, we testify as to the least
restrictive alternative. On all of these decisions, we must testify to a
reasonable degree of professional or scientific certainty.

At its core this is an assessment task about which we already know a good deal.
However, recent developments in actuarial research are improving the accuracy
in two ways. We are learning how to identify those at most immediate risk for
suicide \ homicide in a way that is more sensitive to the subtie indicators.
Simultaneously we are learning how to more specifically identify those
individuals who do not need to lose their freedom.

The problem is that the ‘how to’ studies are scattered across more than a
hundred professional journals. We need time to gather the best; time to buiid a
proposal that will achieve the aims of this bill while using wording that allows for
professional / scientific testimony. Could we please consider an alternative? It is
in the best interests of the mentally ill and their family members that we study
this matter scientifically and report our findings to the formers of social policy.
All we are asking for is an interim study period so we can suggest reforms that
will work well for all our citizens.

| would be pleased to answer any questions from the committee.
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House Judiciary Committee
March 5, 2003

Testimony by Mary T, Zdanowicz, JD
Executive Director, Treatment Advocacy Center

Senate Bill 2296 Position: Support
The Treatment Advocacy Center is a national non-profit organization, located in Arlington, Virginia,
providing technical support to states that are reforming mental health treatment laws. We support SB 2296 and
want to address two areas of concerns that this committee may have: 1) whether the proposal is constitutional and
protective of civil liberties; and 2) whether the reform proposal should be studied rather than implemented this year. ]

In determining whether a statute is constitutional, we must ask both whether the state has the right to
restrict an individual’s liberty (a substantive question) and whether the statute has sufficient safeguards to protect
civil rights (a procedural question).

(/3’ o SB 2296 would make only one substantive change to North Dakota’s current law, but it is an important

one. The existing law allows for treatment intervention based on a person’s “substantial deterioration in mental

heaith.” The amendment recognizes the inherent danger when a person with a severe mental illness loses both ;

control of their c ognitive processes and their a bility to recognize the need for treatment, w hich is necessary to
‘ consent to treatment. These two key features were unanimously upheld as constitutional by the Wisconsin State
Supreme Court in July 2002,

In d etermining w hether Wisconsin’s law, w hich is s ubstantially s imilar to what is being proposed, was
constitutional, the court had to determine whether the state had just cause to deprive a person of the liberty to make
their o wn treatment d ecisions. The ¢ ourt held that neither the State nor the U.S. Constitution ( pursuant to the
seminal U.S. Supreme Court decision in Q’Connor v, Donaldson) require proof of imminent physical danger as a
prerequisite to involuntary treatment, The critical finding of the court was that the state is justified in treating

“those who are chronically mentally ill and drop out of therapy or discontinue medication, giving rise to a

( substantial probability of a deterioration in condition to the point of inability to ... control thoughts or actions.”

' That is exsotly what SB 2296 will do,
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This bill also recognizes what medical research in the last decade has revealed - that is, nearly half of
people with schizophrenia and manic-depression have impaired awareness of their illness, a condition that affects
their ability to consent to treatment because they do not recognize that they are ill. SB 2296 recognizes this by
allowing intervention for those who cannot make a reasoned decision about treatment before they deteriorate to the
point of imminent dangerousness. In upholding its similar standard, the Wisconsin Supreme Court recognized that
it was necessary to break the cycle of hospitalization, inoarceration and homelessness. So not only does the state
have a legal right to intervene, it has a moral obligation.

The civil liberties of North Dakota’s most vulnerable citizens will continue to be protected by the plethora

of procedural safeguards contained in the existing law. For example, before someone can be hospitalized on an
emergency petition for treatment: the petition must be verified by affidavit, a qualified mental health professional

must investigate the facts and details in the petition, the state’s attorney must decide there are sufficient grounds for

filing, and a magistrate must review the petition for probable cause to believe that the person meets the emergency

petition criteria, Attached to my testimony is a list of more than 25 specific safeguards. It is also important to

" recognize that 1 eaving someone ina state of psychosis i s neither civil nor right, and that the majority of those

treated against their will retroactively agree with the decision to do so.

I realize that it may be tempting to defer a decision on this bill and study it instead, I urge you not to do
that — delay is dezdly. New York delayed reform of its law several years ago for a study, When the law was
ultimately enacted, the results were stunning., For example, incidents of harm to self or others were cut in half for
people who benefited from the new law. There were also significant reductions in hospitalization, homelessness,
arrests and jailings. Putting off implementation only caused more people to suffer longer.

My testimony is best summed up by quoting Herschel Hardin, a man who defended oivil liberties as a
direotor of the Board of the British Columbia Civil Liberties Union and also has a child with schizophrenia, when

he asked,

How can so much degradation and death — so much inhumanity — be justified in the name of civil liberties?
It cannot. The opposition to involuntary committal and treaiment betrays a profound misunderstanding of
the principle of civil liberties. Medication can free victims from thelr iliness — free them from the Bastille
of their psychoses — and restore their dignity, their free will and the meaningful exercise of thelr liberties.

UL TR LN SR A R S e e 1 A U Ty e et

information
(m are acourste reproductions of m:.rc.h :.lti.v::%‘:‘*“"‘:'f"‘th s American National Stands

The photographic process te L tbie than this

Notice, it is due to the que

AT G BAp e et

oftming and
System for m:ds Institute

Lity of the

- (ANSL) for .rchml nicromm.
P wg% \D\A\\??.
" Da
e + Dperator’s Signature

-



. o

| SB 2296 Continues to Safeguard Clvil Rights

(- The intent of the law is to, “Encourage, whenever appropriate, that services be provided in the community” and to,
“Provide prompt evaluation and treatment of persons with serious mental disorders...” (Sec, 25-03,1-01) The law

contains protections for individual rights at every step in the process:

Emergency Petition - Sec, 25-03.1-08, -09

Petition must be verified by affidavit

Qualified mental health professional investigates and evaluates facts alleged by petitioner
State's attorney must determine that there are sufficient grounds for filing

Magistrate must review for probable cause
If probabie cause established, notice must be sent informing patient of procedures and the right to a

preliminary hearing |
e Patient has right to independent examinatjon, paid for if indigent

Psychiatric Examination — Sec, 25-03.1-10, 11
e If taken in under emergenocy treatment provisions, examination must be conducted within 24 hours

Preliminary Hearing
o Iftaken in under emergency treatment provisions, patient is entitled to a preliminary hearing (Sec. 25-03.1-

17)
) He)aring to take place within 7 days of date taken in under emergency treatment provisions (Sec. 25-03.1-
11
Entitled to legal counsel, paid for if indigent (Sec. 25-03.1-13)
v Patient (respondent) has right to refuse medication and other treatment before the hearing unless necessary
¢ to prevent bodily harm (Sec. 25-03.1-16)
Patient has right to be free of the effects of medication at hearing (Seo, 25-03.1-16)
Patient must be afforded opportunity to testify on own behalf at hearing (Sec. 25-03.1-17)
Patient must also be afforded opportunity to present and cross-cxamine witnesses }
Court must review petition for probable cause (Sec. 25-03.1-17) ’
If probable cause, then court must consider least restrictive alternative for treatment (Sec. 25-03.1-17) |

e e

i Treatment Hearing - Sec. 25-03.1-19

‘ o Hearing to take place within 14 days from the time petition was served

Paticnt has right to independent examination if requested, paid for if indigent

Hearing must be held in same county of residence, hospital, or treatment facility

Patient must be afforded opportunity to testify on own behalf

Patient must be afforded opportunity to present and cross-examine witnesses

Discovery and power of subpoena per ND Rules of Evidence available to patient

Presumption is in favor of respondent (patient)

Burden of proof in support of petition is upon the petitioner

Court must find petition sustained by clear and convinoing evidence

Before making its decision, the court must review a report assessing the availability and appropriateness of
treatnient programs other than hospitalization, If adequate to patients treatment needs, court shall order

treatment other than hospitalization, (Sec. 25-03.1-21)
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House Judiciary Committee frad 4y Bl prutty

= Senate Bill 2296 Testimony
a | March S, 2003

Mr, Chairman and members of the House Judiciary Committee, my name is Janet

Sabol from Minot. I'm in favor Senate Bill 2296 because it will allow people with
mental illnesses or brain disorders to get treatment before they do something
dangerous to themselves or to others,

- A number of people with schizophrenia, bipolar disorder and other severe mental
illnesses have a neurological syndrome that is part of their illness and caused by brain
damage. Because of this a person does not believe he or she is ill and will explain

T away anything that would indicate that they are ill. Having poor insight, which is well

known and has been researched, into your own illness makes it difficult to seek out ;
|

treatment and also to remain on a treatment course. If you don’t think you’re ill, you

won’t go to a doctor.

In my volunteer capacity of a state coordinator for NAMI: The Nation’s Voice on

Mental Iliness, I have talked to many families who have had to suffer along with their

' loved one as they see the person’s physical and mental condition deteriorate before
they are “dangerous” enough to be committed to inpatient or outpatient treatment. One
mother watched her daughter resort to going only a few feet from her apartment to get
vending machine items to eat because her schizophrenia and social phobia was so bad

( that she couldn’t go into a grocery store, pick up items and go to the checkout. Yet |
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when she was seen at the Human Service Center, she appeared fine just as consumers
can look fine for a short time in court. Another parent was called when his son had
resorted to moving all the furniture and other items out of his college room, was eating
raw meat and making strange sounds before his illness was recognized arnd he was

committed involuntarily. Another parent feared for her life as her son was yelling and

threatening her. He talked of ‘getting rid of® someone. She testified in court that the

verbal remarks were ¢vidence of schizophrenia untreated. Her son had had the illness
for 20 years. Relationships in families suffer, as it’s the family members who usually
have to bring the commitment suits to court. Seeking treatment for someone with a
serious mental illness, even though it is court-ordered, is the most humane thing to do
so that they can again exercise their civil rights without hallucinations, voices and
delusions guiding their thoughts.

Having depression for over 35 years myself, there were a couple of times when a

~ pastor drove me to the hospital or to the doctor’s office and then to the hospital

because I could not stop the thoughts or actions of wanting to end the pain of mental
illness. I was angry for a number of days when on a secured unit, even when I knew it
was the only way I could get help in stopping the overdoses. But I knew that I was ill
and that it was necessary to get help. There are many who are not aware of how ill they
are. | am more aware of the course of the depression in my life, and also at what point I
have to intervene by reaching out to a professional before I can no longer make good

decisions about coping with the depression. Decision-making and cognitive skills are
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some of the first skills that are compromised when a mental illness is not effectively

treated. Although depression is considered to be like the common cold in prevalence,
. its symptoms can be hard-to-treat. After trying many drugs, I've only been somewhat
symptom-free in the last three years.

The change in this law is absolutely essential in preventing some of the suicides and

many of the crimes against other people caused by untreated mental illness,
The NAMI affiliates in the state, including the newly formed one in Bismarck/Mandan

support this bill because it will help alleviate a lot of suffering of consumers and their

family members.
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House Judiclary Committee Testimony

Testimony for Judy Knutson

Senate Bill 2296

Wednpsday, March §, 2003

Chairman DeKrey and Members of the House Judiciary Committee,

My name is Judy Knutson, My brother was diagnosed with a schizophrenic break-
down over 20 years ago. I can’t even begin to describe the nightmare we've been
through over the past 20 some years trying to get him help, There are many things that
need to change in the system so our family members can get decent treatment. This
includes access to information about medical care, supportive and structured living
arrangements, and more inclusion of family in team planning for after care.

But this bill is so important because it all starts right her. It starts with getting and
keeping them on their medicine. People who are opposed to that concept should ask:
“Why would a doctor prescribe medication if it wasn’t needed?” They need to look at
what does the medicine do and to care deeply about what happens to the person if they
aren’t getting proper medicine and care.

My brother has lived as a homeless person for years. He’s been beaten and left for
dead on more than one occasion. He’s scared to live on the street. He doesn’t want to
live on the street because he said, “It’s worse now — a lot of them are on drugs out there.”
He has frozen his feet. He was suspended from the homeless shelter for violent behavior
so he was freezing out on the streets, trying to warm up by going into businesses.

Without medication people with paranoia think people are against them, people with
schizophrenia hear voices telling them scary, terrible things about themselves and

others. The voices can be very loud and many at the same time, Because of al this they

may become violent at times just in an effort to try to defend themselves, But they are
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0 very vulnerable and easily preyed upon out on the streets,

’ The truth is that the Humane Society does a better job of protecting animals than our

| society does of protecting people with mental illness! If a pet was out getting cold and
unfed, the owners could be brought up on charges. More value is placed on animals than
on our family members! All these organizations that say they protect people with mental
iliness — why aren’t they protecting them? They sit behind their desks with no intimate
knowledge of the reality that people are actually living every day. Do any of thet have a
family member who is suffering like this with mental illness?

Some groups claim to be protecting people by saying you c#n’t make someone take
medicine if they don’t want to. Is it more important to leave people alone than to get
them help and keep them alive?

(O This lack of compassion and negligence has gone on far too long. My brother himseif
said, “At least YOU know people like me need help and we shouldn't be treated like

animals.” People who do not act responsibly in helping those with severe mental illness

get proper medical care may start seeing themselves facing wrongful death fawsuits from
family members. This sort of thing hasn’t been done historically. But I think you’ll find
that as family :nembers have become more educated about the true medical basis for their
famnily member’s illness, the more outraged we’ve become when our loved ones are
denied treatment,

And treatment goes bevond a hospital evaluation. It means continuing care because
serious mental illness is chronic and on-going. A major problem currently is how
difficult it is to get a long-term court order for medication. This means they are required

C to take their medication as an out-patient so they can stay stable. Even if you manage by
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some miracle to get a 1 year court-order requiring them to take medication, then after a
year — then what? Wait until something bad happens again? This bill is good because it
allows loss of control of one’s thought or actions to be considered when determining if
the person qualifies for treatment.

If people can’t get medication for their iliness they just get worse and worse. My
brother cycled in and out of treatment so many times that is has taken it’s toll on him.
His case worker said, “He just doesn’t get as well as he used to.”

Please pass bill 2296. It will help some people who are too sick to lielp themselves,
get decent care and maybe even a decent life. A person shouldn’t be subjected to a life
unfit for an animal just bojcause they were unlucky enough to inherit a mental illness.
Anyone who opposes this because they think it’s wrong to make someone take medicine
doesn’t truly understand paranoia, they don’t understand that delusional people don’t
make the same choices that they would if they were on medication. Please vote ‘do pass’

on bill 2296, Thank you.
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House Judiciary Committee Testimony
Randy Petermann
Senate Bill 2296- March S, 2003
Chairman DeKrey and Members of the House Judiciary Committee,

My name is Randy Petermann. I've had paranoid disorder for over 25 years. I can tell
you it’s cruel if someone can’t get treatment. It’s inhumane. If no one had taken the
first step to get me help I'd be dead now because I didn’t know how to help myself,

I fought treatment at first too. A lot of people do. Some people fight going to the
hospital because they think they're right. They think they should die. Most people are
too afraid to admit they need help. Once they get that sick — anything is hard. When you
get that sick you think the doctors are against you, too. And there is the stigma. It’s still
hard for me to admit I was in the hospital because of the stigma,

When I was younger, | knew my thoughts were messed up. I was beating myself up
inside all the time and [ didn’t want to live, When you’re suicidal you are so emotional
that you want to go on, yet it's so painful to go on. Killing yourself is the only ticket out.
You want it over.

And when you're like that you’re not figuring things out. You’re just
going on impuise. Things are happening so fast when you’re suicidal. I was doing things
like endangeting people by driving wrecklessly. I was in terrible shape inside.

Without medication I also couldn’t keep other people out of my head. Their ideas and

thoughts became mine. I needed people to help me rationalize things out. They helped
me with this in the hospital.

I fought medication at first like a lot of people do. But I realize now that my life
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(/'\ started to take positive steps, to get better, when I had to start taking antipsychotic

medicine and got professional guidance and support.

I just wish I'd gotten help sooner because after my second break I lost some of my

memory abilities.

And I wouldn’t be as fragile as I am today. When you have an episode

it does cause damage to the nerves in your brain and it’s harder to recover.

My son inherited this neurological condition. When he got sick we could all see it. But

we couldn’t get him in the hospital because people didn’t think he was dangerous. But he

was a danger to himself and almost committed suicide.

Why does someone have to become dangerous before they can get help? It isn’t

asking a lot to be able to get someone help when they are that sick.

This bill will save lives. People that are against it think it’s wrong to put someone in

N the hospital if they don’t want to go. But someone who is that sick isn’t thinking clearly,

They can’t help themselves. At that time they might not think they want to go to the

hospital. But no one wants to kill themselves either.

Please vote DO PASS on bill 2296.

Thank you.
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House Judiciary Committee Hearing
Testimony for Sheree Spear
Senate Bill 2296
Wednesday, March 5, 2003
Chairman DeKrsy and Members of the House Judiciary Committee:

I wonder how many bills this session will give you the power to influence whether
someone lives or dies? When this hearing is over, if you have any doubt, I hope you’ll
vote “Do Pass” in favor of a person’s right to Live. And live well. “Do Pass” in favor of
a person’s right to Pursue Happiness.

You see, a person lingering in a state of delusion is unable to exercise their civil rights

the way you and I can. Losing control over one’s own thoughts is a terrifying experience.

No one choses to develop a neurological brain disorder - what medicine has proven
in the past 10 years that mental illnesses are.

No one choses to be psychotic, paranoid or delusional. And no one wagts to stay that
way. The same faulty neuron signaling causing those symptoms also oftens impairs
one’s ability to think clearly and objectively about their need for treatment. No one really
wants to kill themselves, or to be driven by delusions to kill their children or a police
officer. No one wants to endure the constant, unrelenting torment of paranoia and
psychosis. Which is one reason the suicide rate among people with bipolar and
schizophrenia is so high. Another reason is because the delusions seem so real the person
cannot separate them from reality. That’s why they do sometimes act on them.

You're being asked to vote today on something most of us can’t even conceptualize.

So I thought it might be helpful to show a brief video clip that gives us an idea of what

the experience of hearing auditory hallucinations is like for the person having them. Jim, the
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person in the video you’ll see, killed himself a month after this interview. He had schizophrenia.
O For time's sake we'll just show a very brief segment of that interview,

VIDEO CLIP - “I’'m still here.” by Wheeler Communications

Chairman DeKrey and Members of the House Judiciary Committee:

All we’re asking is that the classic symptoms of severe mental illness- lose of control
of one’s thoughts or actions, be added. Just like the classic symptoms of other diseases
are recognized and people get help based upon those symptoms before there is a negative
outcome, we're asking that the same be permitted when it comes to mental iliness.
When my dad was having severe chest pain, shortness of breath and turning grky the
hospital said , “Bring him in right away.” They recognized the symptoms of an
underlying disease. He started crying and saying he didn’t want to go to the hospital. He

(/77 was scared, but I was able to get him medical care anyway and he’s alive today because

......

of it. !
One the other hand, when my son started walking backwards, was cutting his arms, '

wanted to get his nose surgically removed, and was crying because he thought he’d never
be able to survive the Holocaust - I knew he was in trouble too. He wouldn’t voluntatily

go in for help either because his paranoia was so strong he was sure the nurses would try
to poison him. He was scared. But I coukin’t even get him in for a 24 hour

evaluation because I couldn’t prove he was dangerous. Later he attempted suicide but
someone intervene in the moments between him loading the gun and pulling the trigger.
He almost died because the law barred me from getting him the medical care he

desperately needed.
( | Do you see the double standard? It exists because mental illness used to be so
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(" mysterious. But the huge medical advances of the past 10 years have brought us proof
that mental illnesses are legitimate medical conditions deserving of the same compassion
and medical care afforded those with Parkinson’s, diabetes, or any other disease. We'’re
asking that the law catch up with the science.

Death and suffering due to untreated mental illness is and has been a problem in North
Dakota for hundreds, probably thousands of people. 1% of the population will develop
schizophrenia - regardless of geographic location. That percentage is the same in the
North Dakota as it is in the back hills of the Himalayas.

A friend of mine, an instructor at the Tech School in Grand Forks, shot and killed
‘ himself a year ago last August. He had untreated major depression. A man I used to
‘ e work with at the Floor to Ceiling Store in Fargo who seemingly had everything to live for
stuck a tube in his exhaust and killed himself. He had bipolar disorder. In high school a

young man did the same thing, Of the 4 people I personally know who either completed

or attempted suicide, 3 were North Dakota residents. There are hundreds or more stories

like this across the State. We can never prevent every tragedy. But we can prevent some.
Mary in Minot lost her brother to suicide. He had schizophrenia. Carol in

Grand Forks lost her son and daughter-in-law to suicide last fall. They had

schizophrenia, Eunice Emo in Jamestown tried all last summer to get help for her

husband, Jerome, but couldn’t prove he was dangerous, He hung himself last October.

Michael in Minot can’t understand why he had to go to the emetgency room last

Christmas with stab wounds before his brother could get help for his mental illness, This

Capitol building doesn’t contain a room large enough to hold all the people from actross
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the State that can tell you a personal story about why this bill should be passed.

Suicide isn’t the only outcome of untreated mental illness. Drug and alcohol addiction,
homelessness and victimization and prison sentences are others

Stakeholders have been brought together on this issue in
this state. I presented this bill for feedback to the annual Sheriff's and Police Chief’s
Association meetings, Before this bill was even drafted Chief Magnus, and Sheriff
Rudnick and states attorneys were consulted. A number of attorneys specializing in mental

i health law have been involved. Many state employees in mental health services, at various levels
’ and law had input. Jerry Kemmet, Dir. of Bureau of Criminal Investigations, personally thinks

this is a good bill. Elaine Little, Dir. of Corrections, personally thinks this bill will help. She gave
me permission to quote her as saying, “With all the people we see coming through our jail and !

they would not have committed the crime if they’d gotten help for their illness,”

1’

{

|

'! ( 7" prison doors every year who have untreated mental illness, we can’t help but wonder if maybe

|

| Associations such as National Alliance for the Mentally Ill and Mental Health Assoc. had input,

We made significant concessions to satisfy the requests made by Mental Health Assoc. through
their attorney, Sharon Gallagher, necessary to gain their support. Dr. Glenn Johnson, Pres. of
. MHA board confirmed their position remains that they support the bill as amended in the Senate.
And consumers (those with mental illness). Especially consumers had input. The homeless
people with untreated mental iliness aren’t members of any association and aren’t even aware
there’s a hearing today. We're representing them and those too sick to speak at this podium.
The word “commitment” is scary for some. It makes people think of the days when medicines
weten't good and people were institutionalized for years. I'm well aware of how things used to :
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be and can tell you this bill doesn’t take us back there. The attached flow chart illustrates some of
the processes in place to ensure rights are protected. Attorney Mary Zdanowich will elaborate on
that issue.

In conclusion, some have wondered why we would expend so much time and energy to try to
make this change. For me the answer is: I’'m making an investment in my son’s future. And in
the futures, if thiey are to have one, of others who suffer along with him.

Most families invest in their children’s future by saving for college and raising them well. I only
have one child and at the young age of 22 he’s been stuck with a chronic, severe illness. Having
done all the other right things, what can I do at this point to invest in his future? I can try to
create the best possible environment for him, including the best: medicines, housing options, and

law.
I've encountered so many other people in the state who share similar stories, so it’s a privilege

to be working on their behalf also.
Please vote DO PASS on SB 2296. Thank you.
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(" House Judiciary Committee Testimony

Senator Tim Mathern
Senate Bill 2296
March §, 2003

Chairman DeKrey and members of the House Judiciary Committee. My name is
Tim Mathern, Senator from District 11 in Fargo. I sponsored Senate Bill 2296
because I believe there are persons who suffer from mental illness who do not

receive treatment early enough.

Amendments were made by the Senate to make this bill as narrow as possible to
meet the objectives but not violate people’s rights to refuse treatment when they
are not in need of treatment.

Members of the Committee I believe this bill is urgent. From my experience
working in a large parish in Fargo I know people wander the streets needing
treatment but not getting it. Some individuals get better using medication and then
go off the medication when they feel better but then need to be hospitalized to

| ,f‘j reestablish the medication pattern and its benefit. Far better that the medication

. -
......

Y use continue without interruption. Also from my experience in the Appropriations
Committee I have learned that there are far too many people in prison who have
committed crimes when they were in need of mental health services. With this bill

we're just trying to make it possible to get people who are clearly in desperate
need of help (delusions, psychotic) and care they need before they become

dangerous to themselves or others.

Again, I believe this bill is urgent. We must stop needless incarcerations, suicidal
deaths, and personal suffering as soon as possible.

. Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee there are others who wish to testify

and I ask that you permit Ms. Sheree Spear to testify next so that you get a full
desctiption of the need for this bill and orderly introduction of proponents to

respect the time constraints you are under.

I ask for your support of SB 2296 . aimendipentied by the Senate. Thank you for
your consideration.
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